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CORPORATE PROFILE
EXREMN

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange: 2128) is a leading large-scale industrial group that
manufactures piping and building materials in mainland China. China
Lesso is one of the constituent stocks of the Hang Seng Composite
MidCap Index and MSCI China index and is a stock eligible for trading
through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s Stock Connect. After more than
36 years of rapid development, the Group has evolved info a leader in
the industry of building materials and home improvement. It provides
high-quality products and services such as plastic piping, building
materials and home improvement, new energy, environmental
protection, and operates a supply chain service platform.

Currently, the Group has established over 30 advanced production
bases in 18 provinces of China and in foreign countries. The Group has
established a nationwide sales network and has also developed long-
term strategic partnerships with 2,786 independent and exclusive first-
tier distributors that enable timely and efficient supply of comprehensive,
quality products and professional services to customers. As an
integrated manufacturer of a comprehensive range of piping and
building materials, China Lesso provides over 10,000 types of quality
products, which are widely applied to such fields as home improvement,
civil architecture, municipal water supply, drainage, energy
management, electric power transmission, telecommunication, gas
supply, fire services, environmental protection, agriculture and marine
aquaculture.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

T2

Change
2022 2021 2z
For the year ended 31 December BENANBILEE
(RMB’000) (AR¥F7T)
Revenue WA 30,767,211 32,057,584 (4.0)%
Gross profit EH 8,241,423 8,447,693 12.4)%
Finance costs MEMA 681,084 546,149 24.7%
EBITDA R R &R 5,785,627 5,719,554 1.2%
Profit before tax PR A0SR 3,190,424 3,807,282 (16.2)%
Profit for the year FREA 2,514,900 3,018,589 (16.7)%
Profit aftributable to owners of the Company  AATHE AEGHEA 2,517,322 3,044,159 (17.3)%
At 31 December (RMB'000) R12B8318(AR¥FT)
Total assets BERR 58,952,604 54,483,189 8.2%
Cash and bank deposits BERFTER 7,361,770 7,646,249 13.7)%
Total debts® ExmE" 20,614,088 18,275,903 12.8%
Net debt® ExzE" 13,252,318 10,629,654 24.7%
Total equity g 22,589,795 21,806,763 3.6%
Share information (RMB) BREN (ARE)
Earnings per share® SRR
- Basic =% 0.82 0.99 (17.2)%
- Diluted —BE 0.82 0.99 (17.2)%
Dividend per share [HK cents) BREE (B)
- Interim dividend —PHRE = 12
— Proposed final dividend —BCREIR R 30 26
- Total dividend —RES 30 38 121.1)%
Equity attributable fo owners of the Company ~ BRANTHE NESREZE
per share 7.02 6.70 4.8%
Financial ratios EHE Ju e
Gearing Ratio (%) BEBEBE (% 47.7 45.6
Net debt to equity® (%) ERPEE RS K" %) 58.7 48.7
Interest cover® [times] FISEFILLR" (1) 8.49 10.47
Note: Py EE -
la)  Represented borrowings, lease liabilities and debt component of convertible loans. (a) BER EEaERTRRERETFLD
bl Represented fotal debts less cash and bank deposits. (b) BERRTERIRE RIRTER
(c) Details of the calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share of the Company ~ (c) ANOEREAREERNCSTEFNNGFSUIREK
are set out in note 11 to consolidated financial statements. fygEm -
(d) Represented equity attributable to owners of the Company divided by the number of  (d) BARAIHRBNEBERBFRURBRSERREEHITROH
issued Shares at the end of the reporting period. 8-
le Represented net debt divided by total equity. le) BERFERUERRE -
(f) Represented EBITDA divided by finance costs. 0] ERERMERIBNRURERA -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFERFERE

For the year ended 31 December

BE12B8IHLEFE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RESULTS AR%BFrK ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
REVENUE N 30,767,211 32,057,584 28,073,065 26,344,523 23,733,517
GROSS PROFIT EA 8,241,423 8,447,693 8,383,979 7,537,119 6,228,449
EXPENSES* BESZ* (4,645,305) (4,441,810) (3,851,675) (3,459,637) (3,033,265)
FINANCE COSTS Eli={%N (681,084) (546,149) (435,892) (577,194) (415,403)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX PRRATER 3,190,424 3,807,282 4,753,560 3,981,921 3,235,539
Income fax expense PSRz (675,524) (788,693) (996,171) (953,586) (789,315)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRHEA 2,514,900 3,018,589 3,757,389 3,028,335 2,446,224
Profit attributable to: PUNBAERAL |
Owners of the Company . N/NSIETZ= PN 2,517,322 3,044,159 3,750,829 3,024,701 2,491,774
Non-controlling interests JEEhlRE S (2,422) (25,570) 6,560 3,634 (45,550)
2,514,900 3,018,589 3,757,389 3,028,335 2,446,224

At 31 December

R128318
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FINANCIAL POSITION ARSI AR¥EFT ARETT ARETITT AREBTT ARETIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEREBEE 34,959,559 30,131,266 26,858,971 23,053,463 19,752,950
Current assets HEEE 23,993,045 24,351,923 19,668,591 17,731,334 14,883,327
Total assets EERR 58,952,604 54,483,189 46,527,562 40,784,797 34,636,277
LIABILITIES =1
Non-current liabilities EREBE 14,915,737 11,812,823 10,115,058 3,163,655 6,458,341
Current liabilities neaeE 21,447,072 20,863,603 16,058,382 20,526,746 13,105,071
Total liabilities BERB 36,362,809 32,676,426 26,173,440 23,690,401 19,563,412
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ REBEEPHR
(LIABILITIES) (&af) 2,545,973 3,488,320 3,610,209  (2,795,412) 1,778,256
EQUITY REZS
Equity aftributable to owners P N/N=IE =N
of the Company FEIGREE 21,794,253 20,771,141 19,841,127 16,576,245 14,803,329
Non-controlling interests JEEhl e 795,542 1,035,622 512,995 518,151 269,536
Total equity RELS 1B 58 22,589,795 21,806,763 20,354,122 17,094,396 15,072,865
# Represented the sum of selling and distribution expenses, administrative expenses ~ # EBHERDHEFEX « (THREAEMESZRA -

and other expenses.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERMES

In 2022, given that the world experienced once-in-a-century changes
and pandemic as well as geopolitical uncertainty, the downward
pressure on the global economy increased. Affected by the pandemic
and demand contraction, the business environment in the PRC has
experienced higher complexity, severity, and uncertainty. In the face of
the challenging international situation and domestic economic and
social environment, China’s gross domestic product (GDP) growth rate
recorded a decline in 2022, with a year-on-year increase of 3.0% only to
approximately RMB121 trillion.

As a leading large-scale industrial conglomerate that manufactures
piping and building materials in mainland China, China Lesso capitalises
on the Chinese government’s favourable policies and the stable demand
of the infrastructure and piping to continue developing its various
business segments. However, the Group has faced challenges in its
overall business performance due to the pandemic conditions and
economic environment in the PRC, the fluctuation of raw material and
energy prices, as well as the sluggish real estate and investment market.
The Group’s total revenue for the year was RMB30,767 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.0%. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company decreased by 17.3% to RMB2,517 million due to
the negative market factors. The Board proposed payment of a final
dividend of HK30 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Despite numerous challenges, China Lesso forged ahead with
perseverance and overcame difficulties with a forward-looking atfitude
under the collective efforts within the Group. The Group remains frue to
its original aspirations and is committed to providing high-quality
products and services to customers and consumers, while fully seizing
the opportunities for high-quality development in the industry.

Over the past three decades, China Lesso has continuously extended its
industrial ecosystem chain from plastic piping business to building
materials and home improvement business. At present, the Group’s
businesses cover pipes, building materials and home improvement, new
energy, environmental protection, and supply chain service platforms.
With the gradual improvement of its business layout, China Lesso has
launched the strategic upgrade for its brand by revamping its brand
positioning and image to inferpret its increasingly rich brand value more
comprehensively. With high-quality products and services that are
international, professional, and competitive, the Group has earned the
trust and recognition from the market and consumers.

4 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited PEIIfBEBERBRAT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREBES

Last year, the Group won multiple awards and rankings and further
enhanced the Group's reputation and image in the industry and market,
demonstrating its strong corporate strength. These awards and rankings
included, “2022 Capital Market Influence Enterprise”, “The 375th ranking
of 2022 Fortune China 500”,"Top 500 Most valuable Chinese Brands”,
“Guangdong Provincial Government Quality Award- First-Class Team
Nomination Award”, and “Top Five Listed Companies by Investment
Potential”, efc..

In terms of business development and production capacity upgrade,
China Lesso achieved multiple breakthroughs in the past year. In August,
the Group held a groundbreaking ceremony in Gansu, marking the
official construction of Gansu Lesso, which will become an important
production base and distribution center for China Lesso’s strategic layout
in the northwestern China, and an important part of the Group's efforts
to speed up development and improve its nationwide strategic layout. In
the same month, the Group’s first extrusion workshop in Indonesia was
put into operation, marking the plant as an engine for China Lesso’s
accelerated development in the Southeast Asian market, further
improving its overseas market layout, and accelerating the pace of
localisation development.

In terms of strategic cooperation, in addition to continuously deepening
its cooperation with existing partners and customers, China Lesso
entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with China Construction
Sixth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd., with plans to actively engage in
close collaboration and business interactions. On the other hand, the
Group entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with Foshan
Construction Development Group Co., Ltd. in respect of comprehensive
cooperation in building materials products, raw material procurement,
new energy, and green construction.

At the same time, the Group proposed a new vision of brand positioning
upgrade towards the next decade, with “Envisioning the Better, Building
the Future” as the brand slogan. “Envisioning the Better” expresses
China’s low-carbon, environmentally friendly, green construction,
humanistic environment, and high-quality development, while “Building”
refers to the industry where China Lesso is located, and “Future”
represents the promising and sustainable development that China Lesso
is striving for.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETEBES

Looking ahead to 2023, it is a crucial year for the implementation of the
“14th Five-Year Plan”, which builds on the achievements of the previous
plan and sets the tone for the future. Despite the complex and severe
external environment and the high degree of uncertainty in the global
economy, as the pandemic prevention and confrol moves to a new stage
and production and living order accelerate its recovery, the endogenous
driving force of economic growth will continue to accumulate and
strengthen, and the overall Chinese economy will improve in 2023.

The management believes that China Lesso’s business fundamentals
have been continuously optimised over the years, and the Group has
strong core competitiveness and enterprise resilience. Therefore, the
management remains prudently optimistic about the Group’s long-term
prospects. The Group will further strengthen its management foundation
and business fundamentals, improve quality and efficiency, and
contfinuously enhance its operational quality and profitability. The Group
will also focus on enhancing its core competitiveness by being more
professional, focused, and dedicated to its business, and advancing
towards the four development directions of pipeline and home
improvement, intelligent manufacturing, green energy, and taking
advantage of the trend. The Group will continue to explore industrial
opportunities, promote intelligent manufacturing, and upgrade the
Group fowards intelligent and green-oriented development.

The Group will continue to fulfill its sustainable development philosophy
and practices towards our shareholders, customers, business partners,
environment, employees, and society. The Group will adhere to and
promote the principles of “Shared Prosperity with Shareholders”, “Getting
to Know Our Customers”, “Synergy with the Environment”, “Being One
with Employees”, “"Seeking Mutual Benefits with Partners” and “Playing
an Active Role in the Community”, and will actively interact with all
stakeholders, provide value and contribution to them, and sustain a
healthy, scenic living space.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to all employees for their diligence and contributions, especially
for their efforts and contributions during the period under the impact of
the pandemic. China Lesso will work for better business performance
and create greater value and win-win situation for our customers,
employees, society and shareholders. We will continue to work towards
our corporate goal of revitalising Chinese industry and building a world-
class international business.

Wong Luen Hei
Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, 20 March 2023
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESNEREEBARER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei, aged 60, is the founder of the Group, the chairman
of the Company and was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 5 November 2009. He is also a director of various
companies within the Group. He is primarily responsible for the Group’s
overall strategic planning and business management. Mr. Wong has
approximately 26 years of experience in plastic pipe operations and
management. He served as the chairman in Shunde Liansu Industrial
from December 1996 to April 1999 and was awarded "Outstanding
Private Entrepreneur of Shunde” by Shunde People’s Government of
Foshan in 2003. Mr. Wong has been a permanent honorary president of
Foshan Shunde Longjiang General Chamber of Commerce since 2018.
Mr. Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping and the brother-in-law of
Mr. Zuo Manlun. Mr. Wong is the founder of a trust which holds the
entire issued share capital of Xi Xi Development and New Fortune, the
controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Zuo Manlun, aged 50, is the chief executive of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various companies
within the Group. He is primarily responsible for the management of the
daily business operations of the Group. Mr. Zuo has approximately 23
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Zuo joined the Group
in December 1999 and has held various positions in operation
management since joining the Group. Mr. Zuo is currently a non-
executive director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (stock code: 98),
which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Zuo won several awards
including “Outstanding Worker of the Plastic Industry in the PRC” by China
Plastics Processing Industry Association in 2009 and was awarded as
“Senior Plastic Product Engineer (Technical Entrepreneur)” by the
Guangdong Human Resources and Social Security Department in 2019.
Mr. Zuo completed a programme of EMBA from Sun Yat-Sen University in
April 2001. Mr. Zuo is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wong Luen Hei and the
younger brother of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping.

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, aged 56, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
She is also a director/supervisor of various companies within the Group.
She is primarily responsible for procurement control and logistics
management of the Group. Ms. Zuo has approximately 26 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry. Ms. Zuo served as a director of
Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996. In 1999, upon
establishing the Group together with Mr. Wong Luen Hei, she held
various positions in procurement. Ms. Zuo is the spouse of Mr. Wong
Luen Hei and the elder sister of Mr. Zuo Manlun.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESREREEAEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Lai Zhigiang, aged 56, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
He is also a director of various companies within the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the production and technical management of
the Group. Mr. Lai has approximately 26 years of experience in the
plastic pipe industry and served as a workshop manager of Shunde
Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to November 1999. Mr. Lai joined
the Group in December 1999 and has held various positions in
production management since joining the Group.

Mr. Kong Zhaocong, aged 57, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various companies
within the Group. Mr. Kong is primarily responsible for the China’s sales
of the Group and has approximately 29 years of experience in the plastic
pipe industry. Mr. Kong joined the Group in December 1999 and has
held various positions in production management and sales since
joining the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kong served as a
factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory from
March 1993 to January 1999 and served as a manager in the production
department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from January 1999 to November
1999.

Mr. Chen Guonan, aged 55, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
He is also a director of various companies within the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the management and production of certain
companies in the Group. Mr. Chen has approximately 33 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Chen joined the Group in
December 1999 and has held various positions in production
management and engineering since joining the Group. Prior fo joining
the Group, Mr. Chen was a manufacturing engineer in the technology
department at Guangdong Province Zhaoging Gaojiang Plastic Products
Co., Limited from July 1989 to July 1993. From July 1993 to September
1999, he was a deputy factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic
Materials Factory. Mr. Chen served as a manager in the production
department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from September 1999 to
November 1999. Mr. Chen has been a deputy secretary general of Plastic
Pipe Special Committee of China Plastics Processing Industry Association
since 2005. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in polymer chemical
from South China University of Technology in July 1989.

8 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited PEIIfBEBERBRAT

HTEE @)

FBIGIRITE » 56 5% © RAEBEIRE - WHR 2010
F2E27BEEZERALRTINITES - HWINIKRA
EENSHNENITETEZERT - HIE2ES
REBNLTERKMER - BIERBEREET
HERTER 26 FHEER - WHR1996 F 12 FE1999 F 1
BEIIERKBEXNE[ICIE - BIER1999
FNENEAEE  SSTEESEH@HAN
ﬁﬁéﬁfﬂ ©

SLIKEBSCEE » 575 0 RAEBEEIRE - Wk 2010
F2RVVOEZERARIHNIES - WINKA
EERNSHNELNVETES R FSEH
oL ETZEEAEENEBANEE TE KR
IR EBTERTR29FHEE » SLICER1999F
NENBAER BtV REEBERBEEIBS
BEADBRE - RINBAEB R - SLICER
1993 3 B 1999 1 FIEE AU R EREY
B © WHR1999FE13 E 1999 411 3 & (T I8 135 5
PE RV AR o

PREIFE /T » 55% © RAEBEEIRE - WL 2010
F2RV7OEZTERARIHNITES - BWINKA
EERNZSHNELNVETEZSHH - REEES
AEBSHRELNINESBERLEETIF - Bd
RBREETEREEK I3 EILER o A 1R1999
FRANERER  BItREESBETIENB®
SIETARDBTE - RINBAELEBE ] BAEER
1989 F7HE1993F 7 S RERBERS [ ERE
RER AR RS TIZ60 - IR1993F 75
ZF1999F 98 - RS BRIBIMNEIRE -
PSS A FR1999F 9 B E 1999 FEN BT BB YA
EENGE IR - [ESS4 B 2005 FRIETDH
BRI THRRBREEEEZESSEINER -
PRICAR1989 F 7 HENVGERE T A2ERNS
DFLBB LB -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEREREEAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Lin Shaoquan, aged 47, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
He is also a director of various companies within the Group. Dr. Lin is
primarily responsible for the research and development and overseas
sales of the Group. Dr. Lin has approximately 20 years of experience in
the plastic pipe industry. Dr. Lin joined the Group in July 2002 and has
held various positions in research and development and overseas sales
since joining the Group. Dr. Lin is currently an executive director of WIIK
Public Company Limited (stock code: WIIK], which is listed on the Stock
Exchange of Thailand. Over the years, Dr. Lin has won various awards
including “National May First Labour Medal” by All-China Federation of
Trade Unions in 2006. Dr. Lin received a doctorate degree in polymer
chemical and physics from Sun Yat-sen University in June 2002.

Mr. Huang Guirong, aged 47, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various companies
within the Group. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible for the overall
management of the factories and production facilities of the Group and
has approximately 26 years of experience in the plastic pipe industry.
Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various
positions in production management since joining the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Huang served as a deputy factory manager at
Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory from 1996 until 1999 and
served as a deputy manager of the plastic production department of
Shunde Liansu Industrial from June 1999 to November 1999. Mr. Huang
completed a programme of marketing from Hubei University of
Technology from September 2001 to July 2005.

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, aged 51, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 2 April 2010. He is also a director/general manager/
supervisor of various companies within the Group. Mr. Luo has
approximately 30 years of experience in accounting and worked at
Shunde City Accounting Firm from July 1993 to March 1996, Guangdong
Dezheng Accounting Firm with Limited Liability from April 1996 to
December 2001 and Guangdong Gongcheng Accounting Firm from
January 2002 to December 2007. Mr. Luo worked for Foshan City
Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co., Limited as a certified public
accountant from January 2008 to April 2016. Mr. Luo is currently an
executive director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (stock code: 98),
which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Luo is a member of The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Luo obtained a
bachelor's degree in economics from Guangdong University of Business
Studies in June 1993.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESREREEAEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Lin Dewei, aged 62, has been re-designated as an executive director
of the Company on 11 July 2018. Mr. Lin was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010. He is also a
director/supervisor of various companies within the Group. Mr. Lin has
more than 25 years of experience in the legal field and worked as a
part-time lawyer at various law firms in the PRC between 1995 and 2001.
In 2001, Mr. Lin practised as a lawyer at Guangdong Everwin Law Office
and became a partner at the firm in 2004. Mr. Lin practised as a lawyer
at Guangdong Yogo Law Firm from 2013 to 2020. Mr. Lin is currently a
non-executive director of HC Group Inc. (stock code: 2280), which is
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lin obtained a bachelor’s degree in
physics from South China University of Technology in July 1982. Mr. Lin
received a cerfificate of lawyer qualification in the PRC in January 1990.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. Since 2002, Mr. Wong has been practising as a barrister of the
High Court in Hong Kong specialising in both civil and criminal litigation.
Mr. Wong is a member of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. Mr.
Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration from
Hawaii Pacific University in August 1997 and a bachelor’s degree in law
from City University of Hong Kong in November 2001. Mr. Wong received
a postgraduate certificate in laws from City University of Hong Kong in
July 2002.

Ms. Lan Fang, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 1 January 2015. Ms. Lan has been the
President of Guangdong Construction and Decoration Materials
Association since March 2008 and the President of Guangdong
Construction and Decoration Design Association since August 2014. Ms.
Lan graduated from Guangdong University of Technology with a college
diploma in June 1996 and then pursued further studies in the EMBA CEO
training programme of Sun Yat-sen University and the business
management CEO training programme of Tsinghua University. She
worked as the chairman of the materials committee of Guangzhou
Architecture & Decoration Association from February 1998 to October
2006. Ms. Lan has accumulated over 25 years of experience with respect
to the administration of social organisation and in the industry of
construction and decoration materials.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESREREEASER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Tao Zhigang, aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2015. Dr. Tao is HSBC
Professor of Global Economy and Business Strategy in the Faculty of
Business and Economics and the director of the Institute for China and
Global Development, the University of Hong Kong. Prior to joining the
University of Hong Kong in 1998, he taught at Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology from 1992 to 1998. Dr. Tao received his B.Sc. in
management science from Fudan University in 1986, and PhD in
economics from Princeton University in 1992. Dr. Tao had been an
independent non-executive director of Huadian Fuxin Energy Corporation
Limited (stock code: 816), which was listed on the Stock Exchange, from
June 2014 to October 2020. Dr. Tao has joined Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business as Professor of Economics and Management since 16
August 2021

Mr. Cheng Dickson, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 11 July 2018. Mr. Cheng is currently
(i) an independent director of Magnum Opus Acquisition Limited (Ticker:
OPA.U), which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange; and (ii) the
general manager at the investor relations department of The Hong Kong
and China Gas Company Limited (stock code: 3), which is listed on the
Stock Exchange.

Prior thereto, Mr. Cheng worked in J.P. Morgan between August 1994
and February 1996. In December 1995, he was promoted to TCRM
professional in its global markets department. Between March 1996 and
June 2000, Mr. Cheng worked in the securities lending department of
The Bank of New York, Hong Kong Branch. From July 2000 to August
2002, Mr. Cheng worked as an assistant vice president in the equity
capital markets division of BOCI Asia Limited. In August 2002, Mr. Cheng
joined ICEA Capital Limited and worked in its investment banking division
until October 2005 when he was a senior vice president. Mr. Cheng was
an executive director at the respective capital markets department in the
investment banking division of Mitsubishi UFJ Securities (HK) Capital,
Limited and Mizuho Securities Asia Limited from November 2005 to
October 2016. From July 2017 to December 2021, Mr. Cheng worked as a
managing director and head of the investment banking department of
Shanggu Securities Limited. He also acted as its responsible officer. Mr.
Cheng has more than 25 years of experience in investment banking
industry. Mr. Cheng obtained a bachelor's degree in arts majoring in
economics from University of Toronto in June 1994 and a master of
applied finance degree maijoring in corporate finance from Macquarie
University of Australia in November 2000.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESREREEAEER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Confinued)

Ms. Lu Jiandong, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2020. Ms. Lu is
currently employed by Jiaxing TechnoDerma Medicines, Ltd. as an
executive director and chief financial officer. Prior to this, Ms. Lu worked
as an executive director and chief financial officer for NASDAQ listed Rise
Education Cayman Ltd (Ticker: REDU) from September 2018 to December
2020. Ms. Lu also served as an executive director in a subsidiary of the
Company from January 2018 to July 2018. Ms. Lu worked for J.P. Morgan
from August 2001 to February 2017, during which, she served as a
managing director for J.P. Morgan investment banking team, junior
resource manager for Asia Pacific region, chief operating officer for J.P.
Morgan China securities joint venture, managing director and China
head for J.P. Morgan infrastructure fund. Ms. Lu has extensive investment
banking and investment experiences. She also has deep knowledge
about capital markets and operation management. Ms. Lu served as a
senior representative at John Hancock Mutual Life Insurance Company
Beijing Representative Office from July 1994 to June 1999, and she also
served as a public officer and chief translator in The Chinese People’s
Friendship Association with Foreign Countries from August 1991 to July
1994. Ms. Lu obtained a master degree in business administration from
The Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in May 2001 and a
Bachelor's degree in economics from Beijing International Studies
University in July 1991.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESREREEASER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Guanggen, aged 41, is the chief financial officer of the Group and
is responsible for the Group’s overall financial and accounting affairs.
Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 2008. Prior to this, he worked as a
finance manager in The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
Shunde Branch from 2004 to 2006, and was a sub-branch manager of
The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Foshan Shunde Haiginwan
Sub-Branch from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Liu completed a diploma in finance
from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in September
2005, a program in laws at Guangdong University of Business Studies
from March 2007 to January 2010, as well as obtaining a master degree
in engineering from Chongging University upon the completion of
courses for the master degree in software engineering (specialised in
financial informatisation) in June 2014. He is an associate member of the
Association of International Accountants.

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel, aged 45, is the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Kwan has more than 20 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Kwan joined the Group in June
2010 as secretary on a full time basis. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Kwan worked in CWCC Certified Public Accountants from March 2000 to
November 2004, PricewaterhouseCoopers from November 2004 to
October 2007 and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from November 2007 to
September 2009. Mr. Kwan graduated with a bachelor’s degree in
Commerce from Deakin University of Australia in September 2000 and
obtained a master degree in business administration from University of
South Australia in August 2012. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the CPA Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EREBRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

China Lesso is always committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices and business ethics of the Group. The
Board believes in good corporate governance practices and business
ethics which are essential for achieving sustainable development,
establishing investors’ confidence in the Company and safeguarding
and enhancing the interests of the Shareholders.

In pursuit of good and high standards of corporate governance
practices, the Board reviews the corporate governance practices of the
Company from time to time so as to meet the expectations of the
Shareholders for continual improvement, and fulfill its commitment of
pursuing excellent corporate governance. In the opinion of the directors,
the Company complied with all the applicable code provisions of the
Code during the reporting period.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code governing
securities transactions by directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to the directors, all of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year. The Model Code is also applicable to other specific
senior management of the Company. The directors’ and chief executive’s
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations are
disclosed in the Directors’ Report on pages 68 to 69.

BOARD
THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 15 directors, including 10 executive
directors and 5 independent non-executive directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELOHRS

BOARD (continued)
THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Continued)

Pursuant fo the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”), any
director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing directors shall hold office only until the first annual general
meeting ("AGM”) of the Company after his appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election. In addition, at every AGM of the Company, not
less than one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Apart from
retirement by rotation pursuant to the Articles, each non-executive
director has a term of within three years. Therefore, no director will
remain in office for a term of more than three years. For details relating
to any relationship among the members of the Board, including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship, please refer to
the sections headed "Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” and “Directors’” and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of the Directors’
Report.

CHANGE IN COMPOSITION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Luen Hei, the executive director of the Company, has ceased
to be the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) but remains as a member of the Nomination
Committee and Ms. Lu Jiandong, an independent non-executive director
of the Company, has replaced Mr. Wong Luen Hei as the chairlady of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 30 August 2022.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information in respect of the
directors of the Company required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

To segregate the management of the Board from the daily management
and business operations of the Group effectively, the post of chairman
and the chief executive are held by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and Mr. Zuo
Manlun, respectively. One of the important duties of the chairman is to
lead the Board to ensure the Board always acts in the best interests of
the Group. The chairman shall ensure the effective operation of the
Board and fully perform his/her duties and ensure all important issues
are discussed at Board meetings in a timely manner. All directors will be
consulted for any proposed items in the agenda. The chairman has
delegated the drafting of the agenda of each Board meeting to the chief
executive and the company secretary. With the assistance of the chief
executive and the company secretary, the chairman aims to ensure all
directors are adequately briefed on any issues being put forward at a
Board meeting and receive sufficient and reliable information in a timely
manner.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELOHRS

BOARD (continued)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors provide various expertise and
experiences, and maintain balance of interest to safeguard the interests
of the Group and the Shareholders. They participate in Board meetings
and committee meetings and make independent judgements on issues
related to the Group's strategies, performance, interest conflicts and
management process so as to ensure the interests of all Shareholders
are properly considered.

DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The Board shoulders the responsibility of providing effective, responsible
and reliable leadership to the Group. The Board exercises its rights in
management decision on the aspects of the Company’s development
strategy, management structure, investment and financing, planning,
financial control and personnel in accordance with the requirements of
the Code.

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the Company’s independent
auditor to review the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2022 and to audit the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2022. The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements included in the annual
report and the interim report. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, the directors have
selected and applied appropriate accounting policies and have made
prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external auditor

of the Company on the Company’s consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 76 to 85.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELOHRS

BOARD (continued)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties
including:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to review of the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control system;

(e} to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

(l  to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code).

The Board has performed the above duties during 2022.

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board convened eight
meetings fo review operating performance, funding requirement and
recent market conditions. The Board also considered and approved the
Group’s overall strategy, audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2021 and reviewed interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2022.

The chairman of the Board and the chairman/chairlady of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee,
attended the AGM of the Company held on 17 June 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEELOMRS
BOARD (continued) BE=Z @\
BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued) EEETETERIRERE (B)

The table below sets out the attendance of all members of the Board at  75&512022 FESE2XHMEPHEDH B R
the meetings held in 2022:

Meetings attended/eligible to attend

HRERE SEBLEHRE
Audit Nomination  Remuneration
AGM®! Board Committee Committee Committee
Directors BRBEAEY - BREEE REEES FMEES
Executive directors NTES
Wong Luen Hei® =g 7 7/8 - 2/2 171
Zuo Manlun Tt 1N 8/8 - 2/2 N
Zuo Xiaoping TET 1 8/8 - - -
Lai Zhigiang BHR n 8/8 - - -
Kong Zhaocong LK 11 8/8 - - -
Chen Guonan e n 8/8 - - -
Lin Shaoquan WHz 1N 8/8 - - -
Huang Guirong BEX I 8/8 - - -
Luo Jianfeng FREg 17 8/8 - - -
Lin Dewei Nt 17 8/8 - - -

Independent non-executive directors BIIENTES

Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan TEx n 7/8 2/2 2/2 11
Lan Fang s n 7/8 - 2/2 -
Tao Zhigang sl n 7/8 2/2 2/2 7
Cheng Dickson  (fef 7 7/8 2/2 - -
Lu Jiandong“ Sl n 7/8 2/2 - 11

Note: Myet -

la)  Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone or through other means of video (o)  IRIEZEMAIRTE  ESVUHS - BBEFANEME

conference in accordance with the Articles. BEBECHRBARS -
(b) There was no other general meeting held in 2022. (b) 1220227 » FREMREASELT -

() The changes of the composition of the Nomination Committee is set out under the (¢ REEESENERNESHRESEESTESHEHNESE)
section headed “Change in Composition of Board Committee” on page 15. —&f o
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELOHRS

BOARD (continued)
BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued)

The Company gives proper notices of Board meetings to the directors
and the procedure of Board meetings is in compliance with the Articles
and the relevant rules and regulations. The agenda and the relevant
documents are provided to all directors in a timely manner. The
chairman gives a proper briefing to all directors on items to be put
forward at a Board meeting. To ensure compliance with the procedure of
Board meetings and all applicable rules and regulations, all directors
gain a full understanding of all relevant data in a timely manner and
receive advice and services from the company secretary. The minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the company secretary and are available for
inspection by the directors and the auditor of the Company.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company provides a comprehensive induction package covering the
summary of the responsibilities and obligations of a director of a Hong
Kong listed company, the Company’s constitutional documents and the
Guides on Directors’ Duties issued by the Hong Kong Companies Registry
to each newly appointed director to ensure he/she to have sufficient
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest changes and
development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices and
other regulatory regime to the directors with written materials, as well as
organises seminars on the professional knowledge and latest
development of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties and
responsibilities.

In 2022, the Company provided two seminars on the topic of “Climate
risk knowledge and awareness” and “Environmental, social and
governance” to Board members.

SEZm)

BESSSERRTAS (@)
ANDOESHHEENESSSHRS > ME
BEHI2EETSRM RARIRAREA o
BEREAYHEEORBESHH - FHEME
ETeeH FHEHNEEORRESEESER -
rERTeESEESRRERAEEABARSE
Bl FFEESHREEENERTESHEEE -
WEADWBIREEEBRBY - EE2BHR
BADWERE - THANDESRUHEISHE -

E5BIIRE
ANTRREESHFEEXEE  URWERN
RECABRERE - AADYOFGDHMELNES
RHZEORETERNS - WESBLHATE
SCBEREFMRE ART2BBESEXHU
REBATYHMREDNEESEES RS
BESADOANTRELEELCER

NOWEAHOESER DRI - EXELS
RUREMEERIE <R3 # 8 &3 EIIRHAE
BEBER  NZHFRERREHESEB B
SCEXABREERTCHNRITHE -

122022F - RRAYRESZSAERN 5T MBHH T
CEBER [RIRERAEEEE ) R RE it

ZREB] -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEXEEORS

BOARD (continued) BE=Z @\

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS (Continued) EEIEIIRTIE (|)

Apart from the above training offered by the Company, based on the &7 il AN TIREBYIZ 9N - @H“‘%%l‘]z&
training records provided to the Company by the directors, the directors A TIRHLEVESTIECETE - 1R20224F - EEH [ ES M

also participated in the following trainings during 2022: PUTREEE -
Type of trainings

Directors S 1S5 EIXE Y
Executive directors WNITES
Wong Luen Hei EL = AC
Zuo Manlun rimfm AC
Zuo Xiaoping Y AC
Lai Zhigiang RBHaR AC
Kong Zhaocong SLIKER AC
Chen Guonan PRENFS AcC
Lin Shaoquan YA A,C
Huang Guirong HEX AC
Luo Jianfeng RRRIE AC
Lin Dewei Rz AC
Independent non-executive directors BIUENTES
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan E=EIEY AC
Lan Fang B AB,C
Tao Zhigang P 5 AB.C
Cheng Dickson BB 5T A,C
Lu Jiandong ey E4=S] AC

Note: BivEE -

A attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A HEFSR,/ABHERARE

B: delivering talks at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums B: RIFSTER, AEERTimEssS

C: reading information, newspapers, journals and materials relating to the  C: REEWESHE 5 RV BERBANT
responsibilities of directors, economy, finance, investments and business of the E(BNEH - BE - HPRER
Company
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELOHRS

BOARD (continued)
COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary reports to the Board so as to ensure compliance
with the procedures of the Board meeting and ensure the Board is fully
briefed on all legislations, regulations and corporate governance
development and has considered opinions of the directors when making
a decision. The company secretary is also directly responsible for the
Group’s compliance with its continuing obligations under the Listing
Rules, Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-
backs, Companies Ordinance, SFO and other applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

During the reporting period, the company secretary has received no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training fo refresh his knowledge
and skills.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and officers’
liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in the discharge
of their duties while holding office as the directors and officers of the
Company. The directors and officers shall not be indemnified where
there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust proven against them.

In accordance with the Articles, subject to the Cayman Islands
Companies Act (as revised), every director, auditor or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/
her as a director, auditor or other officer of the Company in defending
any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in
his/her favour, or in which he is acquitted.

BE= |\

NTE

NOMEBDOESSER  DRERDERESS
LHLE  URREESO R BERA - BAR
CESARRESEEER  BESS/ELRE
BEEREECER - ADWENEEEEAE
BET R SEATWNE - SHEEHD
BT ADIER - BERBSEAMREME
AR - BAIRBAI T2 HEST -

IRBEHA - RIMEBEEZADIRI5/)\F0I48
BIERISE - BT HEANE A °

ESRITHAENREE
RE-BESRITRASEERR  EBRITH
AERHBEARTEBRITRASETHBER
BHOVEWEREE DUERE - WEBES
RITBRAEBITAMEF - ERETHNERIETH
IR BRSATERE -

RESEMR - EREHFSQ A (EIZE]) KX
RIRT - ARIYFMIESE - HEENHAEAMITHA
SERNRANTEELESRE UBEEETE
BRESNHPIERARIES - MABIRHEMT
BAEMBRAEZH—)BEAEE - NER
REBERNSERES - EHREHIBRNETE -
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EXELOHRS

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain committees
under its supervision, including the Company’s audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the Nomination Committee (collectively known as
“Board Committees”). Board Committees can engage intermediaries to
provide professional opinions and the reasonable expenses incurred as
a result are borne by the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Dr. Tao Zhigang
(chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, Mr.
Cheng Dickson and Ms. Lu Jiandong (all are independent non-executive
directors). The major responsibility of the Audit Committee is to conduct
independent and obijective audit of the truth and accuracy of the Group’s
economic operation and financial activities, financial policies, financial
procedures, risk management, internal control, external audit, internal
audit, financial information reporting and financial data and assist the
Board in discharging its relevant duties.

The Audit Committee shall convene at least two meetings each year. In
2022, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The attendance
record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on page 18.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during 2022:

o review of the annual report and the annual results announcement
for the year ended 31 December 2021, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

o review of Ernst & Young’s confirmation of independence and its
report for the Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December
2021, with a recommendation to the Board for the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young at the 2022 AGM;

o review of continuing connected transactions;

o review of the Group’s internal audit reports;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEE;

iﬁd:

BOARD COMMITTEES (cContinued)
AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

review of the interim report and the interim results announcement
for the six months ended 30 June 2022, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

review and approval of Ernst & Young's report for the Audit
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2022;

consideration and approval of audit and non-audit services;

review of the corporate governance report for the year ended 31
December 2021 and the corporate governance disclosures for the
six months ended 30 June 2022, with recommendations to the
Board for approval;

review of the sustainable development report for the year ended 31
December 2021 with a recommendation to the Board for approval;
and

review of the annual report on effectiveness of risk management,
internal control system and internal audit function under the Code,
with a recommendation to the Board for approval.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed the annual
report, annual results announcement and sustainable development
report for the year ended 31 December 2022 with a recommendation to
the Board for approval.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the service fees paid or payable
by the Group to Ernst & Young, the external auditors, are set out as
follows:

SEEFXEE |

BEREZEE (|

o  EEEZT2022F68308 /BRI
WERDPHEBNS - TRZEES2RB

==
ZE858

o EFRBBLXISTNSIETHEM
HZE2022F 6 5308 LL/NEEEHRS

s  ERWEBBIRIFBERS

o BRED2021F12830H IFFENEEE
/mﬁ&’t‘:&@%ZOZZﬁEé%wBU:/\@%BU
TEEORE  URFESER

s BREX2021F12/NBILFENTKE
ERRS URFEBSBB R

o REVASRTFERRERE - PSIJB}W%HA%)‘E
RAPLEHIDERNRS - WERESDR
3\@ o

REERBRE BREESEFEZE2022F128
JIBLEFENFR FEXBASRIFEEE
BE  WEZESZEB -

AN L7 5 G

HZE2022F 123318 IEEE - AEBOLRKZET
ENSBFE AT - INEMBIEIED SV BEN 2 RFBE A
FHIWT :

RMB million
AREBETT

Annual audit services FEEFTR 7.85
Non-audit services JESTET RS

— Interim results review —PHIZEBEER 1.90
— Others* — Hih# 1.58
Total mEt 1.33

#

“Others” were mainly for providing advice on matters in relation to taxation. The
provision of these services by external auditors were cost effective and efficient due to
their professional knowledge.

* [Ef] T2AERRBOEERHSR - ERINSEE
BBV AE - BEIRHESRBER AN K -
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EXELORS

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

EXTERNAL AUDITORS (Continued)

Ernst & Young have been the auditors of the Company for a total of 13
years since 2010. Certification of the financial statements is as follows:

List of audit engagement partners

SEEXEB (|

SIS #Z BB (1)

LR BSTENEFEPTE 2010 FFRBEARNTLEED -
BEH3EF - MBI HRKIW

Certified financial statements

BHRESBARE

ERBOMHERR

Lee Mee Kwan, Helena 2010 to 2013; 2018 to 2022
T8

Lau Kin Yu 2014 to 2017

22U

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FHEESE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely Dr. Tao
Zhigang (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Wong Kwok Ho
Jonathan, Ms. Lu Jiandong (all are independent non-executive directors),
Mr. Wong Luen Hei and Mr. Zuo Manlun (both of them are executive
directors).

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for studying and
formulating the Company’s remuneration policy and incentive
mechanism and is responsible for formulating the standards for the
appraisal of the Company’s directors and senior management and
conducting appraisals.

The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility to
determine the specific remuneration packages of all directors and senior
management. In order to determine the level of remuneration and fees
paid to members of the Board, factors such as market rates, each
director’s workload, responsibility and job complexity are taken into
account. The following factors are considered when determining the
remuneration packages of directors and senior management:

o business requirements;

o individual performance and contribution to results;

] company performance and profitability, including but not limited to
ESG indicator achievement;

o retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

o changes in relevant markets, including supply and demand
fluctuations and changes in competitive conditions; and

° general economic situation.

During the review process, no individual director is involved in decisions
relating to his/her own remuneration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELOHRS

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2022, the Remuneration Committee convened one meeting,
assessed the performance of the Company’s directors and senior
management, reviewed terms of their service contracts, and made
recommendation of the remuneration packages for directors and senior
management to the Board. The attendance record of the meeting is set
out on a named basis on page 18.

Details of directors’ remuneration and five highest paid employees are
set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
remuneration of the two senior management fell within the band of less
than RMB1 million.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises six members, namely Ms. Lu
Jiandong (chairlady of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Wong Kwok Ho
Jonathan, Ms. Lan Fang, Dr. Tao Zhigang (all of them are independent
non-executive directors), Mr. Wong Luen Hei and Mr. Zuo Manlun (both
of them are executive directors) . The major duty of the Nomination
Committee is to study and make recommendations on the candidates,
selection criteria and procedure in respect of the Company’s directors
and senior management.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination Committee
reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifies
suitable candidates if necessary and makes recommendations to the
Board. The director nomination policy sets out the approach and
procedures the Board adopts for the nomination and selection of
directors of the Company including the appointment of additional
directors, replacement of directors, and re-election of directors. Below
are details of the selection criteria and nomination process and
procedures as setf out in the director nomination policy.

SEEZE=E W)
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EXELOHRS

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Director Nomination Policy

In the determination of the suitability of a candidate, the Nomination
Committee shall consider the potential contribution such candidate can
dedicate to the Board in terms of his or her qualifications, skills,
experience, independence, age, culture, ethnicity and gender diversity
etc. The Nomination Committee shall consider the following selection
criteria and such other factors that it may consider appropriate for a
directorship, including but not limited to: (a) attributes complementary to
the Board, (b) business experience, board expertise and skills, (c)
availability, (d) motivation, (e) integrity, (f) independence and (g) diversity
(in all aspects).

The director nomination policy takes the independence of independent
non-executive directors as one of the factors that must be considered to
ensure that the Board can obtain independent views and opinions.

For the appointment of new and replacement directors, if the Board
determines that an additional or replacement director is required, it will
deploy multiple channels for identifying suitable director candidates, including
referral from directors, shareholders, management, advisors of the
Company and executive search firms. Upon compilation and interview of
the list of potential candidates, the Nomination Committee will make
recommendation to the Board based on the selection criteria and such
other factors that it considers appropriate. The Board has the final
authority on determining suitable director candidate for appointment.

For the re-election of directors, where a retiring director, being eligible,
offers himself/herself for re-election, the Board shall consider and, if
appropriate, recommend such retiring director to stand for re-election at
a general meeting. A circular containing the requisite information on
such retiring director will be sent to shareholders prior to a general
meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

For nomination of directors by shareholders, such nominating
shareholder must follow the “Procedures for shareholder(s) of the
Company proposing a person for election as a director” which is
available on the website of the Company.

In any event, the Board shall ensure that the nomination, re-election
and/or appointment of the directors shall be conducted in compliance
with the Listing Rules, the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company and all other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

For further details, please refer to the director nomination policy that is
available on the website of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELOHRS

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Nomination Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2022, the Nomination Committee convened two meetings. The
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board, recommended the Board on the list of retiring directors for re-
election at the AGM on 17 June 2022 in accordance with the director
nomination policy and Board diversity policy of the Company, and
reviewed the independence of all independent non-executive directors.
The Nomination Committee nominated Ms. Lu Jiandong as the chairlady
of the Nomination Committee in August 2022. The Nomination
Committee recommended the Board on nomination of retiring directors
for re-election in accordance with the director nomination policy and
Board diversity policy of the Company. The attendance record of the
meeting is set out on a named basis on page 18.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE AND REFRESHMENT

The portfolio of existing practices of the Company’s corporate
governance is in place to ensure the independence of the Board. The
Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness on an annual basis.

The Company has received annual confirmation made by each of the
independent non-executive directors under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
regarding their independence. The Company regarded all independent
non-executive directors are independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors have actively
participated meetings of the Board and Board Committees to provide
independent opinions. When performing their duties, they will make
significant decisions with reference to professional advices from external
agents.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Board diversity policy is
available on the website of the Company.

The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board level will
support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and other qualities. The
Company will also take into consideration its own business model and
specific needs from time to time in determining the optimal composition
of the Board. The Nomination Committee will review the Board diversity
policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to
time.

According to the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the Company has
achieved the requirement of at least one female director on the Board.
The Company selects and appoints director based on the selection
criteria set out in the board diversity policy, apart from the gender
requirement.

The Board diversity targets are as follows:

Board diversity targets

Current performance

SEEXEB (|

ESETMEDTTILER
EESRNESSNEITLECR - sZBRES
ERESEWEDTICNGE - ESEWNESTT
EERTRARIBIOER -

ARNDNTEESEBEEB HITIERRERNAR
IRBEERIFERERERSET - 2R TES
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B BREFEESAEDTTIL - ARTRE
EETREMEMASE M ABEREASXE
BRARERTEE - TBESER (REABBRM
B)BEEESREITTLEER - BRENSRE
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RELMHRAMNE4 - ANTBERESSED
B-—2UMESHEKX - RIERIZKIN - ART
MRBEESEMEZSTCBERA B ER LR
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(i

EFBW

\

ESEZHREITILER

at least one female director on the Board

EFTEDEDUMUESE
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at least one director with risk management
expertise
expertise
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at least one director possessing industry
knowledge
knowledge
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3 female directors on the Board

1 executive director and 3 independent non-
executive directors with risk management
12NCTESRIDBIGENCTEERERRE
8 executive directors and 1 independent non-

executive director possessing industry

SBHTESRIZEIFNTESERRITEAN

Target achieved
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Target achieved

BEREER

Target achieved
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EXELOHRS

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 15 directors. Three of
them are females. One-third of the Board members are independent
non-executive directors, thereby promoting critical review and control of
the management process. The composition of the Board reflects the
necessary balance of skills, professional experience and knowledge for
effective leadership of the Company.

The Nomination Committee, after taking into account the business model
of the Group, believes that the existing Board is adequate in terms of
size, diversity and composition that are appropriate to facilitate effective
decision making. The Nomination Committee also believes that each
existing Board member possesses diverse skills and experience required
for an effective Board and the Board collectively possesses core
competencies necessary for the effective functioning of the Board and an
informed decision-making process. The Board believes that board
diversity is beyond just about gender diversity and embraces various
factors such as a need for persons from different backgrounds, skill sets,
experiences and competencies for a better Board performance. The
Board will continue to evaluate and monitor the implementation of the
appropriateness and effectiveness of the board diversity policy to ensure
that it remains fit for purpose and aligns with the Group’s businesses,
strategies and objectives, such that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives, in addition to independent
judgments provided by our independent non-executive directors.

Currently, women employees form 31.2% of the Group’s workforce and
12.4% of its middle or above managerial level. All employees are treated
equally regardless of gender, nationality, age, race or religion. The
recruitment procedures are impartial and non-discriminative and each
candidate is selected on the basis of objective criteria such as skills,
experience or competency. The Board is of the view that the current
gender ratio in the workforce is appropriate to the development of the
Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is solely responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and ensuring the Group has established and
maintained appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control system. The Board is also responsible for monitoring the design,
implementation and review on the risk management and internal control
system as carried out by management, while management has the
responsibility to provide confirmation on the effectiveness of such system.
To this end, management continues to allocate resources for a risk
management and internal control system compatible with the COSO
(Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission)
standards to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in the operating system of the Group and in
achieving business objectives of the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has continuously monitored
and annually reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system, and the Board is of the view that the existing
risk management and internal control system is sufficient, effective and
adequate. The review covered all material aspects with regard to control,
including financial control, operational control and compliance control
during the reporting period. The internal audit reports submitted to the
Audit Committee by the Group also cover aspects of risk management
and internal control. The Board is not aware of any significant areas of
concern which may affect the Shareholders, and believes that the Group
has fully complied with the code provisions on internal controls, including
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, as set forth in the
Code. The Board, through the appraisal performed by the Audit
Committee, reviewed, ensured and confirmed the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
received by the staff and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting function at the Board meeting. In light of the
Group’s nature of business and the recommendations on the Board's
role in risk management, the Group has developed risk management
system and policies, and established a risk management project team,
which is responsible for the Group’s risk management, to communicate
and assess the Group's risk profile and material risks, and track the
progress of mitigation plans and activities of material risks and report on
detailed examinations of specific risks as required.
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EEXEBHRS

RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM REEIRAEIER

The Group has established a comprehensive organisation structure to  AEBEE @I —ERE0VEGLE - HAELEHT
manage the risks encountered by the Group. The risk management @ HREGETSIE - DEEENR B SBL0ME
structure of China Lesso comprised of two key factors: risk management S EMEEERAZ : RREBEREN R R SIEZ
structure and risk management program. I °
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)
RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Regulatory Organisation
The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the overall risk
management

(A)

32

determine the overall objective, risk appetites and risk
tolerance for corporate risk management, and approve risk
management strategies, major risk mitigation solutions and
risk management measures;

comprehend and manage each major risk faced by the
enterprise and its existing management situations, and make
effective risks management decisions; approve the decision
making standards and mechanisms regarding major
operating decisions, major risks, major events and major
business processes;

approve risk management report related to major decisions;
and

approve the annual comprehensive risk management report.

Risk Management Organisation
The Audit Committee, the highest risk management organisation
in the Company which is accountable to the Board

review the establishment and planning of the comprehensive
risk management system;

review the proposal on the structure of the risk management
organisations and their responsibilities;

review the annual comprehensive risk management report
and submit to the Board;

review risk management strategies, major risk management
solutions and risk management measures; and

review the annual risk management work plan.
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EXELOHRS

RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)
RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)

Leading Risk Management Organisation
Risk management project team, the leading risk management
organisation

(A)

responsible for the establishment and amendment of the
Company’s risk management policies and mechanisms;

formulate and submit annual risk management work plan to
the Board and the Audit Committee for their review;

regularly collect first-hand information regarding risk
management, carry out risk assessment and discuss major
risks as faced by the Company; and

assess the soundness, reasonability and the effectiveness in
implementing the risk management system, and review the
annual comprehensive risk management report, risk
management strategies and day-to-day risk management
solutions.

Risk Implementation Organisation

Each functional department of the Company shall accept the
coordination and monitoring carried out by the risk management
project team

implement the basic process in risk management;

consider and propose decision-making standards or
mechanisms regarding major operating decisions, major
risks, major events and major business processes of the
functional department;

analyse and propose risk assessment report of the functional
department;

properly carry out risk management work of the functional
department; and

establish a comprehensive risk management process of the
functional department.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)
Risk Supporting Organisation
Internal control team

assist the Group’s risk management work, and formulate
internal control plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

centrally organise or, together with related functional
departments, design, amend or improve internal control
documents in accordance with risk management solutions;

assist the risk management project team to inspect, examine,
evaluate and improve the implementation of risk
management in each functional departments and operating
units; and

assist the timely rectification and improvements to existing
deficiencies of each functional department based on the
findings in the internal audit report.

Internal audit department

34

assist the Group’s risk management work, and formulate
internal audit plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

carry out measures including walk-through test and
analytical review to evaluate the effectiveness in risk
management; and

after carrying out infernal audit, deliver the auditing results to

internal control team and risk management project team
timely.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM REEIPABERE)
(Continued)
(B) RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM B) RRRETEREN
The Group has established a comprehensive risk management AEEBRRITT—ERESPRBEEIEREL - %
program which is led by the risk management project team and EABRRESEEBHEERE - AR
implemented with the assistance of the internal audit department HEEANET - REEEERW T
and internal control team. The risk management program is as
follows:
(a)  to collect first-hand information for risk management; (o) RBREIBE—FENNE
(b)  to analyse and assess risks; bl  RBRDHTAOFS
([c) to propose risk management strategies and form risk () IREEMRELRIEE  WEMERREIR
management solutions; and BRPZE R
(d)  to supervise the implementation of risk management works d HSIEBEMNRREBTIEEMBER
performed by each business units and verify the overall ETHRBRIE RS -
score.
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SUPERVISION AND ENHANCEMENT OF RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up basic procedures that cover the whole process of
risk management, connecting the channels of communication of risk
management information along the reporting lines and among various
departments and business units to ensure the timely, accurate and
complete communication of information and this has laid the foundation
for the supervision and enhancement of risk management.

The senior management of the Group, focusing on material risks,
material matters and material decisions, important management matters
and the business flow, supervises the work relating to the first-hand
information collection for risk management, risk assessment, risk
management strategies, critical control activities and the implementation
of risk management solutions. The risk management project team
carries out an annual review and examination on the implementation of
the works on risk management by different departments and business
units and its effectiveness for the year, assesses risk management
strategies and evaluates inter-departmental risk management solutions
and business units’ risk management solutions, proposes suggestions
for adjustments and improvements and issues evaluation and
recommendation reports which will be sent to the relevant senior
management in a timely manner.

MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE

The material risks that the Group may face which include macro-
economic risks, risks of inappropriate strategies for market competition,
risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price, risks of adjustments of
policies in relation to the environmental protection, economy and
industry, cybersecurity risks, risks of the coronavirus disease (“COVID-19”),
and climate change risks.

The potential risks of macro-economic risks arise from the effects of
macro-economy’s volatility and the pressure of inflation. The Group’s
corresponding measures on risk management include reviewing the
management strategies and mechanism for macro-economic risks;
reviewing the relevant mechanism on the collection of intelligence about
the changes in the external macro-economic environment; clearly
defining the macro-economic risk analysis session; analysing, reviewing,
adjusting and improving the strategies for managing macro-economic
risks in future.

36 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited PEIHBEEIZIRERAD

EREIENEEAE

AEEBERUEZREGRREREAREZ &
BZ LR SBINEBSEUNERESEE
BEEE BREABBORE - ERNTE
REARESIEEEHIERTEER -

AEBHSHRERBUERNAR - EABHNE
ARR - ERBEREBEREIRER - HARE
BE-FEANRE ARG BEREERE -
RIS REREEER D ENERIBIE
THS - AREEREHEEFHEBH SR
BENRREERETFERBRNEIIMET X
FERENRRK  HEREERIBETVG - 5
S EPIMEREN R EIRBR T FETE -
RUBERIERF - BRFIBNREARS &
FRxAEESREER -

AEEoEEEENEXRERM

AEBUEBRNENAMEOBRBICERR
TEEFRBEAERAR RUYRERZESRR -
BRECR  ICOBEBERRTEBRAERR - 81
L2 AR - 2019 BAR R EE ([COVID-19)) @k LA
ERIzE{CEE -

REEERRNECERELES LG EERENY
TERBEFRNVED - XEBRREHBRE
BRVEELERROSERBINESIEXT - &
SHNEEINR R A IR IR B SN ABER 1) - 85
EEELRECERRDITIRED » D7 - R5Y - 58
ENNERARNEECERRIEH R -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELOHRS

MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE (Continued)

The potential risks of inappropriate strategies for market competition
arise from the risks involved in the formulation of competition strategies
and risks involved in the collection of clients” information. The Group’s
risk management measures include reviewing the management
mechanism for market competition strategies; analysing the Company’s
position in market competition, reviewing the corresponding market
competition strategies; and timely devising and reviewing the
management strategies in response to the changes in the market
competition environment and submitting report thereon to management;
collecting the market competition information of new products and
offering suggestions on competition strategies.

The potential risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price arise because
the price of key raw materials purchased by the Company is easily
affected by the shortfall of refining capabilities, changes in
manufacturers’ power and labour cost structure, changes in the price of
resins made from coal and petrochemicals. The Group’s risk
management measures include clearly stating the risk management
strategies and mechanism for the fluctuation of raw materials price in
the relevant systems; collecting information in relation to the fluctuation
of raw materials price and releasing such information internally through
an established channel; regularly reporting and analysing the fluctuation
of raw materials price; clearly defining the analysis session for the
increased risks of fluctuation of raw materials price; analysing,
reviewing, adjusting and improving the management strategies for the
risks of fluctuation of raw materials price.

The potential risks of adjustments of policies in relation to the
environmental protection, economy and industry arise from the risks of
adjustments of environmental policies; risks of adjustments of
urbanisation policies; risks of adjustments of construction projects of
significant water works including water saving and water supplies; risks
of adjustments of real estate policies. The Group’s risk management
measures include reviewing the management strategies and
mechanism for risks involved in the adjustments of policies in relation to
the environmental protection, economy and industry; collecting
information in relation to changes in environmental protection, economy
and industry policies and releasing such information internally through
an established channel; reviewing the mechanism for monitoring and
collecting the information on laws and regulations that affect the
industry.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE (Continued)

The potential risks of cybersecurity risks arise from two aspects: on the
one hand, the vulnerability of networks to different kinds of cyber attacks
because of its own security defects; on the other hand, external and
internal risks of the Group. External risks mainly represent intentional or
unintentional damage and threats from outsiders, such as malicious
attacks by “hackers”, illegal interception of network data and
transmission of computer viruses. Internal risks mainly include misuse or
abuse of critical and sensitive information, theft, intentional or
unintentional disclosure of confidential information by employees. The
Group’s corresponding measures on risk management include
establishing online permissions; developing and using software for
communication within the Group; establishing two sites and three
centers and implementing dual-active and duplication of infra-city and
inter-city data centre; and strengthening development in four areas:
environment, data, terminals and cybersecurity.

The potential risks of COVID-19 arise from the impact of macroeconomic
fluctuations and the uncertainties in resumption of work and production
of upstream and downstream enterprises. Due to the outbreak of the
COVID-19, various industries suspended work and production and many
enterprises are facing the risk of interruption of capital flow and suffering
hardship. It has also brought a negative impact on foreign trade, thus
dragging down the economy of the PRC. The Group’s corresponding
measures include providing guidelines for epidemic prevention and
contfrol and resumption of work, strengthening employees’ awareness of
prevention and control, and enabling resumption of work and production
in an active and orderly manner; continually promoting full automation
of production bases; paying close attention to the needs of various areas
in epidemic prevention, and assuming corporate social responsibility,
supporting the construction of epidemic prevention hospitals in all
provinces and regions across the country and making in-kind donations.

Climate change risks are a kind of compound risk in the global risk
society. This risk can be classified into economic risk, political risk, social
risk, and ecological risk, etc. The Group’s corresponding measures on
risk management include improving environmental management,
practicing green operations, improving the efficiency of use of energy
resources, exercising strict management on waste discharge in the
production and operation process, actively transmitting the concept of
green development to the public, and building a green operation
roadmap to the harmonious coexistence of enterprises and the
environment.
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MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has formulated a set of program of continuing obligations on
information management and disclosure to formally regulate the
monitoring of inside information that arises during the course of its
current business development and has established the practice of
delivering such information to shareholders, the media and analysts.
When the Group handles the relevant matters, it will comply with
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission and the related provisions issued by regulatory
organisations and the Group has clearly stated that the unauthorised
use of confidential or inside information is prohibited. The Group has a
system of answering enquiries about the Group’s matters by external
parties, and has appointed and authorised the senior executives of the
Group to act as the Company’s spokesperson in response to enquiries
on a particular area.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group is committed to an open and transparent culture and has
formulated a “whistleblowing policy” whereby employees can report any
matters including misconduct, irregular conduct or fraud regarding
financial matters and accounting practices to the anti-fraud control unit
anonymously. According to the type of each reported case, the case will
be submitted to the relevant departments for investigation and reported
to the Audit Committee to ensure fair treatment fowards relevant matters.
This policy encourages employees to raise concerns without fear of
being accused. Any Shareholder or stakeholder can also report similar
concerns in writing or verbally in confidence to the anti-fraud control unit.

DIVIDENDS POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of dividends will be subject to the
Company’s discretion. Dividends may be paid only out of its distributable
reserves as permitted under the relevant laws. The Company has
adopted a general dividend policy of declaring and paying dividends on
a semi-annual basis of around 30% of its profit attributable to the owners
of the Company. The Board would review the Company’s dividend policy
from time to time considering factors including but not limited to debt
covenants, capital investment and business plan.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELOHRS

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the reporting period, the Company proposed to make certain
amendments to the memorandum and articles of association of
Company. The amendments were considered and approved by
shareholders at the annual general meeting on 17 June 2022. The
revised memorandum and articles of association of Company have been
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

THE SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETINGS AND PUTTING
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Act (as revised). However, pursuant to the Articles, the
Shareholder(s) may request for the convening of general meetings
following the procedures below:

. Any one or more Shareholder(s) (including a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee(s))) may request for the convening of general
meetings by written requisition as at the date of deposit of the
requisition, shares representing minimum of one-tenth of the
voting rights of the Company, on a one vote per share basis, in the
share capital of the Company. The written requisition shall be
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office,
the registered office. The requisition shall specify the object of the
meeting, the resolutions to be added to the meeting agenda, and
be signed by the requisitionist(s).

o The Board shall proceed to convene the general meeting within 21
days from the date of deposit of the requisition.

40 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited PEIHBEEIZIRERAD

REsEH

AR YRBEHRNREZH AL IEBEZENMR
HHANEH S TIEE] - 21857582022 F 6517 B £8
TeREBTAS LHRETBEEE - B8]
AATEBSEAMERBUSRBELZARATE
g o

ARERZ IR
BRRRAERRIRERS LIRLESE

REFBEFSQTE(EIBF KX - REABE
REARE LIREFNRFEE - AM - RIFSTEMHA -
RERTEE MEEERIBRELS -

o AL ENRB(BBRBITBEN(H
HRABAN)) TR EaEREEKRSERE
RS BEEBERBEKREZEED  FRALNE
RAGBRAPHRDFEILZER— E%ﬁﬁﬁ
N+DZ—BBRENRYD - FREEERE
ERNTNEBEZRSR Yhﬁ@i?
BRUSTIZHSR  ERESFMPSE
R > BREBHABAZZENRAEZEE
REVREE  WHERKASESE -

s FBREEXRBHR2AXA EBTERIAR
EpN=



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELOHRS

THE SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Confinued)

CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETINGS AND PUTTING
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
(Continued)

o If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which the meeting may be convened
by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition. All reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

o An annual general meeting shall be called by not less than 21
days’ notice in writing and all other general meetings shall be
called by not less than 14 days’ notice in writing. The notice of the
meeting shall specify the time, place, and agenda of the meeting,
particulars of the resolutions to be considered and in the case of
special business, the general nature of that business.

o Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director are available on the website of the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS’
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the Company to the
Board at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or by
email or through the Company’s investor relations whose contact details
are provided in the “Corporate Information” section of this report. In
addition, the Shareholders can contact Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, the Company’s branch share registrar, if they
have any enquiries about their shareholdings and entitlements to
dividend.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELOHRS

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of tfransparency in
communication with the Shareholders and investors in general, and will
review the Company’s shareholder communication policy annually.
Communication between the Company and Shareholders is conducted
through various channels, including interim and annual reports,
information published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.lesso.com) and general
meetings. The Company encourages Shareholders to attend the
Company’s general meetings.

The Company’s shareholder communication policy is available on the
website of the Company. Shareholders and investors can contact our
investor relations at ir@lesso.com for any inquiries about the Company.
Investor relations communicated regularly with the Board regarding
Shareholders and investors’ inquiries about the Company in order to
ensure that Shareholders and investors’ opinions and questions were
reflected, and when necessary, the opinions and questions will be on
the agenda of the board meeting for discussion.

The Company’s senior management endeavours to maintain an open
dialogue channel with the investment sector to ensure they have a
thorough understanding of the Company and its operations and
strategies. The Company has emphasised the importance of the function
of investor relations, engaged a dedicated independent third party to
maintain investor relations and conduct investor/analyst meetings from
time to time and led investors and analysts to visit its plants.

As regards to investor relations, the Group will actively conduct activities
related to investor relations in the future to strengthen its corporate
responsibility so that global investors can have an adequate knowledge
and understanding of the Company’s operating strategy, financial
performance and development prospects. The Company will actively
develop and maintain close relationship with investors, analysts and
media to achieve sound investor relations management.

The Company applies the principle of a quiet period in its investor
relations communications. During a quiet period, the Company does not
comment on market prospects or factors affecting business and
performance, or engage in discussion on events or trends related to the
reporting period. The Company will not initiate any meeting or
conference call with public in which these matters are discussed. A quiet
period starts at 60 days or 30 days prior to the disclosure of annual
results or interim results respectively, and lasts until the announcement
of the annual results or the interim results.

The Company considered this policy was effective implementation as
disclosed above.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERERENwmNAN

MARKET OVERVIEW

In 2022, the global economy was overshadowed by heightened
geopolitical tensions and the ongoing Covid-19 outbreak, and China
faced multiple challenges in its economic recovery. Domestic consumer
sentiment and investment performance were very weak due to the
frequent outbreaks of Covid-19 pandemic in the PRC and a series of
quarantine measures that have dealt a heavy blow to the economy. The
triple pressure of shrinking demand, supply shock and weakening
expectations has significantly dragged down the economic growth in the
PRC. According to the National Bureau of Statistics, China’s gross
domestic product (GDP) growth rate dropped sharply in 2022, with a
year-on-year growth of only 3.0% to approximately RMB121 trillion.

In 2022, in the face of complicated domestic and international situations,
by adhering to the general fundamental strategy of “pursuing progress
while ensuring stability”, the Chinese government continued to promote
the implementation of a package of policies for “stabilising the economy”
with the effective successive measures and it gave full play to the role of
the coordination mechanism for promoting effective investment in
important projects, especially infrastructure investment, which
undoubtedly played an important role in 2022 to reverse the downturn
trend of growth rate in consecutive years. At the meeting held in April
2022, the Central Committee of Finance and Economics proposed the
initiative of sparing no effort in expediting infrastructure construction and
developing modern infrastructure systems. In December, the State
Council issued the "Outline of Strategic Planning for Expanding Domestic
Demand”, which fully emphasised the important role of infrastructure in
expanding domestic demand, and explicitly stated the strengthening of
the construction of transportation, energy, water conservancy, logistics
and other infrastructure, and the systematical layout of new
infrastructure. In addition to the policy support, construction of various
infrastructure projects across the country is in full swing, In fact,
infrastructure investment maintained a relatively high growth rate in
2022, with a year-on-year increase of 9.4%, and remained its focus on
traditional infrastructure such as transportation, water conservancy and
municipal projects, driving the continuous and stable growth of the
construction and pipeline industries.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(SPEEREY S SaKiil

MARKET OVERVIEW (Continued)

The real estate industry encountered unprecedented challenges due to
the resurgent Covid-19 pandemic and the economic downturn, serious
suspension of many construction projects, coupled with the weakening
of medium- and long-term housing demand momentum, resulting in
sluggish sales and debt default crises among individual real estate
developers. In view of this, the Central Government introduced policies to
support the real estate industry during the year. Adhering to the principle
that “Houses are for living in, not for speculation”, the regulatory
authorities have issued various favorable policies, with increasing policy
supports in the areas ranging from demand side to enterprise side,
including three consecutive responses from the China Banking and
Insurance Regulatory Commission (CBIRC) on “the guaranteed delivery of
housing” within 7 days, the issuance of "16 Measures” from People’s
Bank of China to support the real estate market, and the China Securities
Regulatory Commission (CSRC)'s “3-pronged policy”, being interest rate
cuts, RRR reductions, reverse repurchases, etc., while also releasing
space for local city-specific policies. Despite the continuous improvement
in policies, the impact of the pandemic will last for a period of time, and
the real estate market will still be under pressure on adjustment in a
short term, resulting in a certain degree of impact on the building
materials and home improvement industry.

Since green industries and lifestyle have become a global trend affected
by the booming tide of carbon neutrality, the PRC government made
active efforts in the establishment of a sound economic system with
green and low-carbon circular development, promoted a comprehensive
green transformation of economic and social development, so as to
create green production and lifestyle to ensure the achievement of
“carbon emission peak” and “carbon neutrality” targets, which has led to
a boom in the environmental protection and new energy industries with
a promising future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(SPEEREY S SaKiil

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The year 2022 marked the 36th anniversary of China Lesso. As a leading
enterprise in the global piping and building materials industry, the Group
has always been operating under the business strategy of “taking quality
as the lifeline, leading with technology and aiming for customer
satisfaction”. In addition to focusing on product quality and persisting in
creativity, the Group placed emphasis on upgrading its businesses with
smart technology and driving its own development with technology in
response to changes, with an aim to creating high-value products and
services for the society. Over the past year, China Lesso has worked hard
and strived to be the industry leader, achieving a win-win situation in
terms of brand and reputation and earning praise and recognition in the
industry and community, such as the “2021 Best Green Syndicated Loan
Award”, “2022 Capital Market Influential Enterprise”, “2022 Top Five
Listed Companies of Supporting Supply Chain for Real Estate by
Investment Potential”, 2022 Preferred Suppliers for Top 500 Real Estate
Developers by Overall Strength”, and “2022 China House Champion
Chart — Leading Brand in the Industry”. The Group was also on the list of
“China’s Top 500 Brand Value” for nine consecutive years, and ranked
“21st among Top 200 Enterprises in China Light Industry” and “7th among
Top 100 Science & Technology Enterprises in China Light Industry”. In
addition, the Group also won the"First Prize of Guangdong Science and
Technology Award in the category of Technology Invention Award” and
the “Silver Award of 2022 Canton Fair Design Award (CF Award) for
Building Materials and Home Decoration Category”. These awards fully
reflected the Group’s outstanding performance in business reputation,
scientific research and innovation, value creativity, brand awareness and
market competitiveness.

The Group completed the brand strategy upgrade at the beginning of
this year fo fulfil its brand’s commitment to “Sustaining a Healthy, Scenic
Living Space”. Looking ahead, the Group will maintain piping
manufacturing as its core business while expanding its businesses of
building materials and home improvement, environmental protection
and new energy. The Group is committed to building a healthy urban
environment and living space together with the government and various
industries in society through technological innovation, while
strengthening the practice of its slogan “Envisioning the Better, Building
the Future”, so as to provide high-quality products and services to
residents around the world.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(SPEEREY S SaKiil

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued)

In order to support China’s “2030 carbon emission peak, 2060 carbon
neutrality” goal, China Lesso is firmly committed to a green, low-carbon
and high-quality development path. The Group proactively set
environmental management targets, fully recognised the various
opportunities and challenges posed by climate change, and developed
effective measures, such as integrating the concept of low-carbon and
environmental protection into the whole process of operations,
implementing energy saving and reducing consumption in various
aspects such as product design, green factories, and low-carbon
production. The Group has also reduced waste gas, waste water,
industrial residue, and noise emissions, and improved the efficiency of
resource utilisation, to reduce the impact on the environment, while at
the same time making full use of its professional advantages to protect
the environment and doing all that the Group can to develop green
industries, so as to make contribution to the creation of green and livable
cities.

The Group has incorporated green concepts info its production
operations and its daily office activities, advocates paperless office, and
encourages best practices to reduce the use of office supplies, thus
effectively improving the efficiency of resource utilisation, and creating
the harmonious and symbiotic development for environment and
enterprise through green operation.

The Group’s mission is to “Improve and Enhance the Living Quality”. In
addition to enhancing its ability to fulfil its social responsibility and
strengthen its corporate governance and social responsibility
management, the Group makes innovative management a new engine
for its business development, and further improves the control of
production process to reinforce its business foundation. All of these
efforts will give impetus to green and sustainable urban development.

46 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited PEIHBEEIZIRERAD

BTSN (|)

RZFFPEI[ 2030 BEEE - 2060 X PA0 ) BYEIR -
PEMEREARERBENSESEEZREMR -
AEBERAITCREEEER  £OH3IR RS
{E RSB BB HIE B MEVEE B -
RIEWRRNDIESMAEEERTBIE  £E®D
5T MBIK - BEESSERNENANRE
255 - BE=FNRSHN - B ERERNE
MBOHREHFE  DBNAEXERRER
BRE  ZNARKSESR  RARKSEED
EBWHERNE -

AEBUETRLEEESROBHADPRAKSIER
RER - BEEECHD  RBSEHORAF
MR BRRDEREFR  LIRSESENE
FERREAEHESE -

REBRF [BORABHRESABNEERE )
RIEEED - AUTIIRETTISEELVED &
BRI EXEBNEEERR LA EIEREH
RIS E—HEALER TS LREELER
> REMRETRFEREEAE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIREST R R DM
BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued) FEIEER @)
Revenue by Region* WA BB E5*

Revenue % of total revenue

LUN IERIBIA %
2022 2021 2022

RMB million RMB million
AR¥EET AREBET

Southern China ey 15,603 17,036 18.4)% 50.7% 53.1%
Southwestern China i3] 2,728 2,968 (8.1% 8.9% 9.3%
Central China Bl 3n2 3,380 17.9)% 10.1% 10.5%
Eastern China HEED 2,51 2,338 7.4% 8.2% 7.3%
Northern China = 2,384 2,667 (10.6)% 7.7% 8.3%
Northwestern China [iiy|d 1,679 1,635 2.7% 5.5% 5.1%
Northeastern China &1 739 912 (19.0/% 2.4% 2.9%
Outside China CPEIEIN 2,01 1122 79.2% 6.5% 3.5%
Total Rst 30,767 32,058 (4.0/% 100.0% 100.0%
# Details of the scope of coverage of each region are set out in note 4 fo consolidated ~ * SHENEEHEFH BEH NS UFERRMETL -

financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the number of the Group’s  &ZF2022F 12331 0ILFE » AEBRZESZI
independent and exclusive first-tier distributors across the country  BUBIIER —RICHBEEIBZE 2,786 (20211 :
increased fo 2,786 (2021: 2,603). Southern China remained the Group’s ~ 2,603%) - AEBNEEMB#IBERERTIS -
maijor revenue-contributing market, whose revenue accounted for 50.7%  ZREZERMBEAEERUIA R 50.7% (20214 :
of the Group's total revenue (2021: 53.1%), while the revenue from other  53.1%) » E I E BIUN A S 677 49.3% (20211F -
regions accounted for 49.3% (2021: 46.9%). 46.9%) °

Revenue by Business Unit WNIZZEFHE S
Revenue % of total revenue

ON ISR %
2022 2021 2022

RMB million RMB million
ARBBET ARESETT

Plastic piping sysfems BREERMR 25,607 27,457 16.7)% 83.2% 85.6%
Building materials and EvRE

home improvement 2,705 2,751 (1.7)% 8.8% 8.6%
Others* Hir 2,455 1,850 32.7% 8.0% 5.8%
Total R5t 30,767 32,058 (4.0/% 100.0% 100.0%

#  "Others” include businesses of environmental engineering and  * [Efe) BRRE TR REOABRR - RS R E A

. ) ) ) o
other related services, financial services and others. RBS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(SPEEREY S SaKiil

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued)

Despite the uncertainties in the global economic recovery and the further
intensification of market competition in 2022, China Lesso continued to
adhere to the principle of developing business with prudence, with more
focus on refining its business. Leveraging its expertise in piping
production, the Group kept expanding upstream and downstream
production chains to emerge from an enterprise that only manufactured
pipes into a global brand ecosystem that covers the diversified industries
of piping system, building materials and home improvement,
environmental protection, agricultural applications, supply chain services
platform and new energy, to achieve synergies among its various
business segments and broaden its revenue base. The Group has also
established a dual-cycle growth model and actively expanded overseas
markets to ensure its sound and healthy development.

During the reporting period, the business development of China Lesso
was affected to a certain extent by the complicated and changing macro
environment, the recurring Covid-19 pandemic at home and abroad, and
the downturn of the real estate industry in the PRC. In particular, the
quarantine measures imposed by many regions in the PRC due to the
serious outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic in the fourth quarter, resulted in
the suspension of production at some of the Group’s production bases,
which severely affected production operations and logistics
transportation. However, with the “preventing pandemic and promoting
production” becoming the norm, the Group has maintained a stable
business development by actively deploying various tasks in accordance
with the government’s relevant pandemic prevention requirements and
the spirit of innovation of all staff despite the difficulties. The Group’s
revenue was RMB30,767 million (2021: RMB32,058 million). Gross profit
was RMB8,241 million (2021: RMB8,448 million) and gross profit margin
was 26.8% (2021: 26.4%), mainly due to the timely adjustment on selling
prices of the Group's products for addressing the fluctuation of the raw
material’s price, allowing the gross profit margin to maintain at a
reasonable and healthy level.

On the one hand, the Group actively promoted automation
transformation and smart production by upgrading production
technology and equipment, while formulated and adopted effective
procurement strategies to control the costs of raw materials and
production, thereby maximising the benefits from economies of scale. In
addition, the Group has been able to achieve stable business
development and profitability by enhancing its operational efficiency,
optimising its product portfolio and increasing its market share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEEFmER DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued)

During the reporting period, the Group’s EBITDA increased by 1.2% year-
on-year to RMB5,786 million (2021: RMB5,720 million), and the EBITDA
margin was 18.8% (2021: 17.8%). Profit before tax decreased by 16.2%
year-on-year to RMB3,190 million (2021: RMB3,807 million). Net profit
margin was 8.2% (2021: 9.4%). Profit attributable to owners of the
Company decreased by 17.3% year-on-year to RMB2,517 million (2021:
RMB3,044 million). The decrease in profit was mainly attributable to
factors such as the impairment provision for the Group’s receivables
from customers, interest rate increase on borrowings, and increase in
the consolidated cost of products due to significant price fluctuations of
raw materials and energy. Basic earnings per share was RMB0.82 (2021:
RMBO0.99). The effective tax rate was 21.2% (2021: 20.7%).

To express gratitude to the Shareholders for their support and to share
with them the fruits of the Group’s endeavours, the Board recommended
the payment of a final dividend of HK30 cents per share for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK26 cents per share).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS

In 2022, given the consistent introduction of growth stabilisation policies
by the central government, the prosperity of infrastructure sector, as an
important pillar of growth stabilisation, continued to improve, especially
under the Chinese government’s strategy of starting investment in certain
infrastructure projects moderately ahead of schedule, urban renovation
of old communities and the construction of oil and gas pipeline network
and water network have brought a lot of incremental demand for
infrastructure investment. China Lesso, which has been deeply engaged
in the piping industry for 36 years, has fully captured the development
opportunities brought by the new infrastructure to continuously develop
the piping systems and accelerate the development of smart pipeline
networks. At the same time, the Group continued to strengthen strategic
partnerships with government departments, leading central government-
owned enterprises and state-owned enterprises in the infrastructure
sector, while proactively investing in national projects of strategic
importance and urban redevelopment projects, to achieve synergies and
lead the transformation of the pipeline industry, thus further
consolidating the Group’s leading position in the piping system market.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued) EFZODEEREE (@)
PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued) BRIEERR (@)
Revenue by Region WA 1 E &S

Revenue % of revenue

LUN EBA%
2022 2021 2022

RMB million RMB million
ARBEET ARBBETT

Southern China ERY 12,839 14,106 9.00% 50.1% 51.4%

Other than Southern China FERPIIME 1,750 12,590 16.7)% 45.9% 45.8%

Outside China PEEIN 1,018 761 33.8% 4.0% 2.8%

Total 15t 25,607 27,457 6.7)% 100.0% 100.0%
Revenue by Product Application BN IZETERED

Revenue % of revenue
WA ERA %
2022 2021 2022

RMB million RMB million
AREEET ARESETT

Water supply #HK 9,968 10,358 (3.8)% 38.9% 37.7%
Drainage K 9,677 10,386 16.8)% 37.8% 37.8%
Power supply and BOHERBEH

telecommunications 4,206 4,801 12.4)% 16.4% 17.5%
Gas fransmission YRR b= 461 473 2.6)% 1.8% 1.7%
Others* Ho# 1,295 1,439 19.9)% 5.1% 5.3%
Total 5t 25,607 27,457 (6.7)% 100.0% 100.0%
# “Others” include agricultural applications, floor heating and fire services. # [Efb] BIFRA  WERHES -

During the year, the plastic piping systems business recorded revenue of IRER » BREBAMREFREBWAR AR
RMB25,607 million (2021: RMB27,457 million), accounting for 83.2% of ~ 256.07f27T(20214F : AR #527457/=270) > 16K
the total revenue of the Group (2021: 85.6%). EBERINABI83.2% (20211F : 85.6%) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEEFmER DM

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

Average Selling Price, Sales Volume, and Revenue by Product
Material

EIZOEASRE (|)
BRIEERR ()
BESUNEISNTISER HERKASE

Average selling price Sales volume Revenue
THER #8 KA
2021 2022 200 2022 2021
Change Tonne Tonne Change  RMB million RN\B million
29 [ I8 25 \R¥EER
PVC products PCER 8,825 9,143 3.3% 1,776,304 1,853,687 420% 15,675 16,949 75%
Non-PVC products® JEPVCER? 16,122 15118 6.6% 616,069 695,068 4% 9,932 10,508 5.5%
Total st 10,704 10,773 0.6/% 2,392,373 2,548,755 6.1)% 25,607 21457 6.7)%
# “Non-PVC"” plastic pipes and pipe fittings mainly refer to those made of PE or PP-R. # [JEPVC] BRIE B R ESHTESPETPP-RE o

There was a decrease in market demand due to the impact of many
factors such as the suspension of construction projects, logistics delays,
and quarantine policies on the industry as a result of the frequent
COVID-19 outbreaks in the PRC, especially the resurgent pandemic
conditions in various places in the fourth quarter. The Group’s certain
production bases had to suspend production and affected shipments,
which has affected the sales of the Group’s plastic pipes and pipe fittings
to a certain extent. During the year, sales volume of the plastic piping
systems decreased by 6.1%. In terms of product materials, sales volume
of PVC products decreased by 4.2% to 1,776,304 tonnes (2021: 1,853,687
tonnes), while that of non PVC products decreased by 11.4% to 616,069
tonnes (2021: 695,068 tonnes). Revenue from sales of PVC products and
non-PVC products decreased by 7.5% to RMB15,675 million (2021:
RMB16,949 million) and 5.5% to RMB9,932 million (2021: RMB10,508
million) respectively.

During the reporting period, despite the overall decline in sales volume
of the Group, the gross profit margin was maintained at a reasonable
and healthy level due to the gradual decline in raw material prices in the
second half of the year and the adoption of effective procurement
strategies by the Group to actively control the costs of raw materials and
manufacturing, as well as the timely adjustments to the selling prices, so
as to maximise its economies of scale. The Group decreased the
average selling price of its plastic piping system by 0.6% to RMB10,704
per tonne (2021: RMB10,773 per tonne). The gross profit margin of its
plastic piping system business was 27.5% (2021: 25.9%).
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

The Group has been embracing intelligentization in order to keep up
with the times and to conduct the upgrading of its business. Therefore,
the Group has been expediting the adoption of smart manufacturing by
proactively building 21 smart factories across the world that integrate
“loT, smart control and automated production”. During the reporting
period, the Group’s annual designed capacity for manufacturing plastic
piping systems expanded from 3.20 million tonnes at the end of 2021 to
3.26 million tonnes at the end of 2022, and the capacity utilisation rate
during the year was approximately 74.4%.

Always adhering to the green development philosophy, China Lesso
advocates low energy consumption and high energy efficiency
production, and is committed to leading the industry towards green and
sustainable development through technological innovation. During the
reporting period, Guangdong Liansu Technology Industrial Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Group, was successfully selected as the 2021 National
Green Factory, fully demonstrating the government's recognition of the
Group's effort to promote green development in the industry. In addition,
with the spirit of innovation, the Group has been actively promoting the
innovation of pipeline technology and continuously developing new
products that accommodate market demands by synchronising the
global scientific research force and continuously increasing the
investment in innovation, research and development. It has achieved
quality improvement, cost reduction and efficiency increase, and
promoted the innovative development of the industry while improving its
competitiveness, so as to make positive contribution to the improvement
of people’s living standard.

Under the circumstance of “rural revitalisation in line with national
policies” , the Group leveraged its edge of the principal business and
continued to provide high-standard pipeline application support for
large-scale agricultural farming and marine aquaculture, and expanded
into various fields of agriculture with its strong technical strength and
advantages of pipeline product system, which has given new impetus to
the transformation and upgrading of agriculture and sustainable
development of green ecology, as well as enriching the Group’s income
sources and expanding its market share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEEFmER DM

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

The overseas markets are slowly emerging from the shadow of the
pandemic and are gradually opening up, as evidenced by the certain
degree of recovery in business activities and demand in different
regions. The Group continued to expand overseas markets with a focus
on the Southeast Asia. It will tap into the domestic demand of such
markets and capitalise on the infrastructure development there. In
August, the Phase 1 of the production base in Indonesia was officially put
into operation, becoming a driving force for the Group’s accelerated
development in the Southeast Asian market. With localised production of
products, the Group will serve local customers more efficiently and
enhance the brand awareness and influence of “Lesso” in the region.
With the completion of the trial production and commissioning of the
Phase 1 of the production base in Indonesia, the Group will further
optimise its overseas layout, widen the service scope and sales pattern
across China and radiating to the different parts of the world, and
accelerate the pace of localised development in overseas market.
Meanwhile, the production base in Cambodia was put into operation by
the end of 2022. Furthermore, the Group is steadily pushing forward with
the construction of production bases in such countries as Thailand,
Malaysia, Philippines and Bangladesh, while the production base in
Indonesia will proceed with the construction of the Phase II.

In 2023, investment in new infrastructure has become a strong support
for stabilising economic growth in the post-pandemic era, and the
investment in manufacturing has been driven by technological innovation
and green transformation. As a result, the layout of new infrastructure
development has been speeded up across the PRC and new
infrastructure will continue to demonstrate emerging potential. The
Group will fully grasp the market opportunities from the new
infrastructure investment to expand its plastic piping systems business,
thereby giving strong support to the development of urban infrastructure
and projects on improving people’s livelihood. In addition, the Group
keeps on seeking various strategic partners, including government
departments, central government-owned enterprises and private
businesses. Such move will not only create mutual benefit and a win-win
situation, but also help further consolidate the Group’s market
leadership.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

In the future, the Group will continue to drive all-round development with
innovation and breakthroughs, build the “benchmark factory” by
strengthening technological innovation, developing intelligent products,
promoting smart manufacturing, while maintaining and enhancing the
existing product competitiveness, so as to build itself into a model
enterprise of operational excellence. In addition to further strengthening
the medium- and long-term capabilities, the Group is required to
enhance its capabilities in external development and resource
integration, and promote its upgrade towards intelligentization and
greening, thereby strengthening its sustainable development
capabilities. Overall, the management is fully confident about the future
development of the plastic piping system business segment and believes
that it will continue to deliver solid business performance to the Group.

BUILDING MATERIALS AND HOME IMPROVEMENT
PRODUCTS

In 2022, the downward pressure on the economy still remained in the
PRC real estate market since 2021. Affected by various internal and
external factors, the dampened consumer confidence in housing
purchase and weakening purchasing power have had a material impact
on the property sales, resulting in a sharp decline in the prosperity of the
real estate industry. In addition, the suspension of a number of pre-sale
housing construction projects due to the COVID-19 pandemic, strained
capital chains of developers and even collapsed, have led to a decrease
in the number of new commercial housing projects and a slow progress
for projects under construction. As a result, the scale of the real estate
market was rapidly declining with myriad challenges ahead, which in
turn affected the business development of the building materials and
home improvement industry in the PRC to a certain extent. During the
reporting period, revenue from the Group’s building materials and home
improvement business decreased by 1.7% year on year to RMB2,705
million, representing 8.8% of the Group’s total revenue, due to the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic, the insufficient demand and purchasing
power in the real estate market with no recovery signs in transaction
volume.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEEFmER DM

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

BUILDING MATERIALS AND HOME IMPROVEMENT
PRODUCTS (Continued)

As a number of large-scale private property developers were mired in
financial difficulties, the Group has actively adjusted its business strategy
to diversify its customer portfolio and proactively explored more
infrastructure projects which were mainly undertaken by government
and state-owned enterprises to reduce the proportion of private property
customers, thereby minimising the Group’s business risks. In addition,
the Group further strengthened its relationship with premium real estate
companies as its existing customers on the one hand, and vigorously
explored the possibility of cross-sector collaboration with various
industries on the other, in order to bring a more stable source of income
for the building materials and home improvement business.

During the reporting period, the Group signed a strategic cooperation
agreement with a B2B building materials procurement and trading
platform and a well-known supply chain enterprise respectively, aiming
to achieve a win-win situation of resource sharing, cost reduction and
efficiency enhancement through its cooperation with different partners in
various aspects.

Looking forward to 2023, as the impact of the pandemic subsides, it is
expected that the domestic macro economy will achieve an overall
improvement, and under the circumstance that China will continue to
adhere to the principle that “Houses are for living in, not for speculation”,
with continuous improvement in the policies on both the supply and
demand sides, the policy support is expected to further increase, thus
gradual stabilisation and recovery on the real estate market is also
expected to be seen. The Group will remain its focus on product quality
and optimise one-stop integrated solution and services, while promoting
green construction which is conducive to health and cultural
development through diversified high-quality building materials and
home improvement products and services. Meanwhile, the Group will
strengthen its relationships with existing customers as well as actively
explore new customers with strong capital strength to support sales
growth. In addition, the Group will give full play to the synergy between
the pipeline business and its building materials and home improvement
business, step up the cultivation of technical talents, increase investment
in scientific research and innovate and upgrade eco-friendly products,
expecting to restore growth of the business of building materials and
home improvement products as soon as possible.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
OTHERS

Environmental Protection Business

The environmental protection industry is not only the key for improving
the quality of the ecological environment, but also an important support
for the government to achieve the goal of carbon emission peak and
carbon neutrality. With the continuous increase of the government’s
efforts in ecological environmental protection and governance, the
environmental protection industry in the PRC saw an enhancement in its
strategic position as its market potential has been expanded rapidly.
Thus, the Group has been diligently developing its environmental
protection business. However, COVID-19 pandemic continuously recurred
and the downward pressure on the economy has been increased in
2022, coupled with the weakening investment sentiment, market
development was hampered, and project implementation was curtailed
or delayed, resulting in a decrease in hazardous waste production.
During the reporting period, the Group’s environmental protection
business recorded a revenue of RMB348 million.

During the reporting period, the Group focused on expanding the
environmental protection business by securing leading enterprises as
new customers in the traditional industries. In the urban service sector,
the Group mainly developed the markets of key regions and actively
provided regional environmental consulting and design services,
strengthening the traditional core business of the Group to lay a solid
foundation for the sustainable development of its business in the future.
In addition, the Group is committed to exploring new business
development, mainly on the businesses of the treatment and operation
of water environment, water ecology, and soil and mine remediation,
thus aligning its development with national policies. In the future, the
Group will continue to explore the opportunities of servicing government
projects when developing the market, with a focus on such fields as the
agricultural sectors, the treatment of soil, maintenance of water quality
and provision of technical services, creating better conditions for its
future development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
OTHERS (Continued)

Environmental Protection Business (Continued)

Besides, capitalising on the national policy adjustment of including
aluminum ash into the list of hazardous waste, the Group successfully
established its presence of environmental protection business in Jiangsu,
Guangdong and Hunan provinces, among which the solid waste
disposal base in Foshan was officially put into operation in July, and the
project of the base for comprehensive utilisation of renewable resources
in processing industry in Hunan Miluo also commenced its construction
at the end of July, and is expected to be put into trial operation within
2023. The Hunan Miluo project is one of the preferred projects of the
local government as well as a major strategic decision of the Group’s
environmental protection business to “deepen its regional presence and
expand nationwide”. In future, the Group will continue to develop the
Chinese market to further expand its market shares. The Group not only
marks a major step forward in its strategic objective of becoming a
leading international and domestic integrated service provider in the
environmental protection industry, but also lays the foundation for the
Group's future development.

Supply Chain Service Platform Business

The supply chain service platform is a transnational platform tailor-made
by the Group for the Chinese manufacturers engaged in the
manufacturing of building materials and home improvement and
consumer goods to step into overseas markets, with a focus on the
Southeast Asian market. In addition to promoting the products, the
Group also provides supporting services such as marketing, brand
promotion and development planning consultation to these
manufacturers. With the end of the international pandemic control and
the expansion of the related businesses, in particular of the holding of
Shenzhen EDA Cloud Technologies Co., Ltd., the supply chain services
platform recorded an increase in revenue despite the fluctuation of
global pandemic conditions. During the reporting period, revenue from
the supply chain services platform business increased by 11.9% to
RMB958 million.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
OTHERS (Continued)

Supply Chain Service Platform Business (Continued)

In response to the rapid changes in the social environment and business
model in recent years, the Group has been adjusting its business layout
and optimising its operation management. The Group’s current malls are
located in four Southeast Asian countries, including Bangkok in Thailand,
Tangerang in Indonesia, Yangon in Myanmar, and Phnom Penh in
Cambodia, with the phase 1 of these properties being ready for rental
and operation. The Dubai Logistics Centre and the Auburn project in
Sydney are both in the pre-operational stage, with the Group taking the
lead in the Dubai Logistics Centre by adopting the rental operation
contracting model, which has achieved very good results.

Looking forward to 2023, with gradual recovery in consumer confidence,
the management is confident that, the supply chain service platform
business, as another major commercial real estate segment of the
Group, will be developing steadily. Looking ahead, the Group plans to
further expand the distribution network in Southeast Asia after taking into
account the business development by driving the long-term development
of such business segment.

New Energy Business

In 2022, China continued to deepen the supply-side reform in the
photovoltaic industry and accelerated the advancement of smart
manufacturing and modernisation of the industry, maintaining a stable
and positive development momentum throughout the year, which
strongly supported the smooth implementation of “carbon emission
peak” and “carbon neutrality”. As green and sustainable development
have become a global consensus, the new energy industry has huge
market potential. Therefore, the Group’s actively developed the new
energy industry, on the one hand, it can utilise the Group’s excess
production resources in a proper way and, on the other hand, leverage
the Group’s pipeline sales channels resources, which is also of great
significance to the overall development in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEEFmER DM

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
OTHERS (Continued)

New Energy Business (Continued)

In early January 2022, the Group announced that Guangdong Lesso
Banhao New Energy Technology Group Co., Ltd. (“Lesso Banhao”) has
entered into the photovoltaic industry to develop a new growth engine
for the Group. During the reporting period, the Group successfully
entered into strategic cooperation agreements with a number of state-
owned enterprises and central government-owned enterprises, including
China Construction Fourth Engineering Division Corp. Ltd., China
Construction Fifth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd., Power Construction
Corporation of China, and CLP Engineering Limited to jointly explore the
photovoltaic market. The management expects the Company and its
strategic partners to fully utilise their respective strengths to work with
each other for mutual support, synergistic development and mutual
benefits in various aspects of the photovoltaic industry, so as to provide
strong impetus to the restructuring of energy source and the green, low-
carbon development.

The first production line of Lesso Banhao started a trial run in April 2022,
with the commencement of product certification, and its products were
officially launched for sale in July 2022. Lesso Banhao has been
gradually establishing a comprehensive production, supply and sales
system with four production bases in China and Indonesia,
demonstrating a strong supply capacity. In addition, supported by the
extensive sales and marketing channels of China Lesso across the PRC,
Lesso Banhao has more than 500 distributors, over 1,000 stores and
nearly 100 specialty stores for the sales of its photovoltaic products. The
Group has also set up overseas sales centers and formed sales teams in
16 countries to expand into various overseas markets.

As of 31 December 2022, Lesso Banhao has participated in the
construction of 90 photovoltaic power station projects, of which 78
projects in the PRC and 12 projects in overseas market. Lesso Banhao
has invested 16 power stations with an installed capacity of up to
12.5MW. During the reporting period, Lesso Banhao has recorded
RMB589 million of revenue and laying a solid foundation for its future
development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(SPEEREY S SaKiil

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
OTHERS (Continued)

New Energy Business (Continued)

Although the new energy business is still at an early stage of
development and contributes an insignificant percentage to the Group’s
revenue, the management believes that with the increasing investment
and policy support from the government in the new energy industry, a
high growth trend with huge business potential in the photovoltaic
industry has been formed. Therefore, Lesso Banhao will actively develop
competitive production capacity and enhance its technology
development capability. Furthermore, it will continue to strengthen
partnership with central government-owned and state-owned power
investment enterprises nationwide to explore new modes of cooperation,
and secure more major resource development projects by cooperating
with government, while making every effort to build a new channel
construction and marketing network for new energy business, with a
view to eventually expanding its new energy business in scale to
become a major driving force for the Group’s future revenue.

SUMMARY

2023 will be a year with opportunities and challenges. Though the macro
environment, is expected to be improved, given high uncertainty remains
in the current global economy, China Lesso will continue to adhere to the
development principle of sound operation, and focus on the
development of new business opportunities under the directions of
“following the trend with a focus on piping system and home
improvement, smart manufacturing and green energy”, while actively
expanding its core businesses. The Group will strive fo create a strong,
stable and healthy business growth point, strengthen its management
foundation to improve quality and efficiency and keep enhancing the
quality of its operations and profitability, so as to generate long-term
returns for Shareholders.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the reporting period, the Group’s capital expenditure was
approximately RMB4,987 million, which was primarily used for
improvement of automated facilities in production bases, expansion of
the existing production bases, construction of certain investment
properties and the facilities acquired in business combination.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEEFmER DM

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group continued to adopt prudent financial policies. Finance, fund
utilisation and fund raising activities of the Group are subject to effective
centralised management and supervision. The Group keeps reasonable
gearing level and adequate liquidity.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total debts [i.e.
borrowings, lease liabilities and debt component of convertible loans) of
RMB20,614 million, of which 36.3% was denominated in US dollar, 16.0%
was denominated in HK dollar, 46.4% was denominated in RMB, 0.9%
was denominated in Australian dollar and 0.4% was denominated in
other currencies. The Group’s borrowings are subject to effective interest
rates ranging from 2.80% to 6.37% per annum with maturity periods
ranging from within one year to more than five years. The Group’s
Gearing Ratio stood at a healthy level of 47.7%.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s total equity increased to
RMB22,590 million. The Group’s current assets and current liabilities
were RMB23,993 million and RMB21,447 million, respectively. The
Group’s Current Ratio decreased to 1.12 from 1.17 as at 31 December
2021, while Quick Ratio decreased to 0.82 from 0.84 as at 31 December
2021.

The Board believes the Group will be able to continue to generate
positive cash flows from its operations. With cash and bank deposits,
including restricted cash, of RMB7,362 million as well as unutilised
banking facilities, the Board considers that the Group has sufficient
working capital for its operation and future development.

The Group had no material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation
and no hedging had been arranged during the period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEEFmER DN

CHARGE ON ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the secured bank loans are secured
by land and its concession rights of a subsidiary, leasehold lands and
buildings of subsidiaries, loan receivables of a subsidiary, the guarantee
provided by shareholders of a subsidiary, the concession rights of a
subsidiary and personal guarantee provided by a shareholder of that
subsidiary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any significant
confingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group employed a total of
approximately 19,690 employees including directors. Total staff costs
were RMB2,409 million during the reporting period. The Group ensures
that the remuneration packages for employees are determined based
on their work performance, professional experience and the prevailing
industry practice. Discretionary year-end bonus and shares award may
be distributed to employees based on individual performance. Other
benefits to employees include medical insurance, retirement scheme
and fraining programmes.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group held 26.1% equity interest in
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (“Xingfa Aluminium”) (Stock Code:
98). Xingfa Aluminium is one of the leading aluminium profile
manufacturers in China. The Group considers Xingfa Aluminium not only
serves as a valuable investment with sustainable returns, but also as a
good strategic investment. With extensive experience in the business of
construction materials and industrial materials, Xingfa Aluminium has
established various kinds of sales channels and a diverse customer
base. This may create long-term commercial synergies with the Group's
businesses to broaden its sales channels and expand its customer base,
and enrich the Group’s comprehensive portfolio of products and services.
This can facilitate the Group’s business diversification and reinforce its
market leadership. During the reporting period, Xingfa Aluminium
recorded a revenue of RMB16,933 million, and profit attributable to the
shareholders of Xingfa Aluminium was RMB458 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEEFmER DM

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS (Continued)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment properties
were RMB8,027 million. Increase in investment properties was mainly
attributable to the construction on certain investment properties under
development of RMB1,422 million, exchange gain on translation of
RMB243 million, and set-off with disposal of a vacant land in Texas, US
of RMB332 million, during the reporting period.

Among these investment properties, the properties in Toronto, Canada,
Long Island, US and Auburn district of Sydney are existing properties; the
construction of first-phase projects in Thailand, Myanmar, Cambodia
and Indonesia have completed; and other properties are under rezoning
or at the planning stage of development.

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

At the end of reporting period, the Group held long-term and short-term
financial investments of approximately RMB2,602 million (2021:
RMB2,031 million) and RMB683 million (2021: RMB823 million),
respectively. The investment portfolio is comprised of 50.8% in listed
equity securities (issued by (i) PRC-based companies of: home
improvement and furnishings shopping malls operating, chemical raw
materials processing and property management; and (ii) United
Kingdom based company of automotive manufacturer), 1.0% in listed
debt securities, 5.0% in unlisted debt securities, 0.5% in stock funds and
42.7% in unlisted equity securities. Each of these investments has a
carrying amount accounting to less than 5% for the Group’s total assets
as at 31 December 2022.

During the reporting period, the Group recognised a unrealised mark-to-
market valuation loss of approximately RMB51 million due to volatility of
the global capital market and recognised approximately RMB51 million
of exchange loss on franslation. Income from the portfolio amounted to
approximately RMB55 million in the reporting period, representing
dividend and interest incomes.

The Group will study the market and information of the prospective
investees cautiously before investment decisions making. The Group will
also monitor the performance of its investees closely and regularly after
purchases and will adjust the investment strategy in a cautious manner
to minimise the impact of market voldatility on the Group as and when
necessary.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant
investments at the end of the reporting period.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESERS

Set out below is the report presented by the Board together with the
Group's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out in
notes 47, 17 and 18 respectively to consolidated financial statements.
Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business, the
Group’s environmental policies can be found in the "Chairman’s
Statement”, “Corporate Governance Report”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and “Sustainable Development Report”. This discussion
forms part of the Directors’ Report.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate social responsibility progress and
performance in 2022 are disclosed in the separate sustainable
development report which will be available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange at the same time as the publication of
this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 86 to 234.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK30 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Proposed Final
Dividend”) to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 19 May 2023, subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on Wednesday, 10 May 2023 (the "2023 AGM").
It is expected that the Proposed Final Dividend will be paid on Thursday,
25 May 2023.

The total dividend for 2022 amounts to a total of HK30 cents per share
(2021: HK38 cents per share), which represents a payout ratio of 33.0%
(2021: 31.7%) of the profit attributable to the Shareholders for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

64 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited PEIHBEEIZIRERAD

P TIRESSIRENREEAAEBEFH 20227
12 B3 BIEFEENESIGRSUHBRE °

FERENREORR

ARINEBRFBRRELR - HEBWEAT
MEAIRGEEFNEFFROBBRIRSY
FEIRRMIEEA7 - 7TR18 - BRAS X E—D
SmEDIT(BEEEAEBMBEREZRARKRA
BIRRNR 5 « AEBXRBARIEREE B
SIMRAEBRERR) UR[ERRSE) [T
XE0WS ) [BEBIRROIT] K [IRHESE
BRSE |PER - HEImBNESZRS< 8D

a5 RRRIRS

BEAEER2022FHNEEMTSETERRKE
B BEAERINEARS AR RAR T RERAT
B TIENTRHEERERS WS

E 3 )N Sa T

AREBHZE2022F12331 8 LFEIPRA R AE
BRZONE IR REIRE 862 234BNIRS
FERFTM o

BESEFEO2023FT 58198 (2871) S34AAQ
DRE MOV EIRIUEZ 2022 F12 3318 1EF
ERBRIBER 0B TERKHARSR]) » #E
BERERANT2023F 58108 (28H=) 81K
BITHREEFEAS ([2023 FRBATAZ))H
EHTEE - BHEIKKHERSBEIR2023F 53
258 (2800) %21y -

2022 F VIR SEHRER 308/ (20214 -
23878 1l) - IRELEREZR2022F 128318 1C
FEREEGRRBY33.0% (20214 : 31.7%) °



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(A)

(8)

FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND,
SPEAK AND VOTE AT THE 2023 AGM

The record date for determining the entitlement to attend, speak
and vote at the 2023 AGM will be Wednesday, 10 May 2023. The
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
8 May 2023 to Wednesday, 10 May 2023, both dates inclusive,
during this period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend, speak and vote at the
2023 AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company should
ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 5 May 2023.

FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO THE
PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The record date for the Proposed Final Dividend will be Friday, 19
May 2023. The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 17 May 2023 to Friday, 19 May 2023, both dates
inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive the Proposed
Final Dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 16 May 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND PERMITTED
INDEMNITY PROVISION

Principal corporate governance practices and permitted indemnity
provision adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 14 o 42.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past five
financial years, as extracted from audited consolidated financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page
3. The summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group’s major properties are set out on pages 235 to
237.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 36 to consolidated financial statements.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

The details of acquisition of subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act (as
revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB3,665 million (2021:
RMB2,846 million). The amount of RMB1,906 million (2021: RMB1,906
million) represented the Company’s share premium which may be
distributable provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total turnover attributable to
the Group's five largest customers was 5.1% of the Group’s total turnover
and the turnover from the largest customer included therein amounted
to 2.4%. The total purchase attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers was 39.8% of the Group’s total purchases and the purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to 32.7%.

At no time during the year did the directors, their close associates or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial inferests in
these suppliers or customers referred to above.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group’s charitable donations were approximately
RMB7.75 million (2021: RMB11.12 million).

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

DIRECTORS

Directors in office during the year and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

Mr. Cheng Dickson

Ms. Lu Jiandong

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Zuo Manlun, Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, Mr. Lai Zhigiang, Mr. Chen Guonan
and Mr. Huang Guirong are subject to retirement by rotation at the 2023
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has been informed by Mr. Lin Dewei, Mr. Wong Kwok Ho
Jonathan and Ms. Lan Fang that they will not offer themselves for re-
election and will retire as directors of the Company with effect from the
close of the 2023 AGM.

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 7 to 12.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2023 AGM has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code were as follows:

(A) INTEREST IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

EENATHMRBAR - 1BEAARI B
[RiEENERRIRE

[R2022F 122318 » ARNTDES RITERBHIRA
NOANEE B LB (BHREEFFEXVE
RNER) IR BRI RERZDPHSIRE
BHRIEFRAIEISLEBRALRIGEENS L
MR NRBEETFIBBENAL IR
FrovER BB T ¢

(A RAERTRIDOVER

Number and capacity of shares

BHBERIEE"

Beneficial Interests of Other
owner spouse interests
BERHEBA [ 4 HAtiE s
Wong Luen Hei - 2,308,000 (L)Y 2,122,485,000 (L)
siE
Zuo Xiaoping 2,308,000 (L)@ - 2,122,485,000 (L)
R
Zuo Manlun 4,642,000 (L) -
il
Luo Jianfeng 1,927,000 (L) -
REE
Tao Zhigang 30,000 (L) -
szt
Note: s
(a) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such securities. (a)
(b) These shares of the Company are held by New Fortune, which was wholly- (b)
owned by Xi Xi Development and ultimately owned by UBS Trustees (B.V.1.)
Limited, as trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”), the settlor of which is Mr.
Wong Luen Hei (“Mr. Wong”). The discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust
included Mr. Wong and his family members. Both Mr. Wong and Ms. Zuo
Xiaoping are taken to be interested in the said shares of the Company held by
the Trust under the SFO.
(c) Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is directly holding 2,308,000 shares of the Company. Mr. (0
Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, and therefore Mr. Wong is deemed
to be interested in such shares of the Company in which Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is
interested by virtue of the SFO.
(d) These shares related to the same block of shares in the Company as set out in (d

note (b) above.

68 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited EEEEIERERAD

Percentage of

the issued

share capital of

the Company

ERRTE#IT

2N =Palid

2,124,793,000 (L) 68.49%
2,124,793,000 (L) 68.49%
4,642,000 (L) 0.15%
1,927,000 (L) 0.06%
30,000 (L) -

FH ] BIALTRESEHOEE -

IEANIRDBFESEMTE - LN TBIOHZE
ERE2EHE UHER EBUBS Trustees (B.V.I.)
Limited "ER—IB 2S5 ([5%155t ) » Eiffizcd
([EEREDH ,\,ZE}E%%/\)EO SEEAﬁﬂ%ﬁ °
ME&E’J%T&( SR ANBEELERERER

*EEDR%&HE‘E{%H BRERAETU T
%EZTE%E\M: SR BN LA IR DPES
T o

R TEERFEARTH2,308,000 KD ©
BECERER T THERRE - BIRIEESRA
BRA BEERRRRERT U TIRAPHE
BRNZSEANTRDPHEEL

SRS ML b ST — A AT
ik



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND ZHER{TEAEIA AR ~ HHEARKH R
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING (EIEENERSIRE (&)
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

(B) INTEREST IN SHARES OF ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (B) MABH EBERDBVER

Number and capacity of shares®
ROBERMEE

Percentage of
the registered

Interests of capital of the

Beneficial controlled associated

Associated corporation Owner  corporation corporation

L18HEE

EMEAN

181 =B BEREBA SZEEBER i B2t

Jiangsu Yongbao Environmental Zuo Manlun 3,840,000 (L) - 3,840,000 (L) 4.80%"
Technology Co., Ltd.* Vi)
TR RBRIRRRERD Luo Jianfeng 2,640,000 (L) - 2,640,000 (L) 3.30%"

BRATY ERE

EDA Cloud Technology Zuo Manlun - 6,846 (L)Y 6,846 (L) 3.00%
Holdings Limited it

SEZNEERBREAT Luo Jianfeng - 6,846 (L) 6,846 (L) 3.00%
FRIRIE

Guangzhou KingHing Zuo Manlun 3,054,475 (L) - 3,054,475 (U) 1.76%
Construction Technology Lid.*  ZCiwf@

BENSEEZERNEFRAT Luo Jianfeng 2,083,658 (L) - 2,083,658 (L) 1.20%
gl

Lin Dewei 2,083,658 (L) - 2,083,658 (L) 1.20%
Mgk

Note: Myst

la)  The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities. () FZE L BIATREFEHNES -

(b) In December 2021, the company underwent changes in its registered capital (b) R201E128 - AIEMERBERESS -
structure resulting an increase of the registered capital to RMB80 million. No SEMEARIZZE ARHES0,000,0007T © FRIRE A -
changes are made to the interests held by the respective directors during the TR ESITSRERTEEE -
reporting period.

c) The director’s interest represents the number of shares of the associated (6} EENRERERTHITEN B EE RS
corporation to be purchased and acquired upon the director's exercise in full ERNHRAMBENNE B EBRD B
of the options granted by the shareholder of such associated corporation. On B - 1R20225F 485198  ESFTHOTEEEED
19 April 2022, the director exercised in full of the options granted to him. B - BIEESHBIOS BRINIT S M BMERM
Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 38(A) fo consolidated 5138(A) ©

financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the BR EXTRTIREEE SN - 1220227123318 -
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or KADESHTHREFEREALAITHNAEE
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of OB AR - BRI REES
the Company or any of its associated corporations that was PHETUIREZS REAERMIE 52158
required to be recorded in the register pursuant to section 352 of RELMPLER - NRBEETABEBIA
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock NI R PTOVERS KB ©

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER
SHAREHOLDERS PURSUANT TO SFO

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than a director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholders

Capacity

IRER 2B
UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited Trustee
UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited B5tA
Xi Xi Development Interests of controlled corporation
HREE SRR
New Fortune Beneficial owner
MEE Bm#aA
Note:
(a) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.
(b) These shares relate to the same block of shares in the Company as those set out in

note (b) in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures: (A) Interest in Shares of the
Company” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the directors of the
Company were not aware of any person or corporation (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had any interests or
short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the reporting
period.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures: (B) Interest in Shares of the Associated Corporations” and
note 38 to consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any director of the Company
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were such rights
exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, its holding company and any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company or an entity connected with him
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE NON-
COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS FROM CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

None of the directors or substantial shareholder of the Company or any
of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group. New Fortune
(the "Controlling Shareholder”, being a company holding approximately
68.41% of the issued share capital of the Company, and is ultimately held
by the trust the founder of which is Mr. Wong Luen Hei, and the
beneficiaries of which include Mr. Wong Luen Hei and his family) has
entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Group with Mr.
Wong Luen Hei dated 14 May 2010 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”).

The directors are of the view that the Group’s measures adopted by the
Company in respect of the enforceability of the Deed of Non-Competition
are adequate to safeguard the effectiveness of the non-competition
undertakings. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed
the compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition. Based on the
confirmation from the Controlling Shareholder, the independent non-
executive directors are of the view that the Deed of Non-Competition has
been complied with and has been effectively enforced.

ESRERNAV[EBNRH
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 28 August 2018, the Company adopted a share award scheme (the
“Scheme”) to recognise the contributions by certain eligible persons to the
Group and to offer suitable incentives to attract and retain targeted talent and
personnel for the continual operation and future development of the Group.
On 29 November 2018, a trust deed (the “Trust Deed”) was entered info
between the Company as settlor and Computershare Hong Kong Trustees
Limited as trustee (the “Trustee”) in relation to the establishment of a frust (the
“Trust’). Pursuant fo the rules of the Scheme, Shares will be purchased by the
Trustee from the open market out of cash contributed by the Company, and
shall not exceed HK$750 million and be held on trust for the selected
participants until such Shares are vested with the relevant selected participants
in accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The Scheme is a discretionary
scheme of the Company and shall be subject to the administration of the
Board and the Trustee in accordance with the rules of the Scheme and the
Trust Deed. The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years since the
date of adoption of the Scheme. Early termination of the Scheme may be
elected by the Board, provided that such termination shall not affect any
subsisting rights of any selected participants. For details, please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on 28 August 2018. Since the date of
adoption of the Scheme and up to the date of this report, no shares have been
awarded under the Scheme. As at 31 December 2022, there were 22,991,000
shares held in the Trust under the Scheme.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 27 February 2023, Guangdong Liansu Technology Industrial Co., Ltd.*,
the subsidiary of the Company (the “Subsidiary”), acquired on the open
market a total of 20,083,783 shares of Keda Industrial Group Co., Ltd.
(“Keda”) (stock code: 600499) (“Keda Shares”), which is listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, representing approximately 1.03% of the
entire issued share capital of Keda as at 27 February 2023, at an
aggregate consideration of approximately RMB323 million
(“Acquisition”).

Between 18 January 2023 and 24 February 2023, the Subsidiary acquired
on the open market a total of 68,627,794 Keda Shares at an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB1,076 million (“Previous
Acquisitions”).

Together with the Previous Acquisitions, the Subsidiary was interested in
an aggregate of 88,711,577 Keda Shares immediately following the
Acquisition, representing approximately 4.55% of the entire issued share
capital of Keda as at 27 February 2023. Keda will not be a subsidiary of
the Company following the Acquisition.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated on
27 February 2023.

As at the date of this report, the Subsidiary was interested in 97,421,035

Keda Shares, representing 5.0% of the entire issued share capital of
Keda as at the date of this report.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

(A)

(B)

On 30 July 2019, the Company as guarantor and its wholly-owned
subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement 1”) in relation to dual currency syndicated term
loan and revolving credit facilities in the equivalent amount of
US$900 million at an interest rate of LIBOR/HIBOR plus 1.60% per
annum with syndicate lenders. The final maturity date under the
Facility Agreement | is the date falling 48 months after the first
utilisation date.

On 23 October 2019, a syndication and amendment agreement
(the “Syndication and Amendment Agreement’) in relation to the
Facility Agreement | was entered into by, among others, the
guarantor and the borrower. Subject to the terms and conditions of
the Syndication and Amendment Agreement, the number of
syndicate lenders will be increased and the total commitment
under the facilities will be increased to the equivalent amount of
US$1,100 million. Save for the aforesaid amendment and
supplement, all other major terms of the Facility Agreement |
remain in full force and effect.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement | (as amended by the
Syndication and Amendment Agreement), Mr. Wong Luen Hei and
his family (collectively, the “Wong family”) shall collectively maintain,
directly or indirectly, at least 51% of beneficial shareholding interest
in the issued share capital of the Company, carrying at least 51% of
the voting rights, free from any security. Otherwise, a failure to do
so will be deemed an event of default under the Facility
Agreement |.

On 15 July 2021, the Company as guarantor and its wholly-owned
subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement II”) in relation to dual currency syndicated term
loan and revolving credit facilities in the equivalent amount of
US$550 million (which may be subsequently increased to up to
US$700 million equivalent) at an interest rate of LIBOR/HIBOR plus
1.40% per annum with syndicate lenders. The maturity date under
the Facility Agreement Il is the date falling 48 months after the
earlier of (i) the first utilisation date and (i) the end of the availability
period of one of the term facilities, provided that it may be
extended for a further period of 12 months subject to the terms and
conditions of the Facility Agreement I.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement Il, the Wong Family shall
collectively maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of beneficial
shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the Company,
carrying at least 51% of the voting rights, free from any security.
Otherwise, a failure to do so will be deemed an event of default
under the Facility Agreement II.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, certain of the related party
transactions as disclosed in note 42(A) to consolidated financial
statements also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules and
satisfied relevant disclosure requirements thereof. Details of the non-
exempt connected fransactions or continuing connected transactions are
summarised below:

(A)

(8)

74

PURCHASE OF MACHINERY

On 28 December 2020, the Company entered into the new
machinery purchase agreement with Guangdong Liansu
Machinery in relation to the possible purchase of machinery by the
Group from Guangdong Liansu Machinery for 3 years commencing
from 1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023, at a price
not exceeding the price offered to the Group by any independent
third parties. The annual machinery purchase caps for the years
ending 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2023, shall not exceed RMB190 million, RMB220 million and
RMB250 million respectively. For details, please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on 28 December 2020.

Total consideration paid for the reporting period by the Group was
RMB164 million.

ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY

On 28 March 2022, Lesso America Inc. (the “Purchaser”), which is
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
info a property acquisition agreement with Ecosave Land, LLC (the
“Seller”); pursuant to which the Seller agreed to sell, and the
Purchaser agreed to purchase, the 130.47 acres of industrial land
comprising 7 separate parcels in Adelanto, San Bernardino County,
CA 92301, U.S. (the “Property”) for the consideration of US$7.178
million (equivalent to approximately HK$55.84 million). Upon
completion of the acquisition, the Purchaser will become the sole
owner of the Property. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 March 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The Company has followed the pricing policies and guidelines when
determining the price and terms of the connected fransactions during
the year. The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors have, for the purpose of Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed all continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that all continuing connected
transactions have been entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of its business; (i) on normal commercial terms; and {iii) in
accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and with
reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditor
issued an unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The Company
provided a copy of the said letter to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 42 to
consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information obtained by the Company
and to the best knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report,
the Company has maintained sufficient public float required under in the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2023 AGM to re-appoint Ernst &
Young as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Zuo Manlun
Chief Executive and Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B A% e S

e
EY::

To the shareholders of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Lesso
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 86 to 234, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIIREENRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond
to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIIREENHRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

AR EIXSIA (|)

Key audit matter

HREKER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

WiTEHARESER

EZ BN RIE R ZZAERIE K096 E %

Provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan receivables

At 31 December 2022, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of RMB4,873,943,000, net of provision for
impairment of RMB1,792,754,000, among which
RMB1,253,460,000 were provided for certain individual

provision for impairment of RMB380,920,000, among which
RMB135,256,000 were provided for an individual customer
group, which in aggregate accounted for 10.2% of the total
assets. The assessment of impairment of such trade and bills
receivables and loan receivables was considered to be a
matter of most significance as it required the application of
judgement and use of subjective assumptions by
management.

122022128318 © EEENEZRNREREREEEE
RARM4,873,943,0007C * ZEBERVBFBERBAR
#1,792,754,00070 < # 2 #4288 - H T A K #1,253,460,000
TRETEINEZFPEE WENEREDERARKE
11393160007 X BEARVBERABEARE AR
380,920,000 T2 &< #4288 » HP AK#135,256,000 7077 —
BERSFERE  SHGEEREDN0.2% BREZE
WRE R ZRVBNERDBEN CFEZERBIELHAB R
FATEHRE  SRBEAREENSE -

HKFRS 9 requires that the impairment of financial assets
should be measured by the “expected credit loss” ("ECL")
model. In order to measure the impairment of trade and bills
receivables and loan receivables under HKFRS 9,
management should use judgement, assumptions and
estimation techniques in aspects such as judging significant
increase in credit risk, estimating the parameters for
measuring ECLs and determining the forward-looking
adjustments.

EBYUBRSEIABIRRE - TRMEENRERUEH
EEBE] ([(RBEEEE])RIUSE - REBRSBUHBR
ESRAB IR EESZRBNRE R ZEFEIERBIE
EREBERZTB (W EERBRABISIELHE - 5t
SERHEEBENSHEHOLSIRETCAIELRERE) ERA
i~ BERIGETTIA

customers, and loan receivables of RMB1,139,316,000, net of

Our audit procedures included, among others:

BFIVBIEFEE (BARR)

ii)

Evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the design
and implementation of key controls relating to
approval, post approval monitoring, credit grading
management, and loan impairment assessment. We
adopted a risk-based sampling approach in our
tests of the allowances for impairment of trade and
bills receivables and loan receivables;
SERAGESEY  BHERER  EEIREER
BRBENGL D BB BER ST RHTN
W FHPIFE D BUGRIE R RIBFEIE FRBHE S
EEVAIFER AR R E BV IERTTA ¢

Selected samples of performing loans considering
size, risk factors, industry trends for our tests on the
measurement of impairment;

ZREAXNN - ARRAZR  TxBRAFHR
BREMOVERBRAFBESS ;

EH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIIREENRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FETEICIC)

Key audit matter
HMRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
NAEHARERER

Provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan receivables (Continued)

EZBIGRIE R ZRAEIE 6960 E 5 15 ()

The accounting policies, disclosures of the allowance for
impairment of loan receivables and frade and bills receivables
and the related credit risk are included in notes 2.4, 3, 20 and

24 to the consolidated financial statements.

BESEER - BRERNEZBIRE R RZBE R
RABEIESERRVIZBENRRS M BHKMEE24 320K

24 ¢

iii)

iv)

Evaluated and tested the important parameters of
the expected credit loss model, management’s major
judgements and related assumptions, mainly
focusing on the following aspects:
AERAZEREERBRUNEZS Y - 18
TE2AERBRES - T2EEMUTNI®E -

o Assessing the rationality of the expected credit
loss model methodology and related
parameters, including historical loss rate, risk
exposure, and significant increase in credit risk;
SR HEERERIERMBRSH(BERE
PELX  RRREBRRABIEN) HESIE
4 5

° Assessing management’s consideration of
forward-looking adjustment information when
determining expected credit losses, including
the use of macroeconomic information, the
judgement of adjustments, and the
reasonableness of reviews; and
SIEEEERETCIE HEEBIBRIAIEMG
PRENNZR(BERECEERNER -
BEOAERERNSEM) ¢ R

Assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure of
the allowance for impairment of trade and bills
receivables and loan receivables and the related
credit risk.

5 EEEHNEZRIRIERRENEBE KB
BERFEURIEBEERMIVEENEM
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIIREENHRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

AR EIXSIA (|)

Key audit matter

HREXER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

WTEHEARERER

REREZ IO ERIERE

Provision for impairment of manufacturing and trading related inventories

At 31 December 2022, the Group had manufacturing and
trading inventories of RMB5,591,757,000, net of provision for
impairment of RMB241,650,000, which represented 9.5% of
the fotal assets. The provision for impairment mainly related to
certain obsolete and slow-moving inventories. We focused on
this area because these inventories were material to the
Group and the provision for impairment of inventories involved
a high level of management's judgement and estimate.
122022128318 - EEERERESEERBERAE
#£5,591,757,0007C - ZEEEBERIVEBEREBE AR
241,650,000 70 < B 88 - (B EMERBV9.5% ° sLBIE R
BErEEREeTBRRGEEEERE - HMEREEZAE
EHRZEGCEHR S£EFAECERNERBIRSE
EIRE ARG -

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 22.

RIGE MR ABBERESRIMEE24 3K 22 -

Our audit procedures included, among others:
HBPINEBZIZEEE (BRRR)

ii)

iii)

iv)

Evaluated, amongst others, the analyses and
assessments made by management with respect to
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, including
market values and expected selling prices of the
related inventories and the Group's future plan of
usoge or sale;
B(EhEE) ERENBEFHEEFHND

WE@IE BEERCENTMERAHRER - 2
K BEERRERNLBESE

Assessed the reliability of the underlying data used
by management in calculating the production related
inventory provisions such as the inventory ageing
reports, by re-performing the ageing calculation
generated by the system;

SHIERMELNTR (WEEFHRS) - UF
BERERARSIELEBBTERRNERERNT
Sl

Tested the accuracy of management's calculation by
assessing the calculation criteria and recalculating
the provision; and

AL ERERSHTERRE - ARSI
BOERME + R

BESE

Evaluated, based on a sample of production related
inventories, the analyses performed by management
regarding the net realisable values of the production
related inventories.

BEBSEEMRRGE LG EBEEHEEN
B-EORIRFENDT -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIIREENRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FETEICIC)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MRERER NAEHRREXRER
Valuation of investment properties
rEYXEGE

At 31 December 2022, the Group had investment properties of
RMB8,027,487,000 which represented 13.6% of the fotal assets
and were measured at fair value. The valuation of the
investment properties was important to our audit as it
represented a significant judgement area and an important
part of the total assets of the Group. Management employed
independent qualified valuers to assess the fair value. The
valuation of the investment properties is highly dependent on
a range of estimates made by management.
122022F123318 © EEBHNREVERBERARE
8,027,487,0007C * 15 B EREEMN3.6%WIZANEEFE -
BREENEGEIREXAWER SE£EEERBANE
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%EEE{’E&JBU FRINSSHEE ©

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 14.

RIGE M BRERMEVERRERRMEE24 3 R14-

Our audit procedures included, among others:
HBPINEBZIZEEE (BRRR)

ii)

iii)

iv)

Considered the objectivity, independence and
expertise of the professional valuers;

EREXLEMOZEMN  BIIMREERH

Assessed the appropriateness of the property related
data, which have been used as input for the
valuations;
TEERGERABRNMEBEBEIRCBES I
Engaged our internal specialists to assist us in
analysing the valuations and challenging the
underlying assumptions, such as the
appropriateness of comparable lands under the
sales comparison approach and capitalisation rate
and market rent under the income capitalisation
approach; and
ZERNEBEXBINRFIDTEERERBEIRE
FIWHEELBEA FTE LR THANBERCE T
RNEAMCEERMBHEEZNESH : &

Focused on the adequacy and appropriateness of the
disclosures relating to the valuations of these investment
properties.
HARSUSEREYEGEEH
5 o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIIREENHRS

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIIREENRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
confinue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIIREENRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Mee Kwan, Helena.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

20 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FoERNAMZENGR

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12331 0IEFE

2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(s AR#FT AT
REVENUE A 5 30,767,21 32,057,584
Cost of sales HEMA (22,525,788) (23,609,891)
Gross profit EA 8,241,423 8,447,693
Other revenue, income and gains BN ~ Wi R 5 668,454 1,433,071
Selling and distribution expenses SHERDIHRS (1,461,755) (1,493,378)
Administrative expenses TR (1,569,099) (1,506,939)
Impairment losses on financial TRIRGHEEBRRIEA
and contract assets B8 (465,548) (1,329,541
Other expenses HAFE2 (1,614,451) (1,441,493)
Finance costs AMEWA 6 (681,084) (546,149)
Share of results of associates DEHENTEE 71,094 242,740
Share of result of a joint venture DME—EEEEEB 18 1,390 1,278
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRI AE R 7 3,190,424 3,807,282
Income tax expense PiiERE>= 9 (675,524) (788,693)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 2,514,900 3,018,589
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hih 2 EK S
Items that may be reclassified HEOESHHREERERD
subsequently to profit or loss: BES :
Debt instruments at fair value through LAnNBESt AR MEZEN G
other comprehensive income: EHITA :
Changes in fair value, net of tax NABESE (REFH) 317,013 (315,985)
Share of other comprehensive income of DE—EMERNINEMEE
an associate, net of tax Wz (REBFER) (1,039) 2,594
Exchange differences on translation of ITEINERIRE 000 R
foreign operations =5 (715,543) (327,957)
(399,569) (641,348)
Items that will not be reclassified to HEBEASEHHREEER
profit or loss: BEs :
Changes in fair value of equity BRAnBESIA MmN
instruments at fair value through PBRATENADER
other comprehensive income 5haE) (406,280) (267,295)
Re-measurement gain on defined KiETBH B EFH 2N
benefit plan, net of tax (RBFE) - 551
(406,280) (266,744)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMZE
FOR THE YEAR IR (805,849) (908,092)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAZEKE
FOR THE YEAR k] 1,709,051 2,110,497
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

moRBREMEENRER

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12831 0IEFE

2022 AVYAl
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
i AREBFT ARETT
Profit attributable to: DU FEMS AL -
Owners of the Company YNNI S= PN 2,517,322 3,044,159
Non-controlling interests Pl (2,422) (25,570
2,514,900 3,018,589
Total comprehensive income attributable to:  DAFES T EUNHIREE ¢
Owners of the Company VNN S= PN 1,712,694 2,185,919
Non-controlling interests Pl (3,643) (75,422
1,709,051 2,110,497
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE FRTHBEANEL
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY HIRRF
Basic and diluted EAREE 1 RMBO0.82 RMB0.99

AR#0.827t AR#0997C
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RESMBEIRR

As at 31 December 2022
R2022F 128318

Note

Byat

2022
RMB’000
ARBFTT

2021
RMB'000
ARBTIT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M WERRE 12 13,882,250 12,331,567
Right-of-use assets ERREEE 13A 2,474,880 2,378,954
Investment properties BEYZE 14 8,027,487 7,809,639
Deposits paid for the purchase of land, EETH Y BER

property, plant and equipment SRETIVRET 1,986,003 1,043,250
Goodwill B 15A 541,878 495,857
Other intangible assets HthBmprEE 15B 438,833 547,836
Interests in associates RIS ARV 17 2,696,897 2,618,990
Interest in a joint venture R—EEE bR 18 14,191 12,801
Other financial assets HhsrEE 19 2,602,197 2,031,5M
Loan receivables EWES 20 42,473 86,400
Other non-current assets HtERABEE 21 1,689,328 385,376
Contract assets BNEE 23 42,284 39,980
Deferred tax assets BIERIBEE 34 520,858 349,105
Total non-current assets IERBNEERER 34,959,559 30,131,266
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 5E 22 6,499,986 6,881,329
Contract assets BNEE 23 553,288 576,901
Other financial assets HihsrEE 19 682,907 822,696
Loan receivables JEWE T 20 1,096,843 1,152,292
Trade and bills receivables BIEINRBEEE 24 4,873,943 4,212,442
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  JB{URR « i@ R EALIEIN RIS 25 2,924,308 2,130,992
Cash and bank deposits RERBITER 26 7,361,770 7,646,249

23,993,045 23,422,901

Asset held for sale FIEHEEE 27 - 929,022
Total current assets RENEERLE 23,993,045 24,351,923
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Contract liabilities EL=YE 23 3,489,765 3,249,079
Trade and bills payables EZRNIABREE 28 8,036,239 7,545,637
Other payables and accruals HihEN B R IESTER 29 2,182,777 1,697,228
Tax payable FEIVRIE 367,752 360,574
Borrowings B3 30 7,257,639 7,279,814
Convertible loans OB E M 31 - 624,430
Lease liabilities HEEE 138 107,670 77,670
Other financial liabilities HittmRa s 33 5,230 29,171
Total current liabilities REBEERR 21,447,072 20,863,603
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFR 2,545,973 3,488,320
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BERERRE

LIABILITIES aE 37,505,532 33,619,586
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Mo MBIRTR

As at 31 December 2022
R2022F 128318

2022
RMB’000

AR¥FTT

yAVA
RMB’000
ARIEFTT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE

Borrowings B3 30 12,778,043 9,879,291
Lease liabilities HEBE 13B 470,736 414,698
Other long-term payables HmERENRIE 8,903 10,385
Provision for long-term employee benefits EHRSRA &S 32 6,387 5,219
Other financial liabilities Hiveas 33 - 42,188
Deferred tax liabilities EHERIESE 34 1,407,542 1,200,818
Deferred income EAEUN &S 35 244,126 260,224
Total non-current liabilities FFRBEERE 14,915,737 11,812,823
Net assets EBEFHR 22,589,795 21,806,763
EQUITY RS

Share capital A 36 135,344 135,344
Reserves =4 37 21,658,909 20,635,797
Equity atfributable to owners of the Company AR TS ATEG RS 21,794,253 20,771,141
Non-controlling interests FEPEhlfess 795,542 1,035,622
Total equity RERIRER 22,589,795 21,806,763
Wong Luen Hei Luo Jianfeng

=HhtiE BEE

Director Director

EE ===
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

S6L'685°27  TpS'S6L  €ST'MGLIT  .£TS'1T0'6L 062'ST 869728 lve'6c0') 4SS e S18' 298'08) HSLLTLT  Jovy'se) i« 819'506'L  pve'gel BlEE U0z 0002 1Bquiaq [€ I
- = = (0z8'v8) - = = = = = = 028'v8 = - - - g 3MBsal AoJn|DIS
IEHH 0} voyoudouddy
86L - 86L - - - - - - - 86L - o o o o Yrvy 3JD20SSD UD
BevsHE—9¢ dod jo aipys
(922) ° (9c2) © o ° = = o o o (922) o = - - RYENSH SalDIpISqnS |0 psodsig
(51e2) o (ste2) ° (ste2) ° - - - - - - - - - - 1wy SUDO) B|qBAU0D
oEEsY {o juawhndai Ain3
05T’z os'se  loos’ss) - - - - - - - o't - - [ewevs) - - BgEIl  suodoaioys o aspiaxg
058'Ly o 088'Ly = = = = ° o ° ° ° ° 058'LY o - (IMBET2g) 4% (iv)eg alou) Sjuswabupun

BEZEN Y uoydoainys pajjas-Ainb3
2 sisasajul Bugjouod-ou

(eezl) (Leezl)

i
1yTE 0} Suojnquislp <
S0 pasiubodal Spusping g
(gee'et9) - (9ee'et9)  (9ee'ety) - - = o = = = = = = = = (0LF2) ot 8iou) Ju
o SIBUMO 0} SUOINGLSIP m.m
YEHDY ™
= = = 08711 = = ((241] = S S S S = = - - YEHEVT

BEPETYR Sjaunsy Ajnbs #
BENESHE 10 [psods}p ay uodn =
VASEEUTEST  8Mesal anjoA D} 0 Jajsuni] &
Le4'T L1647 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (6¢F20) 6€ 8jou) uoypuIqUI0d =

DL ssauisng wox Buisuo
(AREHoux s/saJajul Buljoyuod-uoy -
8el's gL' o o = = = = . o o o = = = o Ef 2
e el ! m
(veg'sve)  Nez'zie)  (eov'zel - o ° = = o o leov'zel - o o ° o ] sisaiojul Bujjo4u0d-uou >
Jouoiysinbay 2
150'6021  (ep9'e) ve9aLl  TeEUST - (gsz'0z)  (vs8'18) o (610'2) - - - - - - - 1nahauy Joy ]
3WOdUI BNISUBYRIdWOD [ojo] Ho
(6v8'sosl 12zl (o29'v08) - - (§sc'0z2)  (b8'18) - 610) - - - - - - - il 1nh gy Joj 2
BITHEYD  swodul ansuayaldwo BujQ <]
0067157 (a2v'l we'usT  weusT - = = - - - - - - - - - 2V 103k 3y} 1o} Jjoid ro.v
€90'908'17  729'6€0'L  WOLLLL'OT  LLO'OVT'LL  S09'LT (eve'eoll  (€12'956) 6l0'7 Slg's (662°05) Slz'eh9's  (ovw'ssl 260'L 819'506'L  whe'sel BLELF0Y 2207 Monuor | 1y w
LEHTY LLHFY LLHEIY LLHEFY LEHEY LEHEY LEREY  LEREY  LEREY  L4R¥Y YR8V Y458V U458V Li5EY  LiHEY |a.
0008Wd  0008Wd  0008Wd  0008Wd  0008Wd  0008Wd  0008WH  0008WY  0008WH  000AWH  000AWH  000AWH  000AWH  000.8WH  000.8WY .m
RERHE 128 NERY YERE  YEEMERD YREEVT YENE  ¥BiE  ¥BHS «YEYE  o¥EIE  OHNSY  gEENY BEROE ud (™)

EEHER TLEY EIEERGH

SisasRul |0joL qu.a CIVER) CIVERG)) CIVERG)) CIVERS)) CIVERS)] CIVERS)] (OISR [ELERD] YIS CIVENCT] Eo_EwE

poujsy  Aunbasubo; uoyonjany  BnipAADY  Jyauaq BuibpoH Jabrew LT [) hojyojs  paomn asoys  uoydo aioys
a|quanuo)  abunyixg pauyep 10} pjoy auoys
oahojdu3 salnys

90

FEIYE®ETY
Hundwo?) 3y} Jo siaumo o} BjquInguHY

Year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F 128331 BIEFE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERERBER

Year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F 128331 BIEFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mESRERE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12331 0IEFE

Note

By &t ARETFT ARETFTT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES BE58
Profit before tax BRREDRA 3,190,424 3,807,282
Adjustments for: U T SIBEHFE -
Interest income SIE 5 (174,867) (101,341
Government grants released BEEANBUSHED (48,412) (13,000)
Fair value changes of investment properties BEMENTEEES 5 (120,936) (916,828)
Gain on fair value changes of other HinsRasEAnEE
financial liabilities BENF & 5 (59,552) (8,048)
Gain on early repayment of convertible loans REBEETREBRERNE 5 (3,862) -
Investment income BEIW 5 (22,374) (5,508)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAIPTEN 5 (8,510) -
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets RICBREEENSH & 5 (2,145) (396)
Gain from a bargain purchase EBNEMBNG 5 (30) (26,217)
Interest expenses ME = 6 681,084 546,149
Depreciation and amortisation E R 7 1,914,119 1,366,123
Service cost included in defined SARERBASTEIR
benefit plan ARFE A 7 774 339
Write-down/(write-back) of inventories to HMoRL, (B0) EERTHEIR
net realisable value, net AT 7 45,886 (19,004)
(Gain/loss on disposal of items of other intangible  HEEMMEEENNE - BB
assets and property, plant and equipment E®iEBEEN (Fm), B8 7 (16,976) 51,789
Loss on disposal/deemed disposal of associates — HE TRIEHEKSNTBE 7 30,649 56,491
Fair value changes of financial instruments BARBEST ABRNER
at FVTPL TENATEERE 7 283,759 (199,224)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment W% - BB KRR EBIE 7 - 26,783
Impairment of goodwill BERE 7 - 24,869
Impairment of other intangible assets HiEEEERE 7 66,875 1,320
(Reversed of impairment)/impairment of FEIER ORERDO),/
loan receivables, net BUEIEEE 7 (156,104) 329,279
Impairment of long-term loan receivables EHEIETRIE 7 50,000 -
(Reversed of impairment)/impairment of BNEE (ERDO),/
confract assets, net BUEEER 7 (3,207) 20,491
Impairment of trade and BIRNABRER
bills receivables, net BEIFER 7 547,056 977,947
Impairment of prepayments, net EITRRIE S 7 1,945 1,448
Impairment of other receivables, net EioE IR IERE T8 7 27,803 1,824
Equity-settled share option expense DI ARN R ERERS 7 47,850 7,092
Share of results of associates PaN wl it/ = (71,094) (242,740)
Share of result of a joint venture DMME—EEEPEER 18 (1,390) (1,278)
6,198,765 5,685,642
Increase in other non-current assets HMIERBEEIZN (170,565) (34,516)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERYD,/(B0) 372,468 (1,645,771)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BREERD,(80) 24,660 (32,267)
Increase in loan receivables FEUE FIB 00 (50,988) (600,381)
Increase in trade and bills receivables B2 RIRIE R ZEIEN (1,362,553) (651,806)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and AR - Bm REMEI
other receivables FIEB N0 (764,780) (125,712)
Increase in contract liabilities SHNEEIEN 240,686 1,699,428
Increase in frade and bills payables BIERBRERIEN 494,881 1,562,040
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HihfEd B RIESt B
and accruals =0,/ i) 137,143 M3,118)
Decrease in other long-term payables HitE S ENTERD (1,482) (6,712)
Decrease in provision for long-term employee benefits & 23RS 1@7 Bl 8l D) - (280)
Increase in deferred income BRI e IB 0 32,314 51,675
Cash generated from operations MEESNRE 5,150,549 5,788,222
Bank interest received BEUERTTAIR 107,402 97,844
Corporate income tax paid BENEEMER (685,261) (712,895)
Net cash flows from operating activities K EESIRE NS P8 4,572,690 5173171
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEREMRE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12831 0IEFE

Note
Beat

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BETE
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment (EE#)2 - lERRIEEE (2,846,573) (3,261,176)
Prepayment for other assets JaEMEE (464,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of other intangible ZREHEEMETLEEFYZE -

assets and property, plant and equipment WERZEEBNERE 163,523 121,261
Proceeds from disposal of an investment property  HHEREWEMENRIE 331,797 547,281
Proceeds from disposal of asset held for sale HEREHEEEMBRE 938,951 -
Additions to right-of-use assets RS EZD (44,149) (148,828)
Additions to investment properties KEYZEIEN (1,349,838) (1,024,905)
Additions to other intangible assets HimpEEED M,247) (18,787)
Additions to associates =Nl (28,196) (309,712)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries g =N 39 (70,420) (403,693)
Purchases of other financial assets HEEEMNTREE (1,366,663) (1,720,002)
Investment income received BUNR B 22,374 5,508
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets HEEMSREEMERE 177,238 1,144,343
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEWB NS TERE 65,391 -
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—BRENTMERE 6,000 -
Dividend received from associates BIHESATINERR 76,310 36,973
Interest received from other financial assets BINEMEZREENNE 2,806 3,381
Increase in restricted cash SIRHEIR I N0 (154,789) (466,611)
Net cash flows used in investing activities SE BT ARESMAE TR (4,551,485) (5,494,967)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES NEED
New bank borrowings raised HISRITETR 12,585,416 14,026,396
Repayment of bank and other loans BRRFTREMER (10,761,557) (12,053,618)
Repayment of convertible loans BEOTRRER (716,236) -
Capital contributions from non-controlling interests  FE#EHEEHHE 8,138 163,191
Return of investment BEOWR = (4,475)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests IR B IE e ml e i (150,687) (204,000
Proceeds received from exercise of share options  {J{E BB EMERIE 4,201 -
Repayment of lease liabilities ERHE8E (136,022) (75,339)
Interest paid EANE (675,386) (464,015)
Dividends paid to the owners of the Company ENARTHEARE (649,336) (1,278,424)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BENIEEHERRR (12,931) (22,540)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing RETE (TR ERERE

activities PER (504,400) 87,176
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERREEEWR TR (483,195) (234,620)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ENIIRTRIRSESEY) 6,174,456 6,442,254
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INEEbE K BB DV BT 43,927 (33,178)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF ERNRERESS

THE YEAR ) 5,735,188 6,174,456
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERREEEWVEER

CASH EQUIVALENTS baxiil
Time deposits with original maturity of EHER(RENBREHRE

three months or less when acquired BR=EHEIUT) 26 572,982 736,129
Cash and bank balances RERIPITRER 26 5,162,206 5,438,327

5,735,188 6,174,456
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S RIE IR MISE

2.1

94

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The addresses of its registered office and
principal places of business are disclosed in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Particulars of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture
are set out in notes 47, 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties, other
financial assets, asset held for sale and other financial liabilities
which have been measured at fair value. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2022.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=]

2.1

CUECE TR VL

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(i) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(i) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
[iil  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributable to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to fransactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 BHHRRRESIRES)
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first AREBRAEENGSUBRENSKER
time for the current year’s consolidated financial statements. THFYZSTXE] -
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions EBUHERELER  [R20215F 6530 BER
beyond 30 June 2021 EALRACEPN 2019 WA RS RIEE
HEER
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual ESBYBREAT]  HFEZRIES|
Framework ERMAEEIEN
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: EE@stEL) M BRRERE BT
Proceeds before Intended Use EALEAEEIPN Rl P RIA
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of oyt o ]| BESHN—EBT—17
Fulfilling a Contract E7FIBEIAR (SEAPASTN
Annual Improvements o Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, BBUBRELN BEUBRSEABE IR
HKFRSs 2018-2020 lllustrative Examples 201822020  HBUHBRSEL
accompanying HKFRS 16, B TERE $E9% BB
and HKAS 41 REHERIE 165 EEN 2
HPRSESHEL
ENFSIIAR
The application of these revised standards in the current year has RAFEERASE LSS LB AER AT
had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and ERBAFEERNMIRIE RN, SE D]
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures RAGG SRR IRBENWFR T (O E AL o

set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CUECE TR VL

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Confracts'
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Confracts'
Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9
— Comparative Information®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies!
and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current (the 2020 Amendments”)24
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
[the “2022 Amendments")2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction'
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

S

and HKAS 28 (2011)

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020
Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after
1January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and
2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding
wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the classification
overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial application of HKFRS
17
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

2.3

24

98

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far,
the Group considers that these new and revised HKFRSs may result
in changes in accounting policies but are unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and a joint venture are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in profit or loss and other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associates or joint ventures, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or
joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint ventures.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBHRRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATION

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint operation:

o its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

° its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

° its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising
from the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the
joint operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to the
Group’s interest in a joint operation are accounted for in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

100 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited PEIIBEEIERERAT

EHEHRIE
EBSHOUBEENER - BRAEDMU
BB HOANEBEAESE - IREERA
SEHERNEERNEBROALEE X
EESRNEBLCAIEHB N A ENEE -
RAEBETUIRBBRIE S R R A
BmBRA - RSEFSHP  FEBEE
REUNTEBERRNE TR EEFE
BEGLEA - SIEBRSHS B SIS
HEE A NBRREEFZILADGERNF
BEEBRINES I EhES - JFEhEn
B—UIEMAD DR ATEESE - WHEAE
BMARELERIIRAS -

SEMNEN -5 REERE —BRAN
—EERRE - MME QB PREL IR
NEERER - IXEEBEECREHIE -

EAEBNE-RXHE  SREBESHIK
R RINE B BeVEBIRIE RABRAR M - 5T
ERAENTHEEREE  DUFBEE
DRRIER - HPBEDBRINE S EEH
PHRATSTETLR -

BEBESHDIBEET - LEFTHRAR
=HEDUNE B BHNANEREEHE - £T
W REIA M B IRIB PR -

T EBUN S BRI B RIE B
BATEERED - ARNEB(DEREEDN
BE)BRANEESE  MATEEZER
RIEBER - DBRBHCARKBLAS
S8 HEKEREZPAR -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBHRRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODW.ILL (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group will
perform its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its investment properties, asset held for sale,
other financial assets and other financial liabilities at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

levell — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

level2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

level3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBHRRE @)

POLICIES (continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
contract assets, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

104

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control of the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (al(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or fo the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBHRRE @)

POLICIES (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis and the units
of production basis to write off the cost of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Land and buildings
Plant and machinery

Not depreciated
2.0% 10 5.0%
9.5% 10 20.0%, or
units of production basis
Furniture, fixtures and 9.5% t0 32.3%
office equipment
Vehicles 9.5% t0 32.3%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease

terms and 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERRE @)

POLICIES (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or
loss in the period the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and other assets
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost represents the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBHRRE @)

POLICIES (continued)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS AND DISPOSAL GROUPS HELD
FOR SALE

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sales transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to
be the case, the asset or disposal group must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for the sale of such assets or disposal
groups and its sale must be highly probable. All assets and
liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are
reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the Group
retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values
less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life of 5 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Patents and proprietary technologies

Purchased patents and proprietary technologies acquired are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on
the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 20
years.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CUECE TR VL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)
(Continued)

Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights
Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights with
indefinite useful lives acquired are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are not amortised. The useful life of such
an asset should be reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether events and circumstances continue to support
an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite should
be accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

The Group is required to test an intangible asset with an indefinite
useful life for impairment by comparing its recoverable amount
with its carrying amount (a) annually, and (b) whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights with
useful lives are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of 5 to 30 years.

LEASES

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A confract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CUECE TRV

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

LEASES (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

110

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. The cost of a right-of-use
asset also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:

Leasehold land
Plants and buildings
Vehicles

Other equipment

10 to 50 years
110 25 years
1to 5 years
110 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The
corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
and subsequently measured at fair value, in accordance with
the Group’s policy for “investment properties”.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

LEASES (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the
lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CUECE TRV

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
LEASES (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of plants and buildings
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption
for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment
and laptop computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract o each component on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified
as a finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-of-
use asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-
term lease to which the Group applies the on-balance sheet
recognition exemption, the Group classifies the sublease as an
operating lease.

12 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited PEIIfBEBERBRAT

24 TESHBHRHE @)

HE (#)

FEBEREMEA (B)

() AHHEEREEEESEIHE
AEBEBRENEEEBHBRIREMR
FREFHRBEE (RIEME e
FZSHENHENRNZEBRALREA
WHEOSESEER)  HIVEREE
BEEHERBHRRKABREEE
BV NER s R EECABILEVEE -

RHEREEEEEHEHNHESY
PSS HNIZERAHERRAS

AREBERBAA

EXAEBERBEAN  AIREERBIE(H
HIRA ‘iﬂiajﬂ%)ﬂ%/ﬁlﬁ*ﬁ%\ DiIEEME
EUREES -

WAREBW A BB EEHS RN T AL
DERERORCHEE  WOEREEHEE -
WEKNBSHEENIFESED - XEBAE
ﬁﬁJELi ERSHNAEBDEESEE

- MHWERE S HRBERE ARSI
HW%H SIRIBEAST AN - EB R
MEHEMELCDBEENASIAEE
EEREE - WERETNHEEEER
EERNET - ARERRBRNABERR
NG

NASBRIE E BB NI RS DR
HROREREAEANESINIRMENRS -

UWAEBRBHEDPN - IZEREEELD
EAREERBEEDARMEEEILE
HE - IREERAEERAEERBRN
R R BV ﬁﬁ%ﬂ% AIREEREBES D
BRICBHEE



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBHRRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI*), and fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade and bills receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at FVTPL, tfransaction costs. Trade and bills receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest ("SPPI”) on the
principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective of
the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at FVTOCI are held
within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at FVTPL.
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CUECE TRV

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt instruments at FVTOCI, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in
other comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBHRRE @)

POLICIES (continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity instruments designated at FVTOCI
when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a
recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity
instruments designated at FVTOCI are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
instruments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify
at FVTOCI. Dividends on equity instruments classified as financial
assets at FVTPL are also recognised as other income in profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CUECE TRV

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBHRRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects fo receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
info account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

For debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At each
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt instruments
are considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the external
credit ratings of the debt instruments. Debt instruments graded in
the top investment categories are considered to be low credit risk
investments. It is the Group’s policy to measure ECLs on such
instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of debt instruments since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL. The
Group uses the ratings from credit rating agencies both to
determine whether the debt instruments have significantly
increased in credit risk and to estimate ECLs.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets at amortised cost
are subject to impairment under the general approach and they
are classified within the following stages for measurement of ECLs
except for trade and bills receivables and contract assets which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage1 —

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage2 —

Stage3 —  Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the
Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade and bills receivables that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, convertible loans,
lease liabilities and other financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL
are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if the
criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (“EIR") method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBHRRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Convertible loans

The component of convertible loans that exhibits characteristics of
a liability is recognised as a liability in the consolidated statement
of financial position, net of transaction costs. On issuance of
convertible loans, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible
loan; and this amount is carried as a long term liability on the
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or
redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option that is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of fransaction costs, if the conversion option meets the
fixed for fixed requirement. The carrying amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction costs
are apportioned between the liability and equity components of
the convertible loans based on the allocation of proceeds to the
liability and equity components when the instruments are first
recognised.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition in profit or
loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Manufacturing and trading inventories

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Property development

Cost comprises land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable to such
properties incurred during the development period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBHRRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of cash
management.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required fo settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of certain
industrial products and the provision of construction services for
general repairs of defects occurring during the warranty period.
Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group are recognised based on sales volume and past experience
of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present
values as appropriate.

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised fo the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBHRRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
INCOME TAX (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assetfs on a net basis, or fo realise the assets and seftle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an asset,
the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under
the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a)  Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=]

CUECE TR VL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

(c]

(d)

Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on
the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction
services.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks to
collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs and
margins for scope of works not included in the original
construction contract. Claims are accounted for as variable
consideration and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. The Group uses the expected value method to
estimate the amounts of claims because this method best
predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

Provision of sewage, hazardous waste treatment and
related environmental protection services

Revenue from the provision of sewage, hazardous waste
treatment and related environmental protection services is
recognised when the relevant services have been rendered.

Provision of logistics and other related services

Revenue from the provision of logistics and other related
services is recognised over time, using an output method to
measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the
service, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the services transferred to the
customer to date relative to the remaining services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of services.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CUECE TRV

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Revenue from other sources
Income from financial services including:

(i) handling fee income from factoring services and supply-
chain financing services which is recognised when the
relevant services have been rendered;

[il ~ finance lease income which is recognised over the period of
lease, as further explained in the accounting policy “Leases”
above; and

(i) interest income which is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method as explained below.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

CONTRACT ASSETS

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of
which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CUECE TR VL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
CONTRACT LIABILITIES

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
confract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension schemes

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the Group’s
employees participate in various defined contribution plans and
state-management retirement benefit plans in the countries in
which the Group operates. Payments to these plans, where the
Group’s obligations under them are equivalent to a defined
contribution plan, are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Housing benefits, medical insurances and other social
insurances

PRC employees of the Group are entitled to participate in various
government-supervised housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurance plans. The Group contributes to these funds
based on certain percentages of the salaries of these employees
on a monthly basis. The Group’s liability in respect of these funds is
limited to the contribution payable in each period. Contributions to
the housing funds, medical insurances and other social insurances
are expensed as incurred.

24 TESHBHRHME @)

GHaR
ENEERAEEEREEERARBE I
ABFURIUTRERES (LREERE)#
B GRNRERAEBRESKNET (B
BB E BBV RERIZ ) i
SBARUUN

==
RIREZEHE
AEERBNEEARRERRAEB LA
FEERNEESNSEREHMNSIERER
BERNTBAS S - REBIRZSEE T
HECETRRERT J%*H% B ¥
S ENHRR ESIEHERESHRIR
BIEFERRFAE

EERAESE ERRRREMITIERE

K%lm$@1§ﬁ%% B RENE T
EEAEE  BRERRREMIT SRS
gl K%%@%& SEETENETEOW
RROZSETHR - AEEBHSETH
BEUSHERNVOHERRIR - EELE
T - BERRREMITSRROVHRISESL
FIRFAR

Annual Report 2022 3R 129



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERRE @)

POLICIES (continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Defined benefit plans

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The
benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit pension plans,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benéefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of
financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:
o the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

° the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related
costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “cost
of sales” and “administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss by function:

° service costs comprising current service costs, past-service
costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine

settlements; and

° net interest expense or income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CUECE TR VL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share award
scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services in exchange for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to
an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service
and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity
when they are declared and approved by the Company’s
shareholders in general meetings. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are declared
and approved, and no longer at the discretion of the Company.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBHRRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars while the
Company’s presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements is Renminbi. In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, fransactions in currencies other than
the enfity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the fransactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they
are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those
foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on fransactions entered into in order to
hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into Renminbi using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
fluctuation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERRE @)

POLICIES (continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of the operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

JUDGEMENTS

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been established for
income tax and withholding tax that would be payable on certain
profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC to be repatriated and
distributed by way of dividends as the directors consider that the
timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences can be
controlled and such temporary differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.

If these undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
considered to be repatriated and distributed by way of dividends,
the deferred income tax charge and deferred income tax liability
would have increased by the same amount of approximately
RMB279,496,000 (2021: RMB343,290,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds less than a
maijority of voting rights

The Group considers that it controls WIIK Public Company Limited
("WIIK") even though it owns less than 50.00% of the voting rights.
This is because the Group is the single largest shareholder of WIIK
with 47.75% equity interest. The remaining 52.25% of the equity
interest in WIIK are dispersedly held by many other shareholders.
Since the date of acquisition, there has been no history of the other
shareholders collaborating to exercise their votes collectively or to
outvote the Group.

The Group considers that it controls EDA Cloud Technology
Holdings Limited ("EDA Cayman’) even though it owns 38.90% of
equity interest in EDA Cayman, which is less than 50.00% of the
voting rights. This is because the Group has signed acting in
concert deed with certain shareholders and they agreed to act in
concert with the Group. Therefore, the Group maintains the voting
right percentage sufficient to achieve simple maijority in general
meetings and pass ordinary resolutions in order to direct EDA
Cayman’s relevant activities at its own discretion. There are no
other potential voting rights that could compromise the Group's
control over EDA Cayman.

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill, brand name and trademark and
operating concession rights

The Group determines whether goodwill, brand name and
trademark and operating concession rights with indefinite useful
lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill, brand name and trademark and operating
concession rights are allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimation of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amounts of goodwill, brand name and trademark and operating
concession rights were RMB541,878,000 (2021: RMB495,857,000),
RMB91,072,000 (2021: RMB145,183,000) and RMBI11,615,000 (2021:
RMB23,230,000), respectively. Further details are disclosed in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

3.

FTES ARG (8

FIER (@)
FEBFEAEZERRECERZRS

K& B #R R H 2 FHIWIK Public Company
mmwGWMD BETE A E 50.00%BY

c FRRAEBRWIKEIE —HZ AR
% % B47.75% 8 1 » HL 8 52.25% BYWIK
BT EHMB RO EREE - BIUED H
B BREHREMBRERSIETEERBNRK
R NEEMRBORZHSRAEERN
=

REBRREREAZEENTIERERAT
(BEERE))  BREARUEI2EERE
38.90% B2 1 - B2 50.00%BY % 2 #E o
BRAREBCEETREEE—HITEHR
B BRSE=R0AEE—3T8 - @l

REBHF BRI NS ESHERDH
ERBE B EEZNRIZELA - DIES
THEBELESEERESNBEIEE - WHH
MBERSRUESEAEBHIEZRE

BOIEHIfE -

BERIRRER
BEIRKRS RGN EBERIRKRE
HMEBRRNEBRER  CAZSEH~—6
VHFERNEEREBRBEDREARFE
BEXRR - IR N EE -

BE  FRRFENFFFEEERE

rEBRDESFETHE  BFRIBHE
e B ABIEFIFHECEREDRE - It
DREGLSEHREE &R ETEMNFST
MERRNREELSMNNTEREE - £
ST REER  AEBAG h%%igi
BBRBRFRNREAE - RIESENGER
KPUSHEHLSRTARENRE - RBREH
x B2 nEknEiETCESNED
EDBIR AR 541,878,00075 (20214 = A
E2 #£495,857,0007T ) ~ A R 591,072,000 7T
(20214 = A R#8145,183,00070 ) & A R #8
11,615,000 (20217 : A\ R 123,230,000
70) > BRI BERBRFS U HRRKWEE
16 o

Annual Report 2022 3R 135



136

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision of ECLs for contract assets, trade and bills receivables,
other receivables and loan receivables

The Group reviews the credit risk in relation to contract assets,
trade and bills receivables, other receivables and loan receivables.
For balances in relation to individual customers which bear specific
credit risk depending on the repayment history, financial position
and other external or internal information, management estimates
the amounts recoverable from the financial assets taking into
account any credit enhancement held by the Group and recognise
provision against the difference between the gross balance and
the amount recoverable.

Apart from the balances in relation to individual customers which
bear specific credit risk, the Group uses a provision matrix to
calculate ECLs for other contract assets, trade and bills receivables,
other receivables and loan receivables. The provision rates are
based on the invoice date for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of
credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At
each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision of ECLs for contract assets, trade and bills receivables,
other receivables and loan receivables (Continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant
estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
contract assets, tfrade and bills receivables, other receivables and
loan receivables is disclosed in notes 23, 24, 25 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories

The Group reviews the ageing analysis of its inventories at the end
of each reporting period, and makes provision for obsolete and
slow moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for use or sale. Management estimates the net realisable value for
such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. At the end of the reporting period, an
accumulated provision for obsolescence of RMB241,650,000 (2021:
RMB195,764,000) has been recognised for inventories.

Fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for properties in the same location and condition and subject to
similar leases and other contracts. In the absence of such
information, management determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement,
management considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) independent valuations; (i) current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition and location
(or subject to different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences; (iii) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the dates of transactions that occurred
at those prices; and (iv) discounted cash flow projections, based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms of
any existing lease and other contracts, and (where possible) from
external evidence such as current market rates for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in
the amount and timing of cash flows.
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CUECE TRV

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of investment properties (Continued)

Details of the judgement and assumptions involved in determining
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties have been
disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”)
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are available
(such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR
using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates
(such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RMEE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BENIEER

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
building materials and home improvement products; sale of
products and provision of services relating to new energy business;
the provision of renovation and installation works, environmental
engineering and other related services, logistics and other related
services, financial services and property rental and other related
services. For management purposes, the Group’s businesses are
organised by geographical areas based on the location of the
customers and assets are attributable to the geographical unit
based on the location of the assets. The Group has eight reportable
operating segments as follows:

(i) Southern China, including Guangdong Province, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, Hunan Province, Fujian
Province and Hainan Province;

[il ~ Southwestern China, including Chongging Municipality,
Sichuan Province, Guizhou Province, Yunnan Province and
Xizang (Tibet) Autonomous Region;

(il Central Ching, including Hubei Province, Jiangxi Province and
Henan Province;

liv]  Eastern China, including Shanghai Municipality, Jiangsu
Province, Zhejiang Province and Anhui Province;

(v)  Northern China, including Beijing Municipality, Tianjin
Municipality, Hebei Province, Shandong Province, Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region and Shanxi Province;

(vil  Northwestern China, including Shaanxi Province, Ningxia Hui
Autonomous Region, Qinghai Province, Gansu Province and
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region;

(vil  Northeastern China, including Liaoning Province, lJilin
Province and Heilongjiang Province; and

(vii) Outside China.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure
of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except
that interest income, changes in fair value of investment properties,
changes in fair value of financial instruments at FVTPL, changes in
fair value of other financial liabilities, gain on early repayment of
convertible loans, investment income, gain on disposal of
subsidiaries, loss on disposal/deemed disposal of associates, gain
from a bargain purchase, exchange differences, non-lease-related
finance costs, share of results of associates and a joint venture and
other unallocated income and expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude inferests in associates, interest in a joint
venture, other financial assets, deferred tax assets, cash and bank
deposits, asset held for sale and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation. Intersegment
sales and fransfers are transacted with reference to the selling
prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.

The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived from its
operations in mainland China, special administrative regions of the
PRC and foreign countries.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no revenue

from transactions with a single external customer amounted to
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e B R RMIEE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Segment revenue:
Sale of goods relating to building
materials and home improvement

DA
HEmREY
REEHH

Southern Southwestern

China

Z@
RMB’000
AREFT

China

i)
RMB’000
AREFT

Eastern

RMB'000
AREFT

4.

RENBER (|

BE2022F 128N HULEFENKE

2EER

Northern Northwestern

China

2
RMB’000
AREFT

China

[icp4
RMB’000
AREFT

Northeastern
China

3
RMB’000
AREFT

Outside
China
PERESH
RMB’000
AREFT

Eliminations  Consolidated

RMB’000
ARBTR

)
RMB'000
AREFT

business NER 13,967,364 2,601,914 3,021,170 1,979,690 2,320,939 1,654,149 732,104 1,267,342 - 27,544,672
Sale of goods and services income  ERETACIRETEABHL)

relating o new energy business ERHERRBENE 378,104 87,244 4,098 88,590 25,301 - 3,609 2,432 - 589,378
Confract revenue from renovation  EERZETR

and installation works BRIBA 934,616 31,898 75,167 213,131 34,693 23,874 3,531 42,286 - 1,359,196
Income from environmental BETEREMN

engineering and other Lkl

related services e 146,650 2,336 10,870 136,770 2,465 il n 48,373 - 348,326
Logistics and other related services ¥R S 04883 RS 97,789 - 4 80,321 - - - 515,015 - 693,129
Financial service income SRBHNE 64,129 4,995 996 12,536 160 76 92 - - 82,984
Property rental and other xRS RAMBE

related services B 14,363 16 n 392 36 - - 134,708 - 149,526
Revenue from external customers MBZBEBA 15,603,015 2,728,403 3,112,316 2,51,430 2,383,594 1,678,890 739,407 2,010,156 - 30,767,211
Intersegment revenue DEERA 4,908,443 441,301 497,559 364,660 550,379 27,166 176,363 1,154,232 (8,364,103) -
Total 5t 20,511,458 3,169,704 3,609,875 2,876,090 2,933,973 1,950,056 915,770 3,164,388  (8,364,103) 30,767,211
Segment results: DEEE : 4,474,948 694,161 946,675 551,883 658,172 372,585 160,212 418,434 (35,647) 8,241,423
Reconciliations: ik -
Inferest income il 174,867
Gain on fair value changes of BEMENDEEEE

investment properties Fli 120,936
Loss on fair value changes of HAREES ABRH

financial insfruments af SRIRNANEE

FVTPL 2B (283,759)
Gain on fair value changes of HirgReEANEE

other financial liabilities BEF 59,552
Gain on early repayment of REEETARER

convertible loans k= 3,862
Investment income RENG 22,374
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAIEN = 8,510
Loss on disposal of associates HEMWSNIEE (30,649)
Gain from a bargain purchase HBIENSH 30
Exchange gain EQHE 40,018
Finance costs (other than inferest HEMA(HEE8E

on lease liabilities) FIRBRIN) (652,091)
Share of results of associates DEHELTRE 71,094
Share of result of a joint venture AE—BEEEEEE 1,390
Unallocated income and expenses  KAEM RS (4,587,133)
Profit before fax IR AN 3,190,424
Segment assets: APEE : 27,042,591 1,669,502 2,059,517 2,135,323 1,012,331 1,062,153 499,670 9,592,697 - 45,073,784
Reconciliations: 5K -
Inferests in associates REEA TR 2,696,897
Interest in a joint venture R—BEEB LR 14,191
Other financial assets HttGREE 3,285,104
Deferred fax assefs EAREEE 520,858
Cash and bank deposits RERFITER 7,361,770
Total assets BERS 58,952,604
Other segment information: HAHER
Write-down of inventories fo WEGEEZTRRFE

net realisable value, net ezl 30,924 2,293 2,125 (781) 1,527 335 ns 8,748 - 45,886
Depreciation and amortisation HER#ESE 1,419,757 84,510 48,578 76,657 54,683 45,946 20,056 163,932 - 1,949
Impairment of other intangible assets  EfIEFEETIE 66,875 - - - - - - - - 66,875
Reversal of impairment of loan EEDRRERD

receivables, net B8 (156,104) - - - - - - - - (156,104)
Impairment of long-term loan REBKER

receivables BE 50,000 - - - - - - - - 50,000
Reversal of impairment of contract KB EBERD

assefs, net B (3,207) - - - - - - - - (3,207)
Impairment of frade and bills BRENRER

receivables, nef ZRRET 470,924 13,999 (6,453) (12,748) 61,289 1,386 (6,110) 24,769 - 547,056
Impairment of prepayments, net ENRBREP 1,945 - - - - - - - - 1,945
Impairment of other receivables, net  ELH1E I ERE Bl & F4E 24,056 - - - - - - 3,747 - 27,803
Capital expenditure BEAER! 3,235,083 87,441 217,625 77,180 65,495 157,687 18,203 1,128,375 - 4,987,089
# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, # EBABEZBEAENYE  BERNRE FHES

right-of-use assets, investment properties and other intangible assets, among
which the additions resulted from business combination amounted to

RMB23,684,000.

E BEMEREMEREE  HDOBERER
SHMEELNAER AR 23,684,000 °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

. K A 1 B4 N -
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4, BESEEFE @\
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR BE2021F12831BLLEENKEE
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 DEER
Southern  Southwestern Central Eastern Northern  Northwestern ~ Northeastern Qutside
China China China China China China China Consolidated
= (i3] Ed 3 E [iip =it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
T ARETRT T  ARETR T : 5 : f
Segment revenue: DHBA
Sale of goods relating fo building SHEmE
materials and home improvement  XEX51EE
business HE® 15,801,237 2,892,765 3,258,939 1,988,684 2,613,559 1,625,439 905,893 989,837 - 30,076,353
Contract revenue from renovation HERGHETRE
and installation works BRI 1,005,358 58,903 103,290 202,750 47,362 9,208 6,324 15,358 - 1,448,553
Income from environmental RRETERHAM
engineering and Liileelints
other related services W 142,100 5,769 16,667 121071 3,819 4 95 1,267 - 300,929
Financial service income SRBHNE 74,833 10,514 1416 25,48 2,083 k1 93 - - 14,18
Property rental and other MBS REMIBE
related services R 12,232 - - - - - - 105,399 - 117,631
Revenue from external customers LiSE=SSION 17,035,760 2,967,951 3,380,312 2,337,753 2,666,823 1,634,719 912,405 1,121,861 - 32,057,584
Infersegment revenue DA 5,519,677 499,366 667,011 546,866 641,187 262,306 203,819 935,066 (9,275,298 -
Total 5t 22,555,437 3,467,317 4,047,323 2,884,619 3,308,010 1,897,025 1,116,224 2,056,927 (9,275,298) 32,057,584
Segment results: DEEE : 4,863,385 745,566 916,358 473,152 677,323 369,776 205,840 289,901 (93,608 8,447,693
Reconciliations: iR
Inferest income A BWE 101,341
Gain on fair value changes of RENENNBE
investment properties BN & 916,828
Gain on fair value changes of BARBESIABZS
financial insfruments af SRIEHANEE
FVTPL B = 199,224
Gain on fair value changes of HtrSRaEANEE
other financial liabilties BT 8,048
Investment income REWNG 5,508
Gain from bargain purchase EEIERETR 26,217
Loss on deemed disposal of RIEHEHSLT
associates BiE (56,491)
Exchange loss ERBHE 48,560]
Finance costs (other than inferest MEMA(RE8E
on lease liabilites) TSI (536,236)
Share of results of associates AEHELIEE 242,740
Share of result of a joint venture DE—EEBLEEE 1.278
Unallocated income and expenses AR ME RS 5,500,308)
Profit before tax RRATEA 3,807,282
Segment assets: APEE : 23,144,419 1,694,292 2,0M,075 2,298,299 1,128,725 950,928 568,995 8,216,082 - 40,072,815
Reconciliations: ik
Interests in associates REENTELR 2,618,990
Interest in a joint venture R—-BEB LR 12,801
Other financial assets HittGREE 2,854,207
Deferred fax assefs BARBEE 349,105
Cash and bank deposits RERBIER 7,646,249
Asset held for sale RBIEHEEE 929,022
Total assets BERT 54,483,189
Other segment information: HitFBER :
Write-back of inventories BOGEZTER
to net realisable value, net FEER (39,055) 4,298 (200) (2,272) (372) (138) 103 18,632 - (19,004)
Depreciation and amortisation MER#HE 956,482 78,872 74,893 60,609 49,893 40,980 23,565 80,829 - 1,366,123
Impairment of property, LER
plant and equipment AE 22,088 - - 469 - - 4,393 167) - 26,783
Impairment of goodwill BERE 24,869 - - - - - - - - 24,869
Impairment of other HitmpEE
inangible assets B 1320 - - - - - - - - 1,320
Impairment of loan receivables EUEEE 329,279 - - - - - - - - 329,279
Impairment of contract assefs, net  SHIEEHIEBE 20,431 - - - - - 60 - - 20,491
Impairment of trade and bills EZRIGIERER
receivables, net AEPR 887,819 6,371 12,988 22,022 15,969 5,461 14,224 13,093 - 977,947
Impairment of prepayments, net BYREREZE n 25 1,090 15 236 il - - - 1,448
Impairment of other receivables, net  EHIELRIERIEF4E 1914 - - - - - - 190] - 1,824
Capital expenditure® BABR! 3,485,780 148,279 620,006 21,507 143,299 123,540 23,349 1,873,239 (77,846 6,551,153
# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, # BABRLZOIEREYE  BMERDE  EREE
right-of-use assets, investment properties and other intangible assets, among E KBEWEREMEEPEE  HORIERER
which the additions resulted from business combination amounted to SHMELNRER AREE141,624,0007T °
RMB1,141,624,000.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e B R RMIEE

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. WA ~ EfthUOA ~ ULRS RR FlS
GAINS
REVENUE 1PN
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from PN EIAREERSZE SR ADIFER
contracts with customers and the reconciliation of the revenue from REZTESHNIINABDIERNTIKRETLR
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the BVHIER -

segment information:

By revenue nature: BINAMEEBED

2022 2021
Goods Goods
transferred Services transferred Services
ata point  transferred atapoint  fransferred

in time over time in time over fime Total
RE—FN RBEEER RE—FE §
BENER EENRS BEt BHROVEm &R 5 st

RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTRT ARMFR ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue from contracts with REZEEHN

customers: WA
Sale of goods relating fo building ~ fEEERM

materials and home FEEHER

improvement business MER 27,544,672 - 27,544,672 30,076,353 - 30,076,353
Sale of goods and services BTRERE TN

income relating to new ERHEER

energy business AU 566,244 23,134 589,378 - - -
Confract revenue from renovation  EIERLETI2

and installation works BHRUA - 1,359,196 1,359,196 - 1,448,553 1,448,553
Income from environmental BEITREREMD

engineering and other TERAARE

related services W - 348,326 348,326 - 300,929 300,929
Logistics and other related services ¥ R B 4B B3RS = 693,129 693,129 - - -
Sub-total INE+ 28,110,916 2,423,785 30,534,701 30,076,353 1,749,482 31,825,835
Financial service income ZRURIS U 82,984 14,18
Property rental and other WMEREREM

related services TBEARRTS 149,526 117,631
Total ®5 30,767,211 32,057,584
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e M BRI EE

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. WA ~ HttlA ~ YK Rl o)
GAINS (Continued)
REVENUE (Continued) WA (#8%)
By geographical locations: BHIBNIEED ¢

2022 2021
Goods Goods
transferred Services transferred Services
at a point  transferred atapoint  fransferred

in time over time Total in fime over fime

RE-GH RBREER < % REBER
BENER ERORE st EENER EEORE »s
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT AR¥FTT AREFT ARBETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue from contracts with REZEEHN

customers: WA
Mainland China PEIPH 26,841,142 1,818, 28,659,253 29,086,516 1,722,857 30,809,373
Outside China PEIES 1,269,774 605,674 1,875,448 989,837 26,625 1,016,462
Sub-total INET 28,110,916 2,423,785 30,534,701 30,076,353 1,749,482 31,825,835
Financial service income TR S 82,984 114,118
Property rental and other MEEEREM

related services BRI 149,526 117,631
Total REt 30,767,211 32,057,584
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in TRIRIN AR S HRNFEBINRE DT A
the current reporting period that were included in the contract BREERKBAIBENSEATRET I
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised A

from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT ABETT
Revenue recognised that was included in RBEHAFTASK
contract liabilities at the beginning of the SENEER
reporting period: WA
Sale of goods HEERD 3,089,455 1,414,239
Contract revenue from renovation and RERZETIZ
installation works SR 55,310 24,204
Income from environmental engineering and  IBIE T2 R E {488
other related services RFSU = 147 1,041

3,144,912 1,439,484
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e B R RMIEE

REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND
GAINS (Continued)

REVENUE (Continued)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

5.

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods
and payment is generally due within 30 to 360 days from delivery
or is settled on an advance receipt basis depending on the market
conditions, market tactics and relationships with the customers.

Renovation, installation and engineering services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from the
date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is retained by
customers until the end of the retention period as the Group's
entitlement to the final payment is conditional on the satisfaction of
the service quality by the customers over a certain period as
stipulated in the contracts.

Logistics and other related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days upon
completion of services or is settled on an advance receipt basis
depending on the relationships with the customers.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

TR HIH SR R UL BY

Amounts expected to be recognised as

A ~ ELfthlBOA ~ es K Fll 2 ()

YN (1)

BHEE
BRAEBENSINENGIL T

HEE LT
AEERREREITEE  IR—RERE
% 302360 KABH - AR » MER

iR RZFERIL RIS ES

K2 ER TR
ENSEBRHRBMERBERET - 2
NR—RRBEBRIOVKAIE - ZAR
BB REERBHB/BR - OB
REAEBERSRVROVENRIIRZFZ
SHREN —REBANRBERK N
BIOTEE -

W REMAEEIRS
EBNEERSREERBNEBEREST - 8
1 IR— MRS AR S 72 42 30 KA E Hi TR 3
REEHERZBNONGE

RBSHR - DBEEH NENEECRES
AHDRET) IR BDESVEZERUOT ¢

2022
RMB’000

2021
RMB'000
ARBFT

AR¥FTT

revenue: B8

Not more than 1year RLR1E 1,192,544 1,435,765

Over 1year 1FE> = 219,791 588,242
1,412,335 2,024,007

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised over
one year relate to renovation, installation and engineering services.
All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations are expected to be recognised
not more than one year. The amounts disclosed above do not
include variable consideration which is constrained.

DEERRR—FL LRBHR TENE
ERNRZEBERIREE RERTIE
B - MEEMDEEHR NENSENRS
BRNVEZRBIREADIR —FM®#B - Dl
RENTEEEZORNTENE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. I ~ EfthUA ~ URes Re ek ()
GAINS (Continued)
OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND GAINS HAWA - IRz
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
By 5E AREFT ARETT
Bank interest income RN S &= 95,322 983,200
Interest income from other loan receivables  EL4hfEUT {& 2R 69F S U 12,080 4,644
Interest income from other financial assets S RIE E N SUNES 32,362 3,497
Interest income from long-term lease EHE SRS
receivables BRI B U 35,103 -
Total inferest income A BN 1828 174,867 101,341
Government grants and subsidies BUN BN 4885 115,070 72,271
Gain on fair value changes of BREYENDEEEZE
investment properties I 14 120,936 916,828
Gain on fair value changes of BRDEESTABRN
financial instruments ERMITENATEE
at FVTPL BERA 5 = 199,224
Gain on fair value changes of other HitsrasAnEE
financial liabilities BENF i 59,552 8,048
Gain on early repayment of REEETRREM
convertible loans Mt 3] 3,862 -
Investment income BEINES 22,374 5,508
Gain on disposal of items of other intangible &S MM EEFZE -
assetfs and property, plant and equipment BB & %18 B N 16,976 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBEAIMEN = 8,510 -
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets R ICFFAREE EMTESAE 13C 2,145 396
Gain from a bargain purchase FEBUUBATEN = 39 30 26,217
Rental income HEINES 17,516 21,034
Exchange gain bE R it 40,018 -
Others Hib 86,598 82,204
668,454 1,433,071
Government grants and subsidies mainly represent funding BT R A = 2B BN E B B HSS
received from government authorities to support certain of the BAEBBE TR THNES » WEITOH
Group's research and development activities. There are no S B REEBRENRENFEERAE R
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these grants and e
subsidies.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me M R R M EE

6. FINANCE COSTS

6. BB

2022
RMB’000

AR¥FTT

2021
RMB'000
ARBTTT

Interest expenses on bank and other loans F|ITREMERFN 2R 700,841 565,142
Inferest expenses on lease liabilities HEBEVNEHRX 28,993 9,913
729,834 575,055
Less: Inferest capitalised B BRERE (48,750) (28,906)
681,084 546,149
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BR#¥iaiEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBIRRATHA DICHR (BT A) T3
SIBREWN
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
By 5F AREFT ARETT
Cost of inventories relating to building £ R B
materials and home improvement ERENE
business S 20,033,849 22,336,356
Cost of goods and services relatingto  ERETESRZEHRBRENER K
new energy business RFE A 51,322 -
Direct cost of renovation and EERTZETIZEEE
installation works WA 1,052,753 1,074,442
Direct cost of environmental REIERAMAERER
engineering and other related services B A4 229,760 179,458
Direct cost of logistics and other WA R E AR BRI AR 5
related services EEAA 592,545 -
Direct cost of financial services TRRBEERA 2,681 4,965
Direct cost of property rental and other ¥ & & E 48R RS
related services BEERAAN 56,992 33,674
Write-down/(write-back) of inventories  #ilJ8, (0 S E O #17
to net realisable value, net PIEFER 45,886 (19,004)
Depreciation of property, plant Wz - B KEEE
and equipment e 12 1,664,727 1,220,264
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEETE 13A 185,212 108,338
Amortisation of other intangible assets — EL & 7 188 158 64,180 37,521
Total depreciation and amortisation WERBHRSE 1,914,119 1,366,123

Annual Report 2022 3R 147



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RRMEE

7.

148

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued)

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Auditor’s remuneration

Employee benefit expense (including
directors’ remuneration (note 8)):
Wages and salaries
Pension scheme contributions (note)
Staff welfare and other expenses
Equity-settled share option expense
Service cost included in defined

benefit plan

Research and development costs
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of other
infangible assets and property, plant
and equipment
Impairment of property, plant
and equipment
Changes in fair value of
investment properties
Loss on disposal/deemed
disposal of associates
Loss/(gain) on fair value changes of
financial instruments at FVTPL
Gain on fair value changes of other
financial liabilities
Gain on early termination
of convertible loans
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Gain from a bargain purchase
Gain on termination of right-
of-use assets
Impairment of goodwill
Impairment of other intangible assets
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment
of loan receivables, net
Impairment of long-term loan receivables
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment
of contract assets, net
Impairment of trade and bills
receivables, net
Impairment of prepayments, net
Impairment of other receivables, net
Foreign exchange differences, net

7.

FEBEEEERESIED

OGER=CNE
B e
EERANR> (BIFESHH
(M¥5t8)) :

ITERFE
RINSSHEIHER (BYEE)
S LT REMES

DURAN fR< B R RS
St AR ETBAIST &0V
A

B AA
HERMBPEENNE -
BB RERIBIEBH
(M) B8
W= - BB RRRE

BB
REMENTEE

)
HE/RIFEEEMEQRT
B8

BRTBEESI A ANRRNER TR
ANEEREBEE(FiE)

HtEmEEATEE
BENR 28
REEBETRRER
EAE=S
HENBLIMENZ
BEBUIEMEN G
RICERREENS
EAlE=S

SERE
HitnEREERE
RIER(RERD),
BIEIPER
REBEIERRE
SHEE(RERD),
BIEIPER
BER2RIGRERRIERIE
PR
BIYFRBEFER

H At fRRGRIR R E P8
EREFRFER

FRELENRF (&)

Note

B &t

38

32

12

14

31

13C
15A
15B

23

24

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BFxT ARETT
24,824 28,938
7,849 8,920
2,074,379 1,716,081
192,363 165,391
93,705 97,585
47,850 7,092
774 339
2,409,071 1,986,488
1,219,208 1,215,499
(16,976) 51,789

= 26,783
(120,936) (916,828)
30,649 56,491
283,759 (199,224)
(59.552) (8,048)
(3,862) -
(8,510) -
(30) (26,217)
(2,145) (396)

- 24,869

66,875 1,320
(156,104) 329,279
50,000 -
(3,207) 20,491
547,056 977,947
1,945 1,448
27,803 1,824
(40,018) 48,560

Note: There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the
employer to reduce the existing level of contributions (2021: Nil).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e B R RMIEE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8. EEHFMNRAZRSHMNES
PAID EMPLOYEES

(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (A) ESFIH
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to REBERA MR EEER TR
the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies ENTREEFHNSIWT -

Ordinance, is as follows:

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#EETIT AETTT

Fees ok 24,625 23,749
Other emoluments: EHiis -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind T RBEEEYIEH 2,238 7,445

Equity-settled share option expense DU FRe B R = - 3,274

Pension scheme contributions BINTETEIHER 233 226

2,471 10,945

27,096 34,694
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e M BRI EE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8. ZEZEHWRAZSSHIMES @)
PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EEFHM (|
The remuneration of each of the directors is set out below: ZEENFHIFIWT -

Equity-

Salaries, settled
allowances share Pension
and benefits option scheme

in kind expense confributions Total

g 286 DRAGR RikE
BE REVETN CBRERS SHEIRER @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETT AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥Txn

Executive directors: HiFEE:
Mr. Wong Luen Hei BHIELE 2,234 = = 15 2,249
Mr. Zuo Manlun Vamd il ivtas 5,208 - - 35 5,243
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping ERYTT 2,234 - - 15 2,249
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BHmiE 2,234 - - 30 2,264
Mr. Kong Zhaocong SKEB K 2,234 - = 30 2,264
Mr. Chen Guonan fsEIRm L 2,234 - - 30 2,264
Dr. Lin Shaoguan MOz ET - 2,238 - 15 2,253
Mr. Huang Guirong sERkE 2,234 - - 33 2,267
Mr. Luo Jianfeng BRIERT 2,234 = = 15 2,249
Mr. Lin Dewei MisERE 2,234 - - 15 2,249
23,080 2,238 - 233 25,551

Independent non-executive  BIIIEMIT

directors: BE:

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan ~ EEIZ 04 309 o - - 309
Ms. Lan Fang BEut 309 = - - 309
Dr. Tao Zhigang BERIET 309 = - - 309
Mr. Cheng Dickson i [p e 309 - - - 309
Ms. Lu Jiandong Beatt 309 - - - 309
1,545 - - - 1,545
24,625 2,238 - 233 27,096
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e B R RMIEE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

8. EEHMhOhZREHMES®

(A)

ESFHM (8

Equity-
Salaries, seftled
allowances share Pension
and benefits option scheme
Fees in kind expense  contributions Total
T2 MURANR B
e REVBN ERERZ SHEIHR e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETE
Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Wong Luen Hei BHELE 2,159 - - 15 2,174
Mr. Zuo Manlun imimrE 4,982 2,643 1,637 34 9,296
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping EERUT 2,159 - - 15 2,174
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BoaEE 2,159 - - 29 2,188
Mr. Kong Zhaocong AKBEE 2,159 - - 29 2,188
Mr. Chen Guonan BERETE 2,159 - - 29 2,188
Dr. Lin Shaogquan MOZEL - 2,159 - 14 2,173
Mr. Huang Guirong BERSTYE 2,159 - - 31 2,190
Mr. Luo Jianfeng BRELE 2,159 2,643 1,637 15 6,454
Mr. Lin Dewei N e 2,159 - - 15 2,174
22,254 7,445 3,274 226 33,199
Independent non-executive  BIIFHIT
directors: Es:
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan ~ EBIZRZ54E 299 - - - 299
Ms. Lan Fang E hecen 299 - - - 299
Dr. Tao Zhigang BERIE L 299 - - - 299
Mr. Cheng Dickson e 299 - _ _ 299
Ms. Lu Jiandong BRERUT 299 - - - 299
1,495 - - - 1,495
23,749 7,445 3,274 226 34,694

No director waived or agreed to waive any emolument and
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year (2021:

Nil).

BEESNZAAR ML OHE
MAEEMERKBNBEALBRNAE
NBEAEBRFRFREBBEMOE
SZAYTOME -

FAMESNREMBIUIFNTES
BV EARIE (20214F « ) -
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TR e M BRI EE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (2021: five) executive directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8(A) above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2021: Nil)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

8. EEHMhOhZREHMES =

B) hB3RSFHES
TR D2 REFHEERLEMS
(2021%F : &) TES - HFBIF
B CMEE8(A) - IRERWIFAR
TEZRITHEBREAOG F=2(2021
F ) &SRB B B
N
2022 2021
RMB'000
ARBFT

RMB’000
AR¥FTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind T RGEREYIRHN 3,254 -
Equity-settled share option expense BRI R B R 257N -
Pension scheme contributions BN STEIER 50 -

29,095 -

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$18,000,001 to HK$18,500,000

3,000,001/8 7% 3,500,000 38 7T
7,000,00138 7% 7,500,000 87T
18,000,001 78752 18,500,000 57T

FN I NI EEEIFES RIFITH
RENTSHFHESHEL T :

Number of employees

EBE=8

2022 2021

[[75 J P R
|
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e B R RMIEE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FRiSHiRsZ
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
By 5+ ARBFITT ARETT
Current fax BIEAm 1B

PRC e 673,647 602,213
Hong Kong B 3,896 1,331
Other jurisdictions HtT AR 44,399 221,692
721,942 825,236

(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFECBE),/ NE2EE
PRC D& (34,863) (82,31)
Hong Kong B 896 43
Other jurisdictions HibEkER - (54)
(33,967) (82,322)
Deferred tax EALRIE 34 (12,451) 45,779
Total tax charge for the year FRRIBZHRER 675,524 788,693

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the
Group are domiciled and operate.

HONG KONG PROFITS TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.50%
(2021: 16.50%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which
is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
The first HK$2,000,000 (2021: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits
of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2021: 8.25%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.50% (2021: 16.50%).

AEERMAEENER TR RSB
ENDEEBMEL AR SR ZEEE
ISR

FEMNER

BN EREBRERNRE BELNLSESR
7% % A 8916.50% (20214F : 16.50%) 5t 12 5
B EAEBE—EWBLADRTESMRAEIF
BREFAENEERIN IWBRITS
2,000,000 7T (20214F : 2,000,0008 75 ) 89
JE SRR % ) #2 8.25% (2021 4F : 8.25%) B9
KR - HRERRIEA16.50%(20217F :
16.50% ) BVRR E &R o
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RE B RRMEE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FSHMASZ @)
PRC CORPORATE INCOME TAX PETEFRE
The Group’s income tax provision in respect of its operations in AEEDBBIRELAE ZREREANRE
mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax rates on # . FMEEENERR S ZEBRES
the taxable profits for both years, based on the existing legislation, BB ZEFBITER B -
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
Certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are qualified as High and AEEBESTOEWNBAIRMBEEESES
New Technology Enterprises and are entitled to a preferential AT EER > IJ=15.00% 9B B30T
corporate income tax rate of 15.00% during both years. BRX o
INCOME TAX FOR OTHER JURISDICTIONS HWaAEENMERE
The Group’s tax provision in respect of other jurisdictions has been AREENEMIEARBORIERBRIREAN
calculated at the applicable tax rates in accordance with the EEREERMENTEARRBIRITIERBE
prevailing practices of the jurisdictions in which the Group ARESTE -
operates.
During the year, income tax of other jurisdictions mainly arose from FA - EtMIERENERT2REAE
US (2021: Australia and Canada) for the Group’s disposal of BRZED (20215 : BENRNERN) HERE
investment properties. Wpze -
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at HARANTGAREDINBRAITED LB
the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of the TREEIENEARRRBIEMN ORI
Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the ERIZERRKSTENRIBRSZAVE RO T ¢
effective tax rate is as follows:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®STT ARKTT
Profit before tax BRI B A 3,190,424 3,807,282
Tax at the PRC corporate income tax rate of BPEEEMERE25%

25% STE/RIE 797,606 951,821
Effect of different taxation rates NIREBFE (198,166) (133,513)
Share of results of associates DMEENRTEE (17,774) (60,685)
Share of result of a joint venture DME—BEEEFEER (348) (320)
Income not subiject to tax HERRN = (59,439) (10,326)
Expenses not deductible for tax AOgHREXS 97,623 49,721
Tax losses utilised from prior years PERBATEREBEIR (72,322) (44,062)
Tax losses not recognised KiERRIEBEE 110,935 95,814
Adjustments in respect of current tax of FBEEEENRIERIE

prior years BY5E & (33,967) (82,322)
Tax incentive on eligible expenses HEEREZOVRIBUE (132,008) (109,254)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the HANGPER BT DK

distributable profits of the Company's 5% HINIRIRTER

subsidiaries in the PRC e 183,384 131,819
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BRAEEERREFTENRESH 675,524 788,693
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10. DIVIDENDS 10. iR
HK$ HK$'000 HK$ HK$'000
BT FET BT BT
per share per share
TR 5B
2022 interim dividend paid 2022 ERNPERS (20215 -
[2021: 2021 interim dividend paid) 201 FENDERS) - - 012 372,290
Less: Dividends for shares held for share  J8l : A1 REISH ISR
award scheme [note 38(B)) BURR = (PYEE 38(8)) - - 0.12 (2,759)
- 369,531
2021 final dividend paid WNEBHRBRR(200F:
(2021: 2020 final dividend paid) 2020 FENRERS) 0.26 806,629 0.38 1178,919
Less: Dividends for shares held for share  J8 : S DB BIETREIRD
award scheme [note 38(B) B (Piat 38(8)) 0.26 (5,978) 0.38 (8,737)
800,651 1,170,182
800,651 1,539,713
Equivalent fo SER RMB649,336,000 RMB1,278,424,000
AR # 649,336,000 7 AERH£1,278,424,000 7
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of RBERE  ESSERNEE20225F
HK30 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 per NEJNBIFFEESKAHEREERZER
ordinary share in aggregate of HK$923,828,000 has been 30581l - &57923,828,000 87T H 5K 2023 F
declared by the Board to the owners of the Company whose 581982V ANRIREIMOARDHES
names appear on the Company's register of members on 19 May AN (2015 - KRB EREZBER 268/ -
2023 (2021: final dividend of HK26 cents per ordinary share in ©51800,651,000/87T) © BEZE2022F125
aggregate of HK$800,651,000). The amount of the final dividend B ITFESIROVKRBR B DRAIRES T IE
declared for the year ended 31 December 2022 is calculated WFIEBHERITROHEE » BrRinE
based on the number of issued shares, less dividends for shares EhStEIRTIFRIDBIR SEHE -

held for the share award scheme, at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements.
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N. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO N. AXQAIYHEBARBGERET
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are BEMTNSBsIEEREAREERT
based on:

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT ARBETT
Earnings 27
Profit aftributable to owners of the Company 5t &G REA K #55 & i
used in the basic and diluted earnings AINALNTHB AN
per share calculation FEAS A 2,517,322 3,044,159

Number of Shares

e 8
2022

Shares 27)
Weighted average number of BaiTEaR IR

ordinary shares in issue 2198 3,102,418,400 3,102,418,400
Weighted average number of shares held RADEEISTEIFTFRID IR

for the share award scheme SZ19Er (22,991,000) (22,991,000)
Adjusted weighted average number of STEEREANREE RN

ordinary shares of the Company AEINANTBET

in issue used in the basic and diluted SRR

earnings per share calculation S5 3,079,427,400 3,079,427,400
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue REBREZE2022F R 2021F12 8318 1
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, respectively. FEPDRBRTNBLHEZER -
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. M -~ BBz’

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Plant and and office Leasehold  Construction
buildings machinery equipment Vehicles  improvements in progress
8 KE i
IHREF  RERBE RBLERE ERIR NEEE RRIE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Cost: 7
At TJanuary 2021 RwnFIE18 6,021,122 6,173,794 318,870 228,843 194,841 1997,517 14,934,987
Additions HE 126,855 1,050,945 20,982 459,201 19,925 1,659,996 3,337,904
Acquisifions of subsidiaries JiERELT 206,623 170,326 9,852 3,019 1374 187,072 508,266
Transfers i 780,509 615,576 15,947 11,606 17,312 (1,440,950) -
Transfer from investment TRBRENE
properties nofe 14 (&) 31,516 - - - - - 31,516
Disposals e (85,295 (274,500 9,059] ,387) (37,015 (6,316] (423,572)
Exchange realignment ERHE [10,664) (27,063) (390) (1,185) 2,028) (26,643 67,975)
At 31 December 2021 and ROnFNENER
1January 2022 02F1818 7,070,666 7,709,076 356,202 690,097 194,409 2,320,676 18,341,126
Additions HE N.276 1,192,601 7,054 14,691 24,576 1,929,965 3,240,163
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WENBLAT
Inote 39) (i3t 39) - 9 160 - 7 2782 3728
Transfers Gl 74721 651,001 36,085 5810 12,963 (1,080,582 -
Transfer from invesment FRORENE
properties nofe 14 (&) 77,062 - - - - - 77,062
Disposals e (83,582) (281,543 (11,806] 4,233) (17,694 (6,985) [405,843)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWELAT - 93] (43) 135 - (1,643) (1914
Exchange reclignment EQHE 38,577 15,790 1297 1,033 1761 553 59,01
At 31 December 2022 RawnEnENE 7,548,720 9,287,611 388,949 707,263 216,024 3,164,766 21,313,333
Accumulated depreciationand ~ REHHER
impairment: BE:
At TJanuary 2021 RWNEIE1B (1,634,978 (2,830,440) 234,362 (170,027) (110,409) (54,663 (5,034,879)
Provided for the year lnote 7] FEAEHE (M37) (392,018 (724,485) 139,730) (39,488) (24,543) - (1.220,264)
Disposals e 62,027 139,163 7,388 8,452 36,298 - 253,328
Impairment nofe 7 BB (M) - (12.296) ] 13 (5,240) 18,807 (26783
Exchange realignment ELHZL 7,563 8,760 92 828 1796 - 19,039
At 31 December 2021 and RwnFnENER
1January 2022 02F1818 (1,957,406] (3,419,298) (267,063) 200,222) (102,100 (63,470) (6,009,559)
Provided for the year lnote 7] EAEHE (ME7) (393,738) (1,158,419] (34,672 (42,100 (35,798) - (1,664,727)
Disposals e 68,907 174,648 7924 2432 3,742 - 257,653
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWELT - I 1l 2 - - 14
Exchange realignment EREZ (4,086) (6,931) (759) 919) 1,769) - (14,464)
At 31 December 2022 RawnEnENE (2,286,323) (4,409,999) (294,559) (240,807) (135,925) (63,470) (7,431,083)
Net carrying amount: RESE -
At 31 December 2022 RawnEnENE 5,262,397 4,877,612 94,390 466,456 80,099 3,101,296 13,882,250
At 31 December 2021 RANENENE 513,260 4,289,778 89,139 489,875 92,309 2,257,206 12,331,567

Included in the Group’s property, plant and equipment are freehold
lands which had a net carrying amount of RMB139,916,000 (2021:
RMB84,167,000). The freehold lands are situated outside Hong

Kong.

SIAREBDZE - MERRIBOIRAZERELT
MR FER A R15139,916,0007T (2021
F : AR 84,167,0007T) ° sZRAZERZETH
RIREEBEIN ©
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13. LEASES 13. S

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE

The Group has lease confracts for various items of leasehold land,
plants and buildings, vehicles and other equipment used in its
operations. For leasehold land classified as prepaid land lease
payments previously, lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leasehold land from the owners with lease periods of
50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms
of these land leases. For other leased lands classified as operating
lease previously, they generally have lease terms between 10 and
50 years. Leases of plants and buildings generally have lease
terms between 1 and 25 years. Lease of vehicles generally have
lease terms between 1 and 5 years, while other equipment
generally have lease terms between 1 and 5 years. Generally, the
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets outside the Group. There are several lease contracts that
include extension and termination options and variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below.
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13. LEASES (Continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued)

A. Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

13. A& m@®

FEBIEREEA (1)

A [EREEE
rEEBEREEENRBERRER
BYEEEHL0 T ¢

Leasehold  Plants and Other
land*  buildings Vehicles  equipment Total
HExE
It BEREF BRTE Hithzk s REt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1January 2021 1220211818 1,923,004 100,257 645 12,146 2,036,052
Additions NE 172,217 77,651 536 2,216 252,620
Acquisitions of subsidiaries  WENTEAD 51,431 166,278 1134 3,943 222,786
Transfer from investment PERERENE

properties (note 14) (PEE14) 8,361 - - - 8,361
Depreciation charge (note 7). T ERSSZ (K5t 7) (51,787) (53,773) (604) (2,174) 108,338)
Termination I - (10,795) - - (10,795)
Exchange realignment ERIEE (19,028) (2,695) (9) - (21,732)
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F 128318 &

1 January 2022 20221818 2,084,198 276,923 1,702 16,131 2,378,954
Additions nNE 66,509 215,247 413 1,653 283,822
Acquisitions of subsidiaries TN EAD

(note 39) (PREE 39) 19,944 - - - 19,944
Transfer from investment FEREeRENE

properties (note 14) (PfEE14) 22,99 = = = 22,991
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBERT (24,296) (26,193 - = (50,489)
Depreciation charge [note 70 $TE RS SZ (Mf5E7) (55,944) (124,879) (1,029) (3,360) (185,212)
Termination RIE - (15,737) - - (15,737)
Exchange realignment PERFHEE 4,677 15,293 476 161 20,607
At 31 December 2022 122022123318 2,118,079 340,654 1,562 14,585 2,474,880
# The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for all leasehold # AEBENSEHEEERE T TIE

land except for those under operating lease arrangements with a net
carrying amount of RMB44,509,000 (2021: RMB44,337,000).

RER - EEDBER AR 44,509,000
7T (20214 © A R¥#844,337,000 7T ) B94CE
AEZE RS TIRIN o
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13. LEASES (Continued) 13. & @)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued) REBERERMBA (B)
B. Lease liabilities B. MHE&E
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HEEeENEBERRERNDNESU
during the year are as follows: T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFIT ARETIT
As at 1 January R1BE18 492,368 162,316
Additions MN=1 221,140 86,399
Acquisitions of subsidiaries g =S - 323,871
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—BEREAT (27,002) -
Interest expenses (note 6) A 2RIz (M5t 6) 28,993 9,913
Payments INEEA (136,022) (75,339)
Termination i (17,882) (11,191
Exchange realignment bE R FE R 16,81 (3,601)
As at 31 December 128318 578,406 492,368
Analysed info: DR
Current portion EE D 107,670 77,670
Non-current portion JEREIED 470,736 414,698
578,406 492,368
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEBENIHB ORI HIER
44 to the consolidated financial statements. M EF 44 RIREE
C. The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to C. REZANEEAEREEETHNZHRU
leases are as follows: T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETIT
Depreciation expense of right-of-use ERESENE
assets Bz 185,212 108,338
Interest expense on lease liabilities HnEeEasi2Est 28,993 9,913
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets  #R IS FAREE E TSN = (2,145) (396)
Expense relating to short-term leases CEEEERERES 16,438 22,837
Expense relating to leases of low-value EBEEEMEEN
assets MR 8,386 6,101
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBRANIERNEZE 236,884 146,793
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13. LEASES (Continued) 13. 8@

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued) AEBIERRMEA (&)

D. Extension and termination options D. EHARIRILKE
The Group has several lease contracts that include extension REBESTOSAHRRIERE
and termination options. These options are negotiated by ECN - RSRERDEEERD
management to provide flexibility in managing the leased- PETERHESEERS  WFEAR
asset portfolio and they are aligned with the Group’s SBENEBRTE - TNHIAEES
business needs. Set out below are the undiscounted potential BT AMTEER R RITEB AL
future rental payments for extension options which the Group KRBT -

is not reasonably certain to exercise:

2022

Payable Payable

within after
five years five years Total

BRAFA BRAFH®
= =2 #®Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFT AREFT ARETT

Extension options expected YEHIARETEN
not to be exercised FCHA T 2,494 = 2,494
2021

Payable Payable

within after
five years five years Total

BRAFA  BROFEE
2N =19 R5t
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AEETFIT ARETT ABETT

Extension options expected YEHIRZ{T/689

not to be exercised REHARE - - -
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13. LEASES (Continued) 13. & @)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued) AEBIERRMEA (&)
E. Variable lease payments E. OTRESM

The Group has lease contracts for land that contain variable
payments based on the unit purchase price of rice
announced by local government. Management's objective is
to align the lease expense with the amount paid last time.
The following summary provides information on the Group’s
variable lease payments, including the magnitude in relation

AEBBESERMOOBN MBS
WESEENTBIRNITHEESH
EEENERREHER<E EX
UEBRF - - UTHEREHS
BALEUBHEERNER - 158
BREVRERNER

to fixed payments:

2022
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
ERENE CIE-INES mat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFIT ARMETFIT AR¥EFIT
Fixed rent S 135,941 - 135,94
Variable rent only EEE ik - 81 81
135,941 81 136,022
2021
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
BEIRK TEITR mst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREBFT ARETTT
Fixed rent BEET 100,627 - 100,627
Variable rent only EEE-disk - 81 81
100,627 81 100,708

A 5% (2021: 5%) increase in unit purchase price of rice would
increase the total lease payments by 5% (2021: 5%).
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13. LEASES (Continued) 13. & @)

THE GROUP AS A LESSOR

During the year, the Group leases certain commercial properties in
Asia, North America and Oceania which were classified as
investment properties. The rental income of these properties
amounting to RMB149,526,000 (2021: RMB117,631,000) was
recognised and included in “Revenue” in profit or loss. Certain
office premises, machineries and equipment were classified as
property, plant and equipment under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB17,516,000 (2021: RMB21,034,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease
payments receivables by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

FEBEREEA

TR REBRDN - AL=MEAENEE
BT DEREEMHENDZENZE - Z5W=E
EEBNEER & R A ER#149,526,000 7T
(20214 : A R#117,631,00070) Wat A B #H
BTN R o BTN - B8R R1E (IR
SRS ZH N ) DERWE - MBERRIE -
FERENERBREXRALZIRES
WREEHHBRNECHETHRERE - &
EEBRTARBHNEERZ R AR
17,516,000 75 (20214 : A R #21,034,000
T0) » SEBHRIFE YIRS -

RBEHR - AEBREANTREKESES
REFZRE B EE A N BYREIRE SR
N

2022 2021
RMB‘000 RMB'000
ARBTTT

AREFT

Not more than 1year RZBR1E 524,784 542,590
Over 1year fo 2 years T 22T 99,396 118,002
Over 2 years to 3 years 2FEM EZE3FE 1,733 18,242
Over 3 years to 4 years IFUERATF 4,453 17,624
Over 4 years to 5 years AT ER ST 529 16,604
Over 5 years 5T E 1,290 14,052

642,185 727,114
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13. LEASES (Continued) 13. & @)
THE GROUP AS A LESSOR (Continued) AEEERLMEA (&)
The disaggregation of these office premises, machineries and DRERTESHEIR M - BB KRR IEVH
equipment classified as property, plant and equipment under NE -~ s REFIE <D IF R AR AR R D
operating leases and the reconciliation of the carrying amount at [EEVEES DI T ¢

the beginning and end of the period are set out below:

Land and Plant and
buildings machinery Total
TiRIEST R = Bt 25 ®Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT
Cost: RA :
At 1January 2021 R2021 1818 99,057 1,143,364 1,242,421
Additions =} - 471,295 471,295
Expiration and termination FHEFRRIE - (48,024) (48,024)
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F 128318 &
1January 2022 2022F1818 99,057 1,566,635 1,665,692
Additions =T 18,605 4,526 23,131
Expiration and termination FHEERRIE (51,428) (142,736) (194,164)
At 31 December 2022 fR2022F 12353168 66,234 1,428,425 1,494,659
Accumulated depreciation: REHITE -
At 1January 2021 R2021 1818 (29,850) (284,792) (314,642)
Provided for the year FREE (4,282) (133,832) (138,114)
Expiration and termination FHI R AR IE - 26,699 26,699
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F 123318 &
1January 2022 20221818 (34,132) (391,925) (426,057
Provided for the year FREE (3,946) (132,143) (136,089)
Expiration and termination FEERRIE 21,471 83,807 105,278
At 31 December 2022 $R2022F128318 (16,607) (440,261) (456,868)
Net carrying amount: REFE :
At 31 December 2022 fR2022F 12353168 49,627 988,164 1,037,791
At 31 December 2021 R2021F 128318 64,925 1,174,710 1,239,635
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES U, BEYE
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
By sE AR#EETTT ANEETTT
At 1 January 1818 7,809,639 6,973,570
Additions MN=1 1,421,859 1,806,613
Acquisitions of subsidiaries IREEME AT - 189,949
Transfer to property, plant and FBEEEYZE - BB
equipment 21E 12 (77,062) (31,516)
Transfer to right-of-use assets AR ERREE 13A (22,991) (8,361)
Transfer to long-term lease receivables  FREEHESEIGRIE (1,135,940) -
Transfer to asset held for sale PEREFIEHEEE 27 - (929,022
Changes in fair value NIEERE 7 120,936 916,828
Disposals HE (331,797) (547,281)
Exchange realignment bE R FHEE 242,843 (561,141)
At 31 December R12B318 8,027,487 7,809,639
Further summary details of the Group’s investment properties are ANEE RS Y ETEIE—HEEEHRAR
set out in the section headed “Summary of Major Investment & [ FTEREYERE | —6 -

Properties” of this report.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under RIS HES EAYE = R E YT
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in — B EEH RS FRRENEE13 -
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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14.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
VALUATION PROCESSES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment
properties were stated at fair value and were revalued by
independent professionally qualified valuers detailed below:

American Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd. For properties in Thailand

For properties in Australia
For properties in US

Ray White Valuations
JLL Valuation & Advisory Services, LLC &
CBRE Valuation & Advisory Services

Colliers International Realty Advisors Inc.  For properties in Canada

Guangdong Jingxin Real Estate Land For properties in the PRC
Asset Evaluation Co., Ltd.

KJPP Susan Widjojo & Rekan in
association with VPC Asia Pacific

For properties in Indonesia

Albawsala Real Estate Valuation
C.I.M Property Consultants Co., Ltd.

For properties in Dubai
For properties in Myanmar

Advantage Property Services Co., Ltd. For properties in Cambodia

The valuations performed by the valuers for financial reporting
purposes were reviewed by management. Management also
discussed the valuation processes and results with the valuers. The
net fair value gains or losses on revaluation are included in “other
revenue, income and gains” or “other expenses” in profit or loss,
respectively.

Management reviewed the valuation results by verifying all major
inputs and assumptions and assessing the reasonableness of
such valuations.
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4. BEME @)
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American Appraisal HEREYEMS
(Thailand) Ltd.

Ray White Valuations ENYEMS

JLL Valuation & Advisory M=BIYEMS

Services, LLC & CBRE
Valuation & Advisory Services
Colliers International Realty TLIERYE

Advisors Inc. ms
BERRERNETNEE mPEYEMNS
SHEERATY
KJPP Susan Widjojo & Rekanin  FLENEMEMS

association with VPC
Asia Pacific
Albawsala Real Estate Valuation  FhATEYZEM

I ol

C.I.M Property Consultants MABYEMNS
Co., ltd.

Advantage Property Services EREEES
Co., ltd. ms

EIEEEaSBRIGENMMYB2RBATE
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BN -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me M R R M EE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
VALUATION TECHNIQUES AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The following table shows the valuation techniques used by the
valuers in the determination of fair values. There were no
significant changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

4. BREWME®)

EEDERAREERE

TRIINSENEEADBEESIRNGE
T » ENGED A ES QS AEE) -

Fair value Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs
AREE BERE RUBRHmARR
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARETT
Vacant lands and buildings 2,686,319 3,683,161  Direct/sales comparison Premium/(discount) in
approach quality of land"
TETHRIESF BE SHELEE 21 30 B SA8EI0Y
wE/ (Frig) "
Lands and buildings 3,879,375 2,333,443  Residual method Gross development value®?

and estimated
construction cost®

THRIES RIerA REREE?
RISETREMAD
Lands and buildings 1,461,793 1,793,035  Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate and
approach market rent®
THRET WHENOE NI
ROSHEEY

8,027,487 7,809,639

Note:

m The higher the quality of land, the higher the fair value

2 The higher the gross development value, the higher the fair value
i The higher the estimated construction cost, the lower the fair value
“ The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value

ol The higher the market rent, the higher the fair value

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment
properties were within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as their
valuations were arrived at by reference to certain significant
unobservable inputs. There were no transfers into or out of Level 3
during the year (2021: Nil).

Byst -

" THEERS  ANEERS

(21 RERBEAS  QAEEAS
@ BEREFLAS - ANBEBEAE
@ EXcERS  ANEEDE
© mEEEAs  ANEEDS

RBEHE - KEBEETERCYERH A
HIEE  AEBNRENEBTERANEE
ZOREPE =R - ERIEAEE = RE A E
H (20214 « #£) o
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15. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(A)

(B)

168

15. BENEBRIEE

GOODWILL A B2
2022 yAVVAl
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE AR¥FIT AREFIT
At 1 January K118 495,857 381,408
Acquisitions of subsidiaries INERBAD 39 45,977 139,395
Impairment B 7 - (24,869)
Exchange realignment PERFHEE 44 (77)
At 31 December R128318 541,878 495,857
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (B) HtEFEE

Operating Patent and Computer
concession propriefary Customer software
Trademark  Brand name rights  technologies relationship  and others Total
iR BERUR
] &k ELh ERRK Hitt st
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
T AEBTT  AEETT ARETER
Cost: BA
At1January 2021 R200EF1518 118,043 10,577 24,550 133,254 - 105,383 491,807
Additions NE 94 - - 5,927 - 6,371 12,392
Acquisitions of subsidiaries NERBAT 48,520 - 8,992 92,260 47,700 351 200,623
Disposals HeE - - - - - 3,429) 3,429)
Exchange realignment ERHE (4,035) - 638) m3) - (313) 5,099)
At 31 December 2021 and R2021E12E3BR
TJanuary 2022 2022F1818 162,622 10,577 32,904 231,328 47,700 11,163 696,294
Additions NE 562 - 4,243 3,402 - 9,354 17,561
Acquisitions of subsidiaries RENEAT
(note 39) (W& 39) - - - - - 12 12
Disposals HE - - - (56) - - (56)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-ENEAT - - - - - 13 13
Exchange realignment ERHE 3,745 - 1,012 181 - 322 5,260
At 31 December 2022 1R2022F 128318 166,929 110,577 38,159 234,855 47,700 120,848 719,068
Accumulated amortisation and ~ REHEER
impairment: BE
At1January 2021 R2021E1818 (11,090) (25) - 25,139) - (74,624) (110,878]
Provided for the year (nofe 7) EREEET) 7,003) m (140) (21,843 - (8,464) (37,521
Disposals HE - - - - - 622 622
Impairment [note 7) E (MEE7) - - (1,320] - - - 1,320]
Exchange realignment ERHE 6 - 314 35 - 284 639
At 31 December 2021 and RONENENER
1January 2022 20221518 (18,147) (36) 1,146) 46,947) - (82,182 (148,458)
Provided forthe year (note7) 7V (5E7) (6,402 m (332) 135,384) 19,540] (10,51 (64,180]
Disposals HE - - - 56 - - 56
Impairment nofe 7) EE(ET) - (55,260] 1,615) - - - 66,875)
Exchange realignment ERRE 35) - 448) (59) - 236) (778)
At 31 December 2022 [R2022E128318 (26,584) (55,307) (13,541) (82,334) (9,540) (92,929) (280,235)
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2022 R2022E12831 8 140,345 55,270 24,618 152,521 38,160 27,919 438,833
At 31 December 2021 R2021E128318 144 475 110,541 31,758 184,381 47,700 28,981 547,836
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16.

CUEC e

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill, brand name and
trademark and operating concession rights with indefinite useful
lives set out in note 15 have been allocated to twelve individual
cash-generating units ("CGUs"), comprising subsidiaries engaging
in the following businesses:

° provision of environmental engineering services;
o provision of sewage treatment services;

o provision of hazardous waste treatment services;
° provision of solid waste treatment services;

° manufacture and lease of aluminium formworks;
o provision of e-commerce services;

. cultivation of flowers and plants;

. manufacture and sale of plastic pipes and pipe fittings;
o manufacture and sale of waterproof materials;

o manufacture and sale of resin; and

° manufacture and sale of photovoltaic module.

16.

£ 2 E fth B A% R o] £ FA SF AR AV
R E R E R

HRERRTS - WEESFROSE - 25
R P B S RS S
ABRE+_BERNREELBI(REE
EBIT)) - HE BB B T £
WEAT :

o RURERTIZMR

° RS KERIERTS

° BB R IE RS
o  RIHBBEVRIZR
. @ﬁ&%ﬁ = i8R

° RIHBEERT

o  BEKRIEYD

o BERIEEBREBREN
o  BUERIHERDKME

o HERHEERE R

o BUEREHESCINAAM -
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16.

170

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE

USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of goodwill, brand name and trademark and
operating concession rights at the end of the reporting period

allocated to these units are as follows:

Guangzhou EP Environmental

BMNMRERELIERE R

EREaERENN e

16. EE K E fth B %R O i FA F A A0

RBSHRDEEZSEMUNZE BN

BERNFFHEESRNEBEN T

Brand name
and
trademark
BRREE
RMB’000
ARBFTT

Goodwill
Sk
RMB’000
AR¥EFTT

Operating
concession
rights

REFEE

RMB’000

AR%FTT

Engineering Ltd.* and its subsidiary BRATGRANBEAT

("GZEP’) ([GZEP)) - 55,260 n,615
Hainan Baolai Industrial & Trading BEEXRIEERATR

Co., Lid.* and ifs subsidiary [“Baolai’) HivBAD ([E2k)) 39,997 - -
Jiangsu Yongbao Environmental THXRERRERODEBRAT

Technology Co., Lid.*and its REWBAT

subsidiaries (“Jiangsu Yongbao”) (CIgzxz])) 276,098 - -
Guangzhou KingHing Construction ENSEZERKRERNT

Technology Ltd.* and its subsidiaries RENWSEAT

("Guangzhou KingHing") ((EMEE]) 37,292 - -
Guangdong Jinying Flower Seedling ERTHETITEANERAT

Co., Ltd.* ("Guangdong Jinying") (EsRE3E)) 1,763 - -
Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. and Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. 5

its subsidiary (“Spirolite”) HEiEAT ([Spirolite ) 1,356 35,812 -
China National Petroleum (Guangdong)  DOyEEEE (B2 ) BHKRIDBEA T

Waterproof Co., Ltd. and its REWBAT

subsidiaries (“CNPW") ([BEEE ) 70,837 - -
Guangdong Xingfa Environmental BERMERERE

Technology Co., Lid. * BRAT

[“Guangdong Xingfa’) (IE=RmE)) 3,843 = =
CNPW New Material Technology PHEEFIRARNRENERAT

Taizhou Co., Ltd. * ["CNPW Taizhou’) ([BEREZRIN ) 29,277 - -
Shenzhen EDA CLOUD Technologies RIHREERNEBRATR

Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries ["EDA") HWE I ([HEE]) 35,438 - -
Tai Chang Resin (Sihui) Co., Ltd.* BERIE(NE)ERAT

("Tai Chang’) (&) 44,230 - -
Guangdong Lesso Banhao New Energy  EEERI4IB I IS5 82 R 7R

Materials Co., Ltd.* BRAT

(“Banhao New Energy”) ([PiE%TaER ) 1,747 - -

541,878 91,072 1,615
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16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

6. SEREMEMBoIERASFEAN
ERaEREN e

Brand name Operating

and  concession

Goodwill  trademark rights

TE BRAEE TSR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AEETT ARBTFT ARETTT

GZEP GZEP - 110,520 23,230
Baolai ETN 39,997 - -
Jiangsu Yongbao SRR IR 276,098 - -
Guangzhou KingHing ==y 37,292 - -
Guangdong Jinying EERETR 1,763 - -
Spirolite Spirolite 1,312 34,663 -
CNPW e 70,837 - -
Guangdong Xingfa EERm e 3,843 - -
CNPW Taizhou O E EEBE 2R N 29,277 - -
EDA DESE 35,438 - -
495,857 145,183 23,230

Management regarded brand name and trademark and operating EEERREBERCHELNBRARBE
concession rights acquired through business combinations having M CSEEE B oSBT hEB

indefinite useful lives because they are expected to generate net REBEIOESFERNIED A B o
cash inflows indefinitely.

SREELENCTNOTROERRER
ERAFTECERERER  MREMER
ADREBEESEESIc hFERYHES - 8
HAhFHCREREER2%IEREES
MmREASBIRAPTEAIIRAIEEIREWT

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined based
on value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections which are
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. The growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows
beyond the five-year period is 2% and the pre-tax discount rates
applied to cash flow projections are as follows:

Pre-tax

discount rate

RBIBER XK

GZEP GZEP 15.1%
Baolai ER 12.6%
Jiangsu Yongbao STERI IR 13.4%
Guangzhou KingHing =N m 16.4%
Guangdong Jinying EERnE 14.7%
Spirolite Spirolite 15.9%
CNPW S EERE 13.9%
Guangdong Xingfa B M3y 14.5%
CNPW Taizhou COSMEEREZRM 14.6%
EDA PEE 23.6%
Tai Chang [=]=! 14.7%
Banhao New Energy s e R 13.8%
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16.

17.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (Confinued)

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales
and gross margin. Such estimation is based on the units’ past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of each CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

At the end of the reporting period, based on the value in use
calculation, impairment losses amounting to RMB66,875,000 was
recognised on the relevant brand name and trademark and
operating concession rights of GZEP in respect of the current year,
which arose from the expected decline in the market demand.

At 31 December 2021, based on the value in use calculation,
impairment losses amounting to RMB7,457,000 and RMB1,320,000
were recognised on the relevant goodwill and operating
concession rights of Foshan Shunde Huifengyuan Environmental
Engineering Management Co., Ltd., and RMB17,412,000 was
recognised on the relevant goodwill of Guangdong Qicheng
Information Technology Co., Ltd., which arose from the expected
decline in the market demand.

Except for goodwill and operating concession rights mentioned
above, there are no impairments of any other CGUs containing
goodwill, brand name and trademark and operating concession
rights with indefinite useful lives (2021: Nil).

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

6. BENRHMBMROIEAFHAN

EREaERENN e

SIEUERBEENEMNIZRFERERE
HWERRENXNRTAANREOEFTE
8 - BBt DEREMNBEXRRERER
BHUESEENEAMEL - 82ERR
EUZFRRITEDRVELISIEEEH IS
BRSREELSUSENEEREBLES
ENINDEE -

RBEHER  EREREESE - AFER
FLGZEPVABRE = S R B2 A IS Er IS e e
FRIEBEEARK 66,8750007T * It
B RFERI IR -

R2021F 1283318 ERERBEFE
EmsalUmIEREELYRBRIEEEEIR
NIVIEEEE RIFeHEES ‘D BIETBIE
BB A R17,457,0007C0 & A K #1,320,000
7t IR FIESRRIBESRMERA T4
REEEERBEBEARIE7,412,0007T
LT3 K I8 HA NRERTER -

R ERBVEE RFFFESEIN - BHEETH
HWESEBE EERYEAFHESRED
B FHEERVIRG E L ENDRIE (2021
FE) -

REIENSNERS
2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTTT

AREFT

Share of net assets DMEBEFHR 2,371,966 2,132,251
Goodwill on acquisitions INEEEIHE 324,931 486,739
2,696,897 2,618,990
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 7. RIEENTINER (&)
Particulars of the associates as at 31 December 2022 are as [R2022FE128318 - MEQAIYNFBWT -
follows:
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Ne=palad
Registered registration  Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
capital  and business interest power sharing  activity
ML
iftER HEMREXRNE AEEEE FE  RBEEN TEER
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited RMB3,744,000  Cayman Islands 26 26 26 Manufacture and sale of
aluminium profiles
WEBELRERAT NEH 3,744,000 7T REHS BERHERIHY
Foshan Hechuang Yingke Real Estate RMB180,000,000 the PRC 38 38 38  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*
BUHSARNEERZERAT A E#180,000,0007T DE NE&E
Guangdong Home Electronic Appliances RMBA40,000,000 the PRC 30 30 30 E-commerce platform
World E-Commerce Co., Ltd.*
EFZFEURETHHEERAT A 40,000,000 7 ) E3BHY0
Guangdong Gold Ashlar Industry RMB6,667,000 the PRC 25 25 25 Investment

Financing Investment and
Development Co., Lid. *

ERGHOERREFEERAT NEH 6,667,000 e %&
Jiangyin Yongaing Water Purifying RMB5,000,000 the PRC 20 20 20 Manufacture and sale of
Agent Co., Lid.* chemical products

TEDXEFKEERAT A& 5,000,000 7 il HERHENTER

Shanghai Banxin loT Tech Co., Ltd.* @ RMB13,173,000 the PRC 13 13 13 Provision of loT solution
services

PEBUBENEERAT AR#13,73,0007C DE R RERRDERE

Artaic, LLC? 1S5$2,500,000 us 7 20 11 Manufacture and sale of
mosaic files

Artaic, LLC? 2,500,000%7T ESE RERHERERLE
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 7. REEN\INER (8
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ R e=paln
Registered registration  Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
capital  and business interest power sharing  activity
BT
HMER HEMREXNR FBEER BER EBGEEA
Hangzhou Yuehui Venture Capital RMB100,000,000 the PRC 40 40 40 Investment
Partnership *
NNRERRRESNES AE100,000,00070 e RE
Foshan Aoxue Lesso Sports Culture RMBS5,000,000 the PRC 49 49 49 Holding sports events
Development Co., Ltd.*
BUNHSALEENCRRERLT AR S5,000,00070 PE BRREES
Hunan VARY Tech Co., Ltd. RMBI121,080,000 the PRC 28 28 28 Provision of solid wasfe
treatment services
HEEENERROERAT AR#121,080,0007 O REERBIRERE
Billion Milestone Properties Inc PHP100,000,000 the Philippines 40 40 40 Properly investment
Billion Milestone Properties Inc 100,000,000 EEE R FERE MERE
Guangdong Weisheng Lesso RMBA47,600,000 the PRC 40 40 40 Manufacture and sale of
Technology Co., Ltd. *0 fertilizer
ERELHBREROERAT" A 47,600,0007C e IS RSHEMN
Guangdong Lianwei Enterprise RMB100,000,000 the PRC 30 30 30 Property management
Management Co., Ltd. *!
ERMECEERERAT" A E#100,000,0007C Sl NEER
Guangdong Yuetai Lingxing RMB50,000,000 the PRC 40 40 40 Manufacture and sale of
Equipment Co., Lid. * accessories
EREFRRERRBERLT NEH 50,000,0007 il BERHERN
China Energy Lianhao (Guangzhou) RMB100,000,000 the PRC 40 40 40 Power generation
Smart Energy Technology Co., Lid. * technical service
DaZiES (BM) EZERNKRERAT  AK#100,000,00070 DE ZERMRS
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 7. RIEEN\TINER (|
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ RS =Pl
Registered registration  Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
capital  and business interest power sharing  activity
HAMER HEMREXNR FBEER REE BGEEN IBXE
Tito Technology (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd* RMB1,000,000 the PRC 20 20 20 Infernet data service
RIONE (BN ERAT AERH1,000,000 7T e O RaBRE
Guangzhou Qianfan Cross-border RMB500,000 the PRC 35 35 35 Cross-border e-commerce
E-commerce Co., ltd. *
ENTREEEEERAT AEH 500,000 7T PE BEEE
Guangdong Lesso International Trade RMB5,000,000 the PRC 30 30 30 Cross-border e-commerce
Co., ltd. *
ERRHIEEEERAT AERH5,000,0007 e ERES
Hainan Kaixian Lianli Smart Energy RMB180,000,000 the PRC 33 33 33 Investment
Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd. *
BERLHNEEERES AE#180,000,00075 DE BE
BREETBRATY
Qujing Yangguang New Energy Co., Lid " RMB163,324,000 the PRC 15 15 15 Manufacture and sale of
monocrystalline silicon
BEEHERRDBRAGM™ AE#163,324,00070 DE BERHES R

Note: BsT -

] During the current year, the Group acquired 40.00%, 30.00% and 15.00% U] RAFER  AEBRBIIE=HDNBER
equity interest in Guangdong Weisheng Lesso Technology Co., Ltd., HEBBRERDBIRAT - BRI EEEE
Guangdong Lianwei Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. and Qujing Yangguang ERAIEHBEBHNHERRDERAD
New Energy Co., Ltd. from independent third parties at considerations of 40.00% * 30.00% 5215.00% BV - (LBDBIRA
RMB40,000,000, RMB30,000,000 and RMB450,000,000, respectively. £2 %5 40,000,0007C * A R #830,000,0007T & A B

#£ 450,000,000 °
12) It is considered that the Group has significant influence over these companies 2) AEBRJILNIBRESSRE —SES 1R

because the Group has a director in each of the boards of directors of these RAEBHZLNIHREERTEN -

companies.

Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (“Xingfa Aluminium®), which is

MEIRFERBRAD ([ ) WIRR

considered as a material associate of the Group, is engaged in the AEEY—BEAESNAT - HEREEH
manufacture and sale of aluminium profiles and is accounted for ERTIM - WIRRELSEAGE o
using the equity method.
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17.

176

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

17.

Summarised financial information of the material associate,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

RBENATER (&)

BREESAMERTIRBSHROEBERR
2 (ZSERNEMSSIERNIOERFL
BEWRFSHHRENVEBDEETHER)
ke

Xingfa Aluminium

g ioE S
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BFT ARETT
Current assets MEEE 9,735,004 12,999,957
Non-current assets, excluding goodwiill ERBEE ("BIEEE) 4,191,849 4,946,191
Goodwill on acquisition of the associate IWBMES N IELHE 124,590 124,590
Current liabilities nEEE (6,243,899) (8,770,532)
Non-current liabilities FEREEE (2,322,825) (4,229,425)
Net assets BEFR 5,484,719 5,070,781
Net assets, excluding goodwill BESH(EEBE) 5,360,129 4,946,191
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in MAEERHE ATV REm
the associate: BOEIAR -
Proportion to the Group’s ownership T AEBRTE RELLAI 26.11% 26.18%
Group's share of net assets of the associate, AEBHGHENTNEEFLE
excluding goodwill (FraEEe) 1,399,675 1,295,134
Goodwill on acquisitions INBEENEHE 124,590 124,590
Carrying amount of the investment LEERBE 1,524,265 1,419,724
Revenue IYYN 16,933,064 15,432,900
Profit for the year F A 451,991 930,397
Other comprehensive income HitxmI&s (3,974) 11,270
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEN R 448,017 941,667
Fair value of the Group’s investment AEBEHEENATEE 853,638 660,086

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group’s associates that are not individually material:

TREIREBENIBEAWS NI
EEITFER

2022
RMB’000

2021
RMB'000
ARBTTT

AR¥FTT

Share of the associates: DMEBERT :
Loss for the year FEBIE (45,895) (879)
Other comprehensive income HEihr Bl = -
Total comprehensive expense >ERAZIRE (45,895) (879)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REBRBENTEE

investments in the associates RIEEE 1,172,632 1,199,266
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18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18.

DEBEEFR

Share of net assets

R—ESEEENER
2022
RMB’000

2021
RMB000
ARBTTT
12,801

ARBTTT
14,191

Particulars of the joint venture are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/
registration Ownership
and business interest

MM,
HMER HEMREEM FMEEER

Registered
capital

Guangdong Lesso EPCO Residential RMB10,000,000 the PRC 50
Equipment Design Services
Co., Ltd.

ERBEVERNETRERS A E#10,000,000 70 DE

REERAT

The following table illustrates the information of the Group’s
interest in a joint venture:

SEEXMVFBEUOT

Percentage of
PH&E2L
Voting
power

Profit

sharing  Principal activity

i apagil
50

TEXH

Provision of household
decoration design
work and maintenance
services

REZEREHG
RIEBRSE

TREIFEBR—BS B ENRHNE
*

2022
RMB’000

2021
RMB'000
ANREFTE

AREFT

Share of the joint venture: DEEERE -
Profit for the year FREA 1,390 1,278
Other comprehensive income HinEmlas - -
Total comprehensive income T EINERER 1,390 1,278
Carrying amount of the Group's investment REBREELEREDN
in the joint venture BB 14,191 12,801
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RO R:RMH 5T
19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 19. HihEmESE
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
By EE ARETFTT AEETTT
Non-current RS
Debt instruments at BANDEBESIAHMEE
FVTOCI: INEMIERH TR - (i)
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong REB FhE %{1‘ - 31,073
Debt securities listed in the PRC RO -HERE = 142,500
- 173,573
Debt instruments at FVTPL: BADBESIABROVET
Unlisted convertible loans JFEMmOTBRBER (ii) 103,537 64,530
Equity instruments at BADEBESIARMEB
FVTOCI: IR AT A -
Equity securities listed in the PRC ROB R AES 681,491 226,616
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB FRAE 356,660 352,133
Unlisted equity securities JE R A 1,204,731 889,641
2,242,882 1,468,390
Equity instruments at FVTPL: BANEBESIANERNRATR :
Equity securities listed in the PRIEE EHRA
United Kingdom =3 (iii) 43,165 157,763
Unlisted equity securities JEEHRAE (iv) 197,731 150,775
240,896 308,538
Funds at FVTPL: BADEBESIABRNES :
Stock funds REAEE 14,882 16,480
2,602,197 2,031,511
Current RED
Debt instruments at BRASEBESIAHMEE
FVTOCI: INESPVEFRF TR -
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong REB LHERBS (i) 33,580 -
Debt instruments at FVTPL: BADEBESIABRNER TR :
Wealth management product P EGR 3,500 30,000
Unlisted convertible loans FELmOBRBER (ii) 41,000 40,000
44,500 70,000
Equity instruments at FVTPL: BANEBESIANEBRNBRATR :
Equity securities listed in the PRC ROPE EHRAES 588,065 752,027
Derivative financial instruments: FEERTIA :
Forward currency contracts RIIEEEK (v) = 669
Forward commodity contracts RABRGH (vi) 16,762 -
16,762 669
682,907 822,696
3,285,104 2,854,207
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19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

20.

Note:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The debt securities carry fixed interest at rate of 5.65% (2021: ranging from
5.65% to 6.90%) per annum, payable semi-annually or annually in arrears and
will mature in January 2023 (2021: from January 2023 to January 2026).

The convertible loans carry fixed interest at rates ranging from 6.00% to 10.00%
(2021: 6.00% to 10.00%) per annum, and contained a right to convert the loans
into ordinary shares of the issuers at the maturity date from June 2023 to
September 2024 (2021: from May 2022 to September 2024).

The rights of the equity securities are restricted by a loan agreement with a
third party mentioned in note 33.

The equity securities contained a puttable option were classified as equity
instruments at FVTPL.

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts to manage its
exchange rate exposures. The forward currency contracts are not designated
for hedge purposes and are measured at FVTPL. Changes in the fair value of
non-hedging forward currency contracts amounting to RMB703,000 (2021:
RMB669,000) were recognised in profit or loss during the year.

The Group has entered info various forward commaodity contracts in order to
protect itself from adverse movements in raw material prices. The forward
commodity contracts are not designated for hedge purposes and are
measured at FVTPL. Changes in the fair value of non-hedging forward
commodity contracts amounting to RMB2,842,000 (2021: Nil) were recognised
in profit or loss during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received dividends in the
amounts of RMB12,915,000 (2021: RMB5,508,000) from the equity instruments
at FVTOCI.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

19. HhEREE &)

st

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

EF5EH R BIZE EFH K 5.65% (20214 : /D
FHR5.65%F6.90%) 518 - B FRNEFZINTR
#9552 2023 FE1BEEA (20214 : 2023 F13%F 2026
F18) °

TREPERNF RIZEEEFF N F6.00%%
10.00% (20214F : 6.00%Z210.00%) 5t & - WERIE—
8 T 122023F 63 £20247F 9 5 (20214 : 2022
F5EE2024F9R) THOBERBRREBITA
2 EBIREVREA -

A0 REN ZIRISHIEE 33 FTLEVE =TT &R
% °

DERBRANDBESINERIRATENRAE
HFES—BRSHE -

AEBRFIZBERBEEEHN  UEBHEX
Rz - S EMEESKNIFEEFEEIDRE -
Wiz AR EBESIAEBZNSNFE - TR AR
#703,00075 (20214 = AR 669,0007T) FF £ 50
EHEBSHNANBESBDRIBRERESR -

AEBUFIZERIZREN  LRESSR
SEMABROFNFE - R HEERENIIEE
EIEEIMRAE - WA BIESI AB&ENS TG
2 FA FHPEIZRSHNNATBERE)
AR #82,842,0007T (20214 : £)EHRIBEA TS

HE2022F 123N BIUEFE - AEEEEQDE
B AEMEZBNENRATEESREZHEA
E21512,915,0007T (20214 = AR 5,508,0007T) °

20. FEUER

2022
RMB’000

2021
RMB'000
ARBTTT

AREFT

Non-current FERE
Finance lease receivables RER SR EINRIE 33,692 53,400
Factoring receivables RILRFFEIRIE 8,781 33,000
42,473 86,400
Current e
Finance lease receivables RER SR EINRIE 152,108 153,857
Factoring receivables RIBRFEEIRIE 1,279,211 1,471,059
Receivables from supply-chain HIERRERIFEI
financing services RIB 46,444 64,400
1,477,763 1,689,316
Less: Provision for impairment B OBEREE (380,920) (537,024)
1,096,843 1,152,292
1,139,316 1,238,692
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e M BRI EE

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

20. [EYE R &)

(A) FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (A) RIEHEERFEBIRIE
Minimum Present value of minimum
lease receivables lease receivables
HIEHERBEINHRE EESKBEBRRBERE
2022 2021 2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TFIT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Not more than 1 year AN E 154,947 157,576 152,108 153,857
Over 1year but within 5 years 18RI E5FER 35,724 56,913 33,692 53,400
190,671 214,489 185,800 207,257
Less: Unearned finance B REIRRE
income U 8 (4,871) (7,232)
Present value of minimum RIEE SRS EUL
lease receivables NFIRE 185,800 207,257
The Group's finance lease receivables are denominated in AEBNRMER SR EBIGRIBIA
Renminbi. The effective interest rates of the receivables range RS - ZEINARBHERENX
from 5.61% to 10.02% (2021: 5.61% to 14.37%) per annum. NF 5.61%210.02% (20217 : 5.61% =
There are no unguaranteed residual values of assets leased 14.37%) - HETOREESEENFR
under finance leases and no contingent rent arrangements ERMGEE  NRIQBESERL
that needed to be recognised (2021: Nil). AR E LB (20214 - ,m)
The following is a credit quality analysis of these finance DT RRBEHERBBIRENEE
lease receivables: BRI
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FIT ARETFIT
Not past due EN Ll 6317 84,574
Overdue B 122,683 122,683
185,800 207,257
The receivables are secured by assets leased under finance FZBNRBELRERNEEERRTZ
leases and cash deposits (where applicable). 7 (B FRIEIR -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RMEE

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

(A)

(B)

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Cash deposits from finance lease customers are collected
upfront based on certain percentage of the entire value of
the lease contracts. When the lease contracts expire and all
related liabilities and obligations are fulfilled by the
customers, the cash deposit will be returned in full. The
balance of the cash deposit can also be used to settle any
outstanding lease receivables for the corresponding lease
contfract. There were no collected cash deposits at the end of
the reporting period (2021: RMB1,310,000 have been included
in “other payables and accruals” in the consolidated
statement of financial position).

At the end of the reporting period, RMB70,031,000 (2021:
RMB69,057,000) of the Group's finance lease receivables
was impaired.

FACTORING RECEIVABLES

The Group’s factoring receivables arise from the provision of
factoring services to companies located in the PRC. The credit
period granted to each customer is generally within 365
days.

Factoring receivables are secured by receivables and/or
commercial bills originally owned by the customers. These
receivables carry interest at rates ranging from 4.35% to
12.00% (2021: 6.00% to 14.00%) per annum.

20. EYETR (&)

(A)

(8)

Al ER SR FFEULTRIE (&)

RERSREELRESRS DERA
E5NEMEENS TS HLRTK
B REESNBRURZSPEITH
BNEESIRERE  SRTRES
T2EIEE R BT BHRNITBR
EEAAERSES T RIESY
FASRIFEURIE - RIS R - T
FERUIEIREZRE (2021F « AR
1,310,000 TE 5t A MRS M AR R T8
[HMENRBRESTER]R) »

REREEISR - A R#70,031,0007T (2021
F 1 ARIE69,057,0007T) BIAREBE Y
AERESRFENRBEEHE -

RIZBARFEZEUIRIB
AREENREBRFEIRIBEZRE @D
BRDRERERY - BHIZPH
SRR 365KA °

RIBRHENARBLURIRBZ S HE
NENREBE R, HAEHHEEZIR - %
SERFIEIZN T 4.35%212.00% (2021
F : 6.00% 2 14.00%) BVER]K5TR -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RRMEE

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)
() FACTORING RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The maturity profile of the factoring receivables at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

20. BEE TR &)

(B)

RIZARF B WGRRIR ()

RMEHK - RIBRIBEUGRIREVE
MR

2022
RMB’000

2021
RMB'000
AREBTTT

AR¥FTT

With a residual maturity of: & eR HARR -
Not more than 3 months RZHR31EH 44,270 338,726
Over 3 months to 6 months 3R EE6ES 47,724 196,652
Over 6 months to 12 months 6BRMUEE12EH8 667,607 776,181
Over 12 months to 24 months BB EE 24188 8,781 33,000
Overdue B 519,610 159,500
1,287,992 1,504,059

At the end of the reporting period, RMB309,145,000 (2021:
RMB465,967,000) of the Group’s factoring receivables was
impaired, among which RMB135,256,000 (2021:
RMB306,467,000) was provided for an individual customer

group.

(C) RECEIVABLES FROM SUPPLY-CHAIN FINANCING
SERVICES

The Group's receivables from supply-chain financing services
arise from the provision of supply-chain financing services to
companies located in the PRC. The credit period for each
customer is generally within 365 days.

These receivables carry interest at rates ranging from 9.72%
0 14.40% (2021: 9.60% to 14.40%) per annum.

Certain receivables from supply-chain financing services
amounting to RMB44,700,000 (2021: RMB64,400,000) are
secured by certain interests of companies and personal
guarantees.
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RBEHE AR H309,1450007C
(20214F © A [R#8465,967,0007T) BYA
EENRERBEENRBERE &
D A R #8135,256,0007T (20214 A
ER 306,467,000 ) 7B BB B B £
1;‘% o

HEERNERBENRIR

AEENHERRERMBBIRIEZR
BRPER I RHHIERNE R -
SEFHNERMRE—MRRI65SKA °

FERINRIBIZN F9.72%214.40%
(20214F : 9.60% Z14.40% ) BYEF| Z= 5T
% o

ETHERREREENREB AR
44,700,00075 (2021 : A R #8
64,400,00070) A TR D= R E A
BRIEED -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e B R RMIEE

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

RECEIVABLES FROM SUPPLY-CHAIN FINANCING
SERVICES (Continued)

The maturity profile of the receivables from supply-chain

20. BEUYS TR &)

(€ (C) HEERNERZEMRIER (#)

RIS HIR - LIS R E R EUR

21.

financing services at the end of the reporting period is as BRI EERA0T ¢
follows:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AE¥ETT
With a residual maturity of: AR HAR ¢
Not more than 3 months RZIR3EA 23,920 17,700
Over 3 months to 6 months 3ERMUEE6ER 20,780 44,700
Overdue [y ez 1,744 2,000
46,444 64,400

At the end of the reporting period, RMB1,744,000 (2021:
RMB2,000,000) of the Group's receivables from supply-chain
financing services was impaired.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default of those companies with
financial conditions, historical loss experience, coverage by lefters
of credit or other forms of credit insurance. At the end of the
reporting period, the loss given default for the remaining balance
of loan receivables was not material and has no impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 21.

FRI|EHIZR - A R#51,744,000 75 (2021
£ AR#82,000,00070) BIAEEB
HIEENERBENRIBERIE °

BBEBBNR - BEERLER  SREIHE
A NERARREZRBZFIAINENAR
o RBRSBHETREDIT - IRKRSH
K B P BNERENNBE BRI AEANR
HAEEWREUBRRUELE -

HithIEREN &=

2022
RMB’000

2021
RMB'000
ARBTTT

AR¥TFTT

Other long-term receivables HRAEIGRIE 23,176 19,214
Long-term loan receivables from third parties  REFE =/ EEEINIE 2 211,000 61,000
Long-term lease receivables from a third party  ZRE—35% =S HEHESEKNRIE 1,087,192 -
Long-term receivables for disposal of HE—BHESATNER
an associate FEUTFRIE 319,235 -
Value-added tax ("VAT”) recoverable FEABER (1BER]) 98,725 82,122
Prepayment for acquisition of YEAT UL EE FE 2
non-controlling interests = - 204,000
Prepayment for acquisition of FRITU B A 12
equity investments BE - 19,040
1,739,328 385,376
Less: Provision for impairment B OBRERE (50,000) -
1,689,328 385,376
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RO R:RMH 5T
21. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (Continued) 21. HiWIERENEE (&)
(i) LONG-TERM LEASE RECEIVABLES FROM A THIRD i) RE—IJFE=PNRIPESEI
PARTY RIB

Minimum lease Present value of minimum
receivables lease receivables
RIEHSBIRRIE HIEHSBKNRBERE

2022 2021 2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETT ARBFRT ARBTT

Not more than 1year NBi@1&E 170,026 - 83,851 -
Over 1year but within 5years  1EM EB5FERRA 480,077 - 153,639 -
Over 5 year but within 10 years 5 HB10E A 600,097 - 260,730 -
Over 10 year but within 15 years 10 HB15FE R 600,097 - 387,921 -
Over 15 year but within 20 years 152 {8 20 EA 320,053 - 284,902 -
2,170,350 - 1,171,043 -
Less: Unearned finance B RERRE
income U (999,307) -
Present value of minimum RIEAERBIRIE
lease receivables B"E 1,171,043 -

The Group's long-term lease receivables are denominated in -~ AEEHRHHESEIGRIEMN RIBSHE - EIX
Renminbi. The effective interest rate of the receivables is  FRIBVEERFER)ER7.28% (20217F : ££) o T
7.28% (2021: Nil) per annum. There are no unguaranteed [EHRASEENRERFABE @ INEEQE
residual values of assets leased under long-term leases and ~ BHEREVTNATEE L HE (20214 : 47) ©

no contingent rent arrangements that needed to be

recognised (2021: Nil).

There was no recent history of default and past due amounts  EEJFESEINFRIEET BENFESL RiaHisa -
for the long-term lease receivables.

At the end of the reporting period, there was no impairment  FRIRE %k - WHEGAEBHNE DB SR IGRIE
provided for the Group’s long-term lease receivables. SHEBUERES -

184 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited EEEEIERERAD



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e B R RMIEE

22. INVENTORIES 22,

w8

2022
RMB’000

2021
RMB'000
ARBTTT

AR¥FTT

Manufacturing and trading SERES 5,591,757 6,145,376
Property development WpzEssE 908,229 735,953

6,499,986 6,881,329
(A) MANUFACTURING AND TRADING A) RERES

2022
RMB’000

2021
RMB'000
ARBTTT

AR¥FTT

Raw materials [Rr8 2,176,660 2,275,798
Work in progress TER 527,217 583,073
Finished goods ENGB 2,887,880 3,286,505
5,591,757 6,145,376

(B) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (B) WEERE

CEGERLYIES

Property under development

2022
RMB’000

2021
RMB'000
ARBTTT
735,953

AR¥FTT

908,229

The property under development is expected to be completed
in more than twelve months after the end of the reporting
period.

FBEPYERIBEIIRBRS HRBZIR
+_{BR7%M
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RE B RRMEE

23. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. SHEE SHNEE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTTT

AR¥FTT

Contract assets GNEE
Non-current: JERS :

Concession operating right rerieeRE 42,284 39,980
Current: mED :
Renovation and installation works HERZETZ 549,353 565,859
Environmental engineering services RIBTRER 16,678 30,162
Concession operating right IS ERE 4,837 1,667
570,868 597,688
Less: Impairment B E (17,580) (20,787)
553,288 576,901
595,572 616,881
Contract liabilities GHaE
Current: ED
Renovation and installation works HERLETIZ 125,609 146,002
Environmental engineering services RIB TR 12,9M 13,622
Logistic and other related services Ypim R EAABRIAR TS 13,683 -
Advances from customers =ZHER 3,337,562 3,089,455
3,489,765 3,249,079

The Group’s contract assets represent the Group’s rights to
consideration for work completed but not yet billed to customers at
the end of the reporting period. The contract assets will be
transferred to trade and bills receivables when the rights become
unconditional, that is, when the Group issue progress billings to
customers based on the certified amount agreed with customers.

At the end of the reporting period, RMB17,580,000 (2021:
RMB20,787,000) was recognised as an allowance for expected
credit losses on confract assets. The Group’s trading terms and
credit policy with customers are disclosed in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s contract liabilities represent the Group’s obligations to
transfer goods or services to customers for which the Group has
received consideration, or for which an amount of consideration is
due from the customers.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me M R R M EE

23. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(Continued)

23.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

SHEE SHhaEm

RS - INOREESHNEENRST
B -

2022
RMB’000

2021
RMB'000
AREBTFIT

AR¥TFTT

Not more than 1year RZIR1E 553,288 576,901
Over 1year 1D 42,284 39,980
595,572 616,881

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

2022 AVYAl

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

By EE AR®TFIT ARETIT

At 1 January A=A 20,787 4,214
Impairment losses (reversed)/recognised (B#50)), BEHERRERIE 7 (3,207) 20,491
Amounts written off as uncollectible sE R AT O BYEER - (3,918)
At 31 December R128318 17,580 20,787

For the contract assets arising from renovation and installation
works and environmental engineering services, an impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates for
the measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract
assets are based on those of the trade and bills receivables as the
confract assets and the trade and bills receivables are from the
same customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets are
based on the invoice date of trade and bills receivables for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
li.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

HEBRZETIEURRE TIERBAES
BNENEEMS - AEERSH/SBHER
BiBREETREDITUSIBRMEES
B - SIEENEENRNEEHRNREX
DEREZBIRERRIENRBIESERE
€ DBERENEENEZBNRERRE
REBVAZFE - CNEENBRBEERIES
BLUBERIANEZEERBERRENSS
FAEEsl (BRIE  EnRil SR8
HRHR - DIRERAZEAHMEANERR
R)EREHER - ZtERRIAREND
BNER EBEBEEURRESBHTE
SERBESH R RARAEEIRNREE
BNEEZRHEN -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B RRMEE

23. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s confract assets using a provision matrix:

Expected credit loss rate JEHIEEEEX
Gross carrying amount EERE
Expected credit losses JEHIEEEE

23.

SHEE SsHhaEm

DT ESIERAEBEREERESENS
NEENESERRER

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB000
ARBTFT ARBTT
3N% 3.49%
566,031 596,021
17,580 20,787

For the contract assets arising from concession operating right,
since the parties to concession agreements are local government
authorities in the PRC, the Group considers the credit risk is low as
at the end of the reporting period. The Group does not hold any
collateral over the balance.

AIFSHESRMELNGNEEMS @ &R
FErHE D RPEMDBNKE - AEER
RIRBSHRVEERARRE - AEBIHE
ISR BT HIP6 -

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24. BLERINFRIANR TR
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT ARKTT
Trade receivables B FEINRIE 6,430,705 4,478,861
Bills receivable ENREZ 235,992 997,629
Less: Provision for impairment B R E (1,792,754) (1,264,048)
4,873,943 4,212,442
The Group’s major customers are independent distributors, civil REBNTEZFERPBIANMEVEII D H
contractors, property developers, utility companies and B IATEREARDS BHERRS OF
municipalities in mainland China. Depending on the market EXENGRHBWEFS - REBRF MR - ™
condition, marketing tactics and relationships with the customers, BRIELEZSIERR - O ESEII DM
the Group's trading terms with its independent distributors may BNESERBZBITT N BEENRER
change from settlement on an advance receipt basis to giving a —R—EEULERR (WEE) - &
credit period of generally one month or more, if appropriate. The SBEWER—AQIFEDHEBETERTRENES
Group does not have a standardised and universal credit period R - @RI3FD HEZ PSRRI Y
granted to the non-distributor customers. The credit period of an BRIERME - WAEHESNPIIE (WE
individual non-distributor customer is considered on a case-by- ) HWNRE R HEEF0EE—R
case basis and is set out in the sales contracts, as appropriate. FEHIDIFRIN S AR E R T HAR/BE - A
Sales to small, new, or short-term customers are normally EBWER/IIRE « TRBBERFSRIIER
expected to be seftled on an advance receipt basis or shortly after HARR -
the goods delivery. No credit term period is set by the Group for
small, new and short-term customers.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me M R R M EE

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and interest-free.
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade and bills receivables at the

end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
loss allowance, is as follows:

24. 87 EURRIRR RIR (#)
BSENRERREIREEIPR DS -
RIBEHF - AEBNEBEARERTE

BT 0 IR IERERNRG D ITW
S

2022
RMB’000

2021
RMB'000
ARBTTT

AREFT

Not more than 3 months RZIR3EA 1,912,294 1,699,679
Over 3 months to 6 months AU LEE6EH 819,347 739,355
Over 6 months to 12 months 6BERMEERER 829,209 1,033,348
Over 1year to 2 years 1FEEZR2F 973,127 544,819
Over 2 years to 3 years 2FRIERIF 212,998 174,842
Over 3 years 3TELLE 126,968 20,399

4,873,943 4,212,442

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of the
Group's trade and bills receivables are as follows:

A EBE S I RE RS B BB R
BENT

2022 AVYAl

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

By 5 AR®TFT ARETIT

At 1 January == 1,264,048 263,527
Acquisition of subsidiaries NN B AT - 31,032
Impairment losses recognised B REEIE 7 547,056 977,947
Amounts written off as uncollectible ER TN OBEER (18,350) (8,458)
At 31 December KR12E31H 1,792,754 1,264,048

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on the invoice date for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical
region, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by
letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

AEBRBHRSE B BEABRRMEETRIE
DHTLISTERIMIEREE - BRXRETHR
DEBRANSZE R oa#E5 (RZitE -
EnfRl  ZIRRURTR - URERABEWR
HtP A BERRR) HERBHMER - %
STERRARENENGBR - EMEEEN
RIRBSBNTESEREBESH Bk
RAAERNRBANGEZRHFER -

O
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RO B RMIEE

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24. EFENRIAREE (8)
Impairment provision amounting to RMB1,253,460,000 (2021: RIBSHX - LEEBEIZLHMESIER
RMB822,861,000) were provided for trade and bills receivables FREABRRNAEENESIZERERE -
from certain individual customers at the end of the reporting period EBETE3IZSNEZENRIE REIEST
after taking into account of the restriction on financing TEE RS N\ R2#81,253,460,000 70 (20214F -
management and the financial position of these individual AER#822,861,0007T) °

customers and credit enhancement held by the Group.

Except for the receivables from certain individual customers s s FERI=EEINRIBIN - HERE
mentioned above, the remaining trade and bills receivables are SEINRBEEREERASIZTILEPLER -
related to a large number of diversified customers and set out P NRAEBEABFEHEIEEIENH4E S
below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the ENRIBEEEENESREER

Group’s remaining trade and bills receivables using a provision

matrix:

2022
Within 1to 2to Over
1year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total

1ERA 1225 2E3FE  3FEME ®Et
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000  RMB’000
AREBTT AR¥FT AREFT AREFT AREETFT

Expected credit loss rate JEHIEBBEX 3.68% 8.38% 17.67% 70.23% 10.82%
Gross carrying amount RERE 3,530,667 766,104 258,71 426,476 4,981,958
Expected credit losses JRHREEBE (129,910) (64,163) (45,713)  (299,508) (539,294)

3,400,757 701,941 212,998 126,968 4,442,664

2021
Within 110 2 to Over
1year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total

ER 1B 2B3E  SEME @5t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETFT ARBTT ARBTFT ARETR

Expected credit loss rate JRHEEBEEX 3.17% 7.43% 16.27% 92.92% 10.73%
Gross carrying amount RERE 3,025,117 588,574 208,825 288,069 4,110,585
Expected credit losses RHEEEE (95,779) (43,755) (33,983]  (267,670) (441,187)

2,929,338 544,819 174,842 20,399 3,669,398
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RS B PRI 5L
25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. AU - BEREEUERIA
RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT
Prepayments FEIUR 1,654,529 1,062,751
VAT recoverable FEHIZER 373,788 672,51
Corporate income tax recoverable SR TEMER 26,481 22,587
Deposits b o 244,008 152,239
Current portion of long-term lease receivables £ H3fESEINRIBLYABIZD 83,851 -
Other receivables EHiEIRRIB 408,699 201,146
Loan receivables from third parties RER=TRINER 224,240 97,454
3,015,596 2,208,688
Less: Provision for impairment T BB R E (91,288) (77,696)
2,924,308 2,130,992
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of the REBBRNRREMBIRIERENGELR
Group's prepayment and other receivables are as follows: BB, -
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
fosx AREFT ARETT
At 1 January R1B18 77,696 109,653
Impairment losses recognised PR RiEsIE 7 29,748 3.272
Amounts written off as uncollectible S RO O TRE (16,156) (35,229)
At 31 December R128318 91,288 77,696
Except for the loan receivables from third parties, the financial BREIREE = S EIUERRIN - BT LG EREY
assets included in the above balances are unsecured, interest-free TREEDELRE 2B RIZERUTR - 28
and receivable on demand. The effective interest rates of the loan BE = ERERNERERKNF4.80%
receivables from third parties range from 4.80% to 12.00% (2021: 212.00% (20217F : 6.44%%15.00%) °

6.44% 10 15.00%) per annum.
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26. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 26. RERIRTTHER
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARK#EETIT ANEETTT
Restricted cash: SIR4IIRS -
Guarantee deposits for banking facilities TERIBITRIENERES 1,626,582 1,471,793
Cash and cash equivalents: RWERRTEEY -
Time deposits with original maturity EHER(RERFGRE MR
of three months or less when acquired R=EETLT) 572,982 736,129
Cash and bank balances RERIRITIEER 5,162,206 5,438,327
5,735,188 6,174,456
Cash and bank deposits BERIRTHER 7,361,770 7,646,249
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank GRIRIRTIRZZE B RTERNEF
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying BN EBEVA B - FHACHIE sRBVARR T 2
periods between one day and twelve months and earn inferest at —XE+EAFSWZS R EERERA
the respective short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances EBEINR - RITEBRRZRHUBSE R
and restricted cash are deposited with creditworthy banks with no ITHIE S BB BRI HIERT -
recent history of default.
27. ASSET HELD FOR SALE 27. HIFHESE
At 31 December 2021, the Group decided to sell one of its R2021F 128318 BRAEBNEHAE
investment properties located in Sydney, Australia because the BNV EETEl - BUREREMRENER
Group changed its development plan in Australia. This investment HNEP—ERENX - ZREVFDTHD
property was ready for sale and therefore was classified as asset € AR ERFTIFHEEE - BEEER
held for sale. The disposal was completed on 13 January 2022. B1R2022F 151385 °
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRT ARKTT
Asset held for sale BIEHEEE - 929,022
No investment property was classified as asset held for sale as at R2022F 128318 - BELEDER DR
31 December 2022. REFLEEE -
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28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

28. BEABNRIERTRE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTFT ARETT
Trade payables BIENRIE 2,395,833 1,880,896
Bills payable EANE 2 5,640,406 5,664,741
8,036,239 7,545,637

The trade payables are interest-free and are normally settled on BEZ2RVNBLDRR  BEHRBESER30

terms of 30 to 90 days.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

Z£90K -
RBSHK - XEEBNEZRIIRBERER
LB MOREDITOT

2022
RMB’000

2021
RMB'000
ARBTIT

AR¥FTT

Not more than 3 months ZIR31EH 4,450,477 4,465,850
Over 3 months to 6 months BRI EE6ES 2,382,825 2,558,088
Over 6 months to 12 months BRI EE12ES 1,077,242 356,633
Over 1year fo 2 years 1TFEMEZR2F 62,797 96,590
Over 2 years to 3 years 2EPI FE3E 17,776 24,736
Over 3 years KE== 45,122 43,740

8,036,239 7,545,637

The Group’s trade payables include RMB359,040,000 (2021: Nil)
due to suppliers that have signed up to a supply chain financing
programme, under which the Group issues standard debt
certificate based on the supplier’s invoice. The suppliers can
receive the payment on the basis of each debt certificate with the
following two options: (i) to receive the payment in accordance with
the originally agreed payment terms from the Group; or [ii) to
receive an early payment that is lower than its value by discounting
the debt to the participating bank. If option (ii) is selected, the
Group's liability is assigned to be due to the participating bank
rather than the supplier. The value of the debt by the Group
remains unchanged and should be paid by the Group in
accordance with the originally agreed payment terms. The Group
assesses the arrangement against those indicators if the debt the
suppliers have assigned to the participating banks under such
programme continues to meet the definition of trade payables or
whether it should be classified as borrowings. As at 31 December
2022, the balance of debts assigned to the participating banks that
meet the criteria of trade payables is RMB206,020,000 (2021: Nil).

AEBNESERNNRERFROE S EEHE
RRESTENHESISINHARIE
359,040,00075(20217F : &) » B It AEEH
REHESREHEEEER RS - HED
TR TMmfERE e —INNESEERES
BT RR « (1R AEBRITIHBE BN FRIEK
IR 5 S i) BB 2 BRI T T B ITE D
FIRRIBEE IR EBETR - &RIES i)
B AEBNEERENSERRT - MIER
HES - AEBERNEEHKS 2 2
AEBRIZRBIRTHBENIRIERZ ° &
EBIREMERBIENGZLH - WIRESST
BB HESNERERRSRRTNERR
OREFSEZRNRENESE  AXSFE
BRBIEDIERBIR - 120227128318 -
PEESSHERTHNTSEIRIIREER
ERBEFHGH R AR 206,020,0007T (2021
T e
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29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

29. HfthfE{I IR fESH T A

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARK#EETIT ARETIT

Accruals fEstE&A 264,966 365,462
Salaries and welfare payables e #F T RisAl 279,846 262,033
Payable for acquisition of an associate WiE—BEE N T ENLRIE 450,000 -
Other payables HiNE I RIB 1,187,965 1,069,733
2,182,777 1,697,228

The financial liabilities included in the above balances are interest-

STA LTS HEREE D RBRIZEIGE

free and repayable on demand. o
30. BORROWINGS 30. {8
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ABR¥ETT
Current E
Unsecured bank loans MINIPRITER 6,764,902 6,410,017
Current portion of long-term RHMIEHRITERN
unsecured bank loans BORENEL D 318,000 699,774
Current portion of long-term IR BEMER
unsecured other loans B EN B D - 601
Secured bank loans BIRIPIRTER 129,322 100,496
Current portion of long-term EHEEBRIETER
secured bank loans B EN BB D 10,933 10,193
Other borrowings HihER 34,482 58,733
7,257,639 7,279,814
Non-current JEARED
Unsecured bank loans HINIPIRTER 3,411,533 1,586,753
Unsecured syndicated bank loans HINIPIEEE R 9,088,342 8,025,428
Secured bank loans BIEPRTER 278,168 267,110
12,778,043 9,879,291
20,035,682 17,159,105
Analysed info borrowings repayable: DMRBEEREBR
Within one year or on demand — AR EKE 7,257,639 7,279,814
In the second year g TN 5,761,502 794,426
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-—FEFENFRN(BEEEME) 6,780,831 8,907,353
More than five years ZRNE 235,710 177,512
20,035,682 17,159,105
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30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note:

(a)

(b)

()

The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings range from 2.80% to
6.37% (2021: 0.86% to 5.80%) per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the secured bank loans are secured by land
and its concession rights of a subsidiary, leasehold lands and buildings of
subsidiaries, loan receivables of a subsidiary, the concession rights of a
subsidiary and a personal guarantee provided by a shareholder of that
subsidiary and the guarantee provided by shareholders of a subsidiary.

At 31 December 2021, the secured bank loans are secured by land and its
concession rights of a subsidiary, machineries and equipment of a subsidiary,
leasehold lands and buildings of subsidiaries, loan receivables of a subsidiary,
the concession rights of a subsidiary and a personal guarantee provided by a
shareholder of that subsidiary.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s borrowings are denominated in
US dollar, HK dollar, Renminbi, Australian dollar, Canadian dollar and Baht
which are equivalent to RMB7,264,407,000 (2021: RMB7,701,244,000),
RMB3,297,713,000 (2021: RMB2,996,486,000), RMB9,251,835,000 (2021:
RMB5,572,419,000), RMB179,124,000 (2021: RMB843,519,000), RMB504,000
(2021: RMB691,000) and RMB42,099,000 (2021: RMB44,746,000), respectively.

30. {&8F &)

Pest -

(a)

(b)

()

KEBERNERENENT 2.80% =L 6.37% 5
(20214F : 0.86% %= 5.80%) °

RBSHR - BEBRTERDU—BRELD
BIMRESFEEE  WEADNHEHEXET
WREF  —BENEATNBRER  —BIE
NONFFRERERE —BRROVBARRID—
B B IR R VB RIS -

R2021FE12 5318 - BEPRITERDA—/EH
BRI HEREFFCESE —EIWBADTN
HESRE WEATNEEXETIRIES
—BENBEADHVERER  — R BAINEF
SRR E—SRENEABRERES -

R AEBRZET B ARK R
IC UDTE&/J\%F%MEEW TDBSERARE
7,264,407,0007C (20214 : A R #57,701,244,000
o) A R #83,297,713,0007C (2021 : A R 18
2,996,486,0007T ) * A F#59,251,835,0007T (2021
F : AR55,572,419,0007T) « AR#5179,124,000
TT(20214E © A R #5843,519,00075 ) ~ A R #8
504,0007T (20214F = A 691,00070) R A RH#
42,099,000 7T (20214F = AR#E44,746,0007T) °
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31. CONVERTIBLE LOANS

At the end of the reporting period, the convertible loans were
recognised as a debt component and an equity component as

3. OJRIRER

RWSHR - TREEREBREBL DR
D - WA

follows:
Debt Equity
component component Total
(=t BRI mst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT ARETT
At 1January 2021 R2021 1818 627,362 27,605 654,967
Inferest expenses MNEH= 75,485 - 75,485
Increase in interest payable FEIAISIB N0 (40,614) - (40,614)
Interest paid [=ENENES (19,650) - (19,650
Exchange realignment PE R FHEE (18,153 - (18,153)
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F12H318 &
1January 2022 2022F18108 624,430 27,605 652,035
Interest expenses MNEBE= 3,628 - 3,628
Interest paid BN S 57,866 - 57,866
Repayment of principal BEARE (716,236) - (716,236)
Early redemption ERIEO (1,547) (2,315) (3,862)
Exchange realignment PERFHE 31,859 - 31,859
At 31 December 2022 1R20222E12 8318 - 25,290 25,290
Note: st -

The convertible loans of US$60,000,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB410,415,000)
drawn down on 22 May 2019 and US$40,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB279,489,000) drawn down on 29 November 2019 were repaid at maturity on 21
May 2022 and early repaid on 20 June 2022, respectively.
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32. PROVISION FOR LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE 32.
BENEFITS

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations are as follows:

RIS EF R

REBNEEREZEBUT -

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTFTT ARETT

At 1 January A8 5,219 -

Acquisition of a subsidiary INE—ENB AT - 6,056

Current service cost (note 7) BOHAARFZANA (ByEE7) 774 339

Interest cost SN 76 81
Actuarial loss arising from financial OB EREBDEBELEDN

assumption changes BEEE - (688)

Benefit paid =ANEER] - (280)

Exchange realignment bE R %L 318 (289)

At 31 December R128318 6,387 5,219

The principal actuarial assumptions used at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

IRREHRIRANEZERRRUT ¢

2022 2021

Discount rate BHIR=
Expected rate of salary increases YRR T &3R8
Staff turnover rate ST HREX

1.4% -1.9% 1.4% - 1.9%
3.0% 3.0%
0.0% -31.0% 0.0% - 31.0%

The Group does not expect to pay long-term employee benefits in
the next year.

At the end of the reporting period, the weighted average duration
of the liabilities for long-term employee benefits is 6 to 10 years
(2021: 6 to 10 years).

REFES M —FEARENRBRERN -

RBEHK - REIESERBAN 2B
HRAR6ZE10E (20214 : 6E104) ©
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32. PROVISION FOR LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE 32. REAESERIERE =
BENEFITS (Continued)
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions at the RBEHAREXNBRZNESHRED TR
end of the reporting period is shown below: W :
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in defined in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligations in rate obligations
829t REBMNEE 82tk REBMNSEE
1o a0, () D =GR
RMB’000 RMB’000
% AR¥ETFIT % ARETIT
2022
Discount rate AHIR X 1 (346) m 385
Expected rate of salary JEHTE
increases P L= 1 443 U] (404)
Staff turnover rate BT gk 1 (346) ) 77
2021
Discount rate [apiap ] (324) U 384

Expected rate of salary FRHTE

increases R 1 384 ] (344)
Staff turnover rate BT R%LX 1 (344) ] 61
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a FHBRBREL T DEREN EERRINRS
method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations HRSEESEBREES MY R ERNEETRE
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at SEBYNHEAET - BIRESWNDER—BE
the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based on NREEBHE - M EMBERRGAE -
a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other DT RIMA KRR ERBANESENEIREE)
assumptions constant. This may not be representative of an actual TR B E) N KO pEs mEs A -

change in the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely that
changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

198 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited EEEEIERERAD



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e B R RMIEE

33. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 33. HfhEMaE
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
By sE AR¥BFTT ARETT
Current FRED
Selling right from non-controlling FEERIBEHE
shareholders fEm (i 5,230 29171
Debt portion with uncertain URIERAEE L
payment term B0 (i - -
5,230 29,171
Non-current FEFRED
Debt portion with uncertain IRRIRRAEEZ
payment term BEFEED (ii) = 492,188
5,230 71,359

Note: BsT -

(i) The fair value of this financial liability has been estimated using valuation (i) HEREBENADBERRBLED EZURTE
technique with unobservable inputs. Management has reviewed the valuation R|AHIEGST - SREBRDEBMEMELEEH
result by verifying all major inputs and assumptions as well as assessing the AFERBBRURFE %GB SRS
reasonableness of such valuation. BE/BR -

The Group entered into certain sale and purchase agreements to acquire 70% AEBF IS TESHHRUIR 2018 FHUET#FK
equity interest in Jiangsu Yongbao during 2018 and 70% equity interest in BRT70% BB AR it - DUR $R 2020 F T B Spirolite
Spirolite during 2020. Pursuant to the agreements, the non-confrolling 70% IR AR - IRIBRE - IFFERBRESIIN
shareholders have the right fo sell the remaining 30% equity interest to the EOHR=—FRIOMENRMEBTEOLES
Group within a two-year period after three years and two years from the HETRI #4289 30% A AT A ©

respective dates of acquisitions.

During the year, the non-controlling shareholders of Spirolite have sold the R - Spirolite NIFFRLBVE AAEEHEM 64
remaining 30% equity interest to the Group and Spirolite became a wholly B930% M At R Spirolite /R — I T ENWBAT °
owned subsidiary.

(ii) The debt portion with uncertain payment term is managed and the (ii NRERTRE2EH LD RERR DR ANDE

performances are evaluated on fair value basis. Any change in fair value was BEREXBEBRIG - EOANBEZEIINE
recognised in profit or loss. AR ©
On 31 March 2020, the Group enfered into a loan agreement with a third party AEBER2020F38NBHE—FE=755]11—18
in the amount of GBP8,400,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB73,198,000). B8 A8,400000E SE(MBE RN AR
The amount is interest-free and repayable according to the return of an equity 73,198,0007T) WE MR « L BREEREEA
investment held by the Group. EERBORELENDRMER -
The fair value of this borrowing has been estimated using valuation technique ZERNANBECSHEBGED ZUFRTRRE
with unobservable inputs. Management has reviewed the valuation result by AHIEGE - SREDFEREMBEZ@WMAH
verifying all major inputs and assumptions as well as assessing the BRERUEFH SO EGEUDBEGE
reasonableness of such valuation. o o
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34. DEFERRED TAX

The major deferred tax assefs/(liabilities) recognised and their
movements during the current and prior years are as follows:

Withholding

Fair value fax on
adjustments  distributable
arising from profits of
acquisitions of subsidiaries
subsidiaries in the PRC

Fair valve
adjustments
arising from

investment
properties

Accelerated
impairment fox
depreciation

Provision for

of assets

BEUES
FELH BEN
DARERE AERE
000 RMB000

HEKRAT  PEREAT
FELD THRAAN
DARESRE  BRARR
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT

34.

IEERIR

RAFERBAFEBERNEZRILERER
BE/ (8B REBEHOT :

Loss Fair value

available for  adjustments

offsetting  arising from

against financial

Deferred future instrument
income  taxable profit af FVTPL

Fair value

adjustments Re-

ofequity  measurement

investments on defined

ot FVTOCI  benefit plan

BARERE

BAREE  SARMEE

SARRH BankE

EMIAH KEh ReEfEHy

MEESRE  DARESE REWEE @5t
RMB000 MB000 RMB000 RMB000
\RETFT AB T 5 T AEETT

TRfFER
perilil ]
RMB000

BRAE
RMB'000

At1January 2021 RONEIFIB 297,486] 94,742 2,742 191,424) (595,627) 1591 4500 (5,588) - - (831,630)
Acquisiion of subsidiaries ENBAT - 5,463 - [45,114) - - 2552 - - 1180 (35,919)
Credited/(charged o profitor 5t /(12 EEEE

loss for the year (note 9) (RizE9) 143,977) 152,398 (1,403 4723 49,000 % 2,725 39,0291 (2,216] - - 45,779)
Credited/(charged fo other A/ (HE)EE

comprehensive income Hitz®

for the year g - - - - - - - - 56,001 (137) 55,864
Exchange realignment EREE 4233 763 106 874 - - 225) - - - 5751
At 31 December 2021 and RANELEND

1January 2022 R202F1818 (337,230) 253,366 (68,555) (130,941) (644,627) 18,636 8,398 (7,804) 56,001 1,043 (851,713)
Credited/charged fo profitor 5t A/(X02) EERE

loss for the year (note 9) (BEt9) (92,022) 90,848 (128,448 19,302 - 5,204 90,902 26,495 - 170 12,451
Credifed/Icharged! fo ofher A/ (H8)EE

comprehensive income Hit2®

for the year it o o ° ° ° o o o (37,996) - (37,996)
Exchange realignment EREE (8,342) 253 (157) 1,625) - - 381 - - 64 9,426)
At 31 December 2022 R202E12E3E (437,594) 344,467 (197,160) (113,264) (644,627) 23,840 99,681 18,691 18,005 1217 (886,684)

# The amount represented the deferred tax provision of RMB183,384,000 (2021:
RMB131,819,000) on the distributable profits of the Company’s subsidiaries in
the PRC after offsetting the realised deferred tax liabilities of RMB183,384,000
(2021: RMB82,819,000) arising from dividends declared by these subsidiaries
to their foreign investors during the year.

Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the

# FEBRALIRPERBERAITDIRBFIED
BYIE AE 72 18 B2 85 A #£183,384,000 7T (2021 4F -
AE#£131,819,000 70) AR 8 5255 My B A TR
ANEBIIEEEERREMELENDERELR
B S & A R 1£183,384,0007C (2021FF : A R #E
82,819,0007T) ©

2022
RMB’000

2021
RMB'000
ARBFT

AR¥FTT

RIS B IN R AR

consolidated statement of financial position BVRALERIEEERLE 520,858 349,105

Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RIS B FE AR IR A TESR
consolidated statement of financial position IR IES SRR (1,407,542) (1,200,818)
(886,684) (851,713)
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34.

35.
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DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between mainland China
and the jurisdictions of the foreign investors. The applicable rate
for the Group is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
mainland China in respect of their earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax liabilities of RMB279,496,000 (2021: RMB343,290,000)
in respect of temporary differences relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries, amounting to RMB5,589,928,000 (2021:
RMB6,865,804,000), that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it is probable that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents government grants received by the
Group as financial subsidies for the renovation of factories and
machineries or the construction of new factory premises in
Guangdong, Changchun, Hunan, Hainan, Daging, Hubei, Yunnan,
etc. and rental income received in advance from certain of the
Group's employees for leasing the staff quarters.

The government grants are released to profit or loss over the
expected useful lives of the relevant premises by equal annual
instalments, while rental income received in advance is recognised
on the straight-line basis over the respective lease terms.

34, IRHEFIA (1|)

35.

RIEPEEEMTERE  EPEAMAIIH
IEEXEOQIINTRES SRR BB
10% BYTBIRFTER - S2IRES 2008 F 1518
AW - BRRE2007E 128331 HBES
BOERA o (HPEA RSN E S HTED
FREBBRIRIBIELN - AOREER X
MBIRTER - AEBBRRERS% -
ALt - FEZERPBEAMBIINEL DT
m%ﬁﬁ%ﬁtm %ﬂﬁ ﬁ%%%ﬁ
 REBBRINTRIRAE

UH

R|SHR - BRARIEAZSHELD
BRI[ER - BZFSaNRTYRERDIK

BIgREAKR WAEBUERDBXS
MEBRAIRDIKAENETEZERARE

5,589,928,00075 (2021 : A R ¥
6,865,804,00070) BVEERIBEE (BIROIK
ZERBRARY) AR 279,496,000 70
(20214F : ARH#5343,290,0007T) °

3RS L R

FEAN S IBAEBNIOBSHEE - FRE
EES &S iBm - BB AB Ik
RSP LU RO 2 T DD
MBS - IREAEEOE T REMRTI
BHEEs T EsHE NG -

BB EREERNIERFRAZE
NSRBI AIB AT - MRFTIWERET
W RS ENEMMERARET
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. IR
Shares 52} 2022 2021
Authorised: HRE
20,000,000,000 (2021: 20,000,000,000) 20,000,000,000 (20214F : 20,000,000,000) &2 HK$1,000,000,000 HK$1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BRBEE0.05BTNSER 1,000,000,00085%  1,000,000,000 87T
Issued and fully paid: ERTREE :
3,102,418,400 (2021: 3,102,418,400) 3,102,418,400 (20214 : 3,102,418,400) i HK$155,120,920 HK$155,120,920
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each FREESBTHERR 155,120,920 & 7T 155,120,920 /57T
Equivalent to SER RMB135,344,000 RMB135,344,000

AR#135,344,0007T A R%135,344,0007C

37. RESERVES 37. &R
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein TEBAFERBAFENRBEZBRAEY
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated RGO RRMEERAZI

statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign joint REBRRPINSELENVBEEAEREA
venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s R AEBEDPERIIBWE AT D
subsidiaries which are established in the PRC has been transferred MNP BT BEZRAIERES -

to reserve funds which are restricted for use.

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 38. AR RERNSZ(Y
(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (A) FERRRESTE
The Group's subsidiaries adopted a share option scheme on RABREREAEENRIDEE
15 January 2021 (the “2021 Share Option Scheme”) and HERONSERSEA - KREBNY
another share option scheme on 25 October 2022 (the “2022 BRI D AIR2021F 135158 £R i —
Share Option Scheme”), respectively, for the purpose of IBERESTE([2021 F B RESTE] )
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who KR2022F 10825 B2 18R
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. fest 8l ([2022 FHERIRESTE]]) -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e B R RMIEE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 38. CARR{NRERAISZ(Y (&)

(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) (A) FBERESTEI(@)
The following share options were outstanding under the FA - BRESTEIR NHRITENE
share option schemes during the year: peREa R -

2021 Share 2022 Share
Option Scheme Option Scheme
2021 FiEAREST &l 2022 FIBRESEl
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price Number price Number
per share  of options per share  of options
B N0E B0
ERTEE BRESE FRTEE BREHE
HK$ RMB
BT AR
At 1January 2021 [R20211818 - - - -
Granted during the year FARAERH 228 29,666 - -
At 31 December 2021 and R2021%F128318
1 January 2022 5202271818 228 29,666 - -
Granted during the year FABREH - - 1.95 15,000,000
Exercised during the year FABTE 228 (29,666) 1.95 (15,000,000)
At 31 December 2022 1820225123318 = =

A total of 15,029,666 share options were exercised during
the year under these two share option schemes (2021: Nil).

The weighted average fair value of the options granted under
2021 Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2021 was HK$290.92 (approximately equivalent to
RMB239.06) each and share option expense of RMB7,092,000
was recognised in 2021.

The weighted average fair value of the options granted under
2022 Share Option Scheme during the year was RMB3.19
each (2021: Nil), of which the Group recognised share option
expense of RMB47,850,000 (2021: Nil) during the year ended
31 December 2022.

TRARSZMEBEERESEIB NE21T
15 & $£15,029,666 17 M A 12 (20214 -
) °

HE2021F 128318 LEFE - 20214F
BRESTEE TSR ENERRENR
N RBERED 2909258 (FBE
R ARE239.0670) » LR AR
7,092,000 70 BYE B RS2 B 1R 2021 FF
ﬁ@gfu\ ©

£ 2022 FERESTEBTERD
NERENR Y ADBEREDA
#3197 (20214 : ) HPAE
BEEREE202F 123318 LEEHR
B R R RS2 A R 547,850,000 70
(20217F : £) »
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(A)

(8)

204

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant using a recent
transaction model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
share option outstanding under these two share option
schemes.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 28 August 2018, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) to recognise the
contributions by certain eligible persons to the Group and to
offer suitable incentives to attract and retain targeted talent
and personnel for the continual operation and future
development of the Group.

The total amount of the funds contributed to the Scheme by
the Company shall not exceed HK$750,000,000 and the
Board shall at its absolute discretion to determine the
amount of fund contributed to the Share Award Scheme for
each financial year of the Company.

The Company shall not make any further grant of award
which will result in the aggregate number of Shares
underlying all grants made pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme (excluding award shares that have been forfeited in
accordance with the Share Award Scheme) to exceed 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company without
shareholders’ approval. The total number of non-vested
award shares granted to a selected participant under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of issued shares at all time.

During the year, no ordinary shares of the Group on the Stock
Exchange were purchased for the Share Award Scheme
(2021: Nil). At the end of the reporting period, 22,991,000
ordinary shares have been purchased (2021: 22,991,000
ordinary shares).

No shares have been awarded under the Share Award
Scheme since the adoption.
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38. AR BRETERISZ(T (&)

(A)

(8)

ARS8l ()
ZRICDBRBEREOERRREME
FRERBOMURA TR BREN
NRBEERBEBHIRALBERIE
AT ST -

RBS R AR REMIBERE
STBIIE T KT R -

edvak- Y ]

RNNTR2018F 8528 M 1naE
BYSTEI(TRIDERISTEI]) - LEES
TEEBATHALEEMEHBER
RisTBESHE > EILRSIRIRS
BATRABUREREBIFEL
BRRIREE -

RNNDEHZEEHENETRERS
#838750,000,000/87C  MESSHE
RNBEECALIAESUBRFELHR
DIREFEIHENETER

AR DIRERDERISHEIR DOV
BAERR YD (R BEIRERDERSE
ERINEVEREIR D) BB BBALRT
BE&TRAD 5% B REREHE - Rl
NEERDIEUER BIETSH
NREBERDEBSHEI T ER N KR
BERBRORBE  FEBBIOREK
EEITRIDBEEVI% °

TR AEBMERBOTESSE
AR R EISTEI(20211F = #) -
RIBEHF - REBBEBE 22,991,000
A% AR (20214F ¢ 22,991,000 % = &
B’ -

ARDERMR D EE ST B - 1
BRERIDEZESEIRBRD -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS MR RMIEE

39. BUSINESS COMBINATION 39. EESH
During the year, the Group entered into sale and purchase TR AEBETIEERZ - WELITAT
agreements to acquire equity interests in the following companies: BYRR AL ¢

Percentage  Consideration

Acquisition date Company name of share RMB  Principal activities
RE
WEBH NEBE B =R AE# FEEH
1January 2022 Great Essential International 100% 41,000,000 Investment holding
Limited ("Great Essential’)
20221810 Great Essential International BERR

Limited ([ Great Essential J)

21 January 2022 Tai Chang 90% 66,159,000  Manufacture and sale of resin
202218218 68 RERBERE
1July 2022 Banhao New Energy 100% 5,000,000 Manufacture and sale of
photovoltaic module
20227818 isHEER RIS RHEHRRIEH
The above acquisitions allow the Group to further diversify its Pl EEAEBE— S IRAZET -
businesses.
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fn S B IR 5L

39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 39. £iESH @
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the above RINEB - NEBMAEDN FHBEINEAT
companies acquired at the dates of acquisitions assumed by the NOBAEERBENADEBEDT -

Group are as follows:

Great Banhao
Essential  Tai Chang New Energy Total
Great
Essential 68 IIEHER st
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
kst ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Property, plant and equipment  #)25 « BB R R (F 12 - 2,783 945 3,728
Right-of-use assets CREEE 13A - 19,944 - 19,944
Other intangible assets HEtErEE 158 - - 12 12
Inventories EE - - 4,824 4,824
Contract assets — current SREBE — K E - - 144 144
Trade and bills receivables BIENTBEREE - - 51 51
Other financial assets — current  EAEFLE & — A ED 41,000 - - 41,000
Prepayments, deposits and BN - 1@ REM
other receivables FENRIE - 1,640 2,919 4,559
Cash and bank deposits RERRITER 83 9 647 739
Trade and bills payables B2RNRERZRE - - (4,478) (4,478)
Other payables and accruals HBEIRBERESER (53) (10) (1,811 (1,874
Total identifiable net assets ORAEEFERSE
at fair value (BANER) 41,030 24,366 3,253 68,649
Non-controlling interests Ferdl s - (2,437) - (2,437
Goodwill arising on acquisitions ~ WEELNBE 15A - 44,230 1,747 45,977
Gain from a bargain purchase  JREMIRA - Wz B @
recognised in other revenue, ERVEBIENS
income and gains Mz 5 (30) - - (30)
Total consideration satisfied by: ~ BATNAIS TSz (WA BH24E
Cash R& - 66,159 5,000 71159
Other payable HibENRIE 41,000 - - 41,000
41,000 66,159 5,000 112,159
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is as BEZESINENRSAEDTWT
follows:
RMB’000
ANEHETIT
Cash consideration paid BEREAE 71,159
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B BIBRERIRESEY (739)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents KETHOENRER
included in investing activities BEEBYHRE S5 70,420
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 39. ¥ESH @\
Reconciliation of the carrying amount of the Group’s goodwill at the AEEBNBERRSHORREHRED
beginning and end of the reporting period is presented below: [EEESIIWT :
RMB'000
AREETFIT
Gross carrying amount RERE
At 1 January 2022 R2022F 1818 570,531
Acquisition of subsidiaries I BT 45,977
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—BWBEAT (1,989
Exchange realignment bR FHEL 44
At 31 December 2022 122022128318 614,563
Accumulated impairment losses REtBEEE
At 1 January 2022 122022 F 1818 (74,674)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—BRNBEAT 1,989
At 31 December 2022 [£2022F 128318 (72,685)
Net carrying amount RERE
At 1 January 2022 122022 F 1818 495,857
At 31 December 2022 [£2022F 128318 541,878
Acquisition-related costs incurred in relation to the above L R S A A RO B AR AN A R & A R
acquisitions are insignificant and have been excluded from the BEHRIREIERAZI)  BEEBRERNER
cost of acquisition and have been recognised directly as expense B RFSIIIST AIB 300 [EFESZ ) A -

for the year and are included in “other expenses” in profit or loss.

The aggregate fair values of the trade and bills receivables and RINED - ERBEIREBE R ZRFEMER
other receivables at the dates of acquisitions amounted to RIEHOADBEREDBIR AR 51,0007T
RMB51,000 and RMB4,559,000 respectively, which approximate to R ANER#4,559,00070 - BAAEBUIEZS
the gross contractual amounts of the corresponding balances BEBHRNSNRERESRS - RINED -
acquired by the Group. At the dates of acquisitions, management EEEDRBEHAANONSNIRE ARSI
considered that the contractual cash flows not expected to be REK o

collected were insignificant.
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RE B RRMEE

39.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income fax purposes.

Since the acquisitions, these subsidiaries contributed
RMB6,163,000 to the Group’s revenue and recognised a loss of
RMB2,982,000 in profit or loss for the year.

Had the combinations taken place at the beginning of the year, the
Group's revenue and profit for the year would have been increased
by RMB11,133,000 and decreased by RMB4,575,000, respectively.

39.

ERSHmE®

MEMFTERTS - FECERNSEET
T$0B -

BIRELIR - ZEWBADRAEBINAES
BAAREE 6,163,0007C - WA TEBIBA
BEE AR 2,982,0007T °

2SS HINTDET  AEBRATEDN
U 2w RS 2 BB ho A B2 #811,133,000 75
FRAD A R 4,575,000 7T ©

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. FABIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any RBEHR - AEBWREIEATAREE
significant contingent liabilities (2021: Nil). (20214F : #H) -
41. COMMITMENTS 4. i
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the RIBEHK - AEBHELU NELIKE -
reporting period:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥BTFRT ARETT
Contracted, but not provided for: BEIMB SR EE
Property, plant and equipment and WPz - B KRB
investment properties BEWZ 1,663,163 2,544,225
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR e B R RMIEE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 42. B3 A T2 5 M5 afk

THE GROUP’S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR

(A)

Connected transactions
Transactions with companies under

HERS

RPFHAZ —NESEHEY

FRAFEEHERBALTHNERR

2

2022
RMB’000
AR¥FTT

Note

Bt 52

yAA
RMB'000
ARBFT

the common control of a director: NI :
Sales of goods, services, HESM - IR - 1A
utilities and others BHEREAM (i) 6,804 6,472

Rental income e (ii)* 1,269 11,290

Rental expenses HERX (iii)* 4,086 4,267

Purchase of materials REMH (iv)* 18,198 19,091

Purchase of machinery REEes R 9

and/or equipment R (v) 181,660 152,510

Purchase of electronic accessories KBS0 (v)* 3,121 25,254

Purchase of other intangible assets  EE MBS E (v)* 2,088 361

Hotel expenses HEEA (vil* 1,261 2,126
Non-connected transactions FERERS
Purchase of goods, equipment, OIS NTHRBER

utilities and rental services % - NEEER

from associates HERFE (vii) 118,831 62,033
Sales of goods, services, HESE ¥ -

utilities and others NASEREM (i) 2,166 -
Loans to an associate ERF—EHEATY (viii) 67,022 145,237
Borrowings from an associate RE—BHELITOER (ix) 16,508 -
Design and maintenance services SERZERMHOVERET

from a joint venture FAHEIBIRFS (x) 3,600 3,600
Note: BiEE -

(i) Sales of goods, services and others to related companies were made (i) OEBATYBEER BEREMDUA
SBOE=NZLRENBRREHRS
third-party customers. Utilities were provided by related companies at BRETT - NASEDIRRABREEADIR

cost. o

with reference to the prices and conditions offered by the Group to the

(ii) Rental income from related parties was made with reference to the (ii)

REBATORZNG DUREEDS
=HBFRUEBRIKERSRET -

prices and conditions offered by the Group to the third-party customers.

(iii) Rental expenses were based on mutually agreed terms. (iii)

BERRDIZESHEORRETE -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(Continued)

THE GROUP’S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR (Continued)

(A)

210

Note:

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(continued)

Purchases of materials from related companies were made based on
mutually agreed terms.

Purchases of machinery, equipment, electronic accessories and other
intangible assets from related companies were made with reference to
the prices and conditions offered by the related companies to their
third-party customers.

Hotel expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

Purchases of goods, equipment, utilities and rental services from
associates were made on normal commercial terms negotiated on an
arm’s length basis by the parties with reference to the prevailing
market prices.

The covenants of loans to associates were based on mutually agreed
terms.

The covenants of loans from an associate were based on mutually
agreed terms.

Services were provided by a joint venture based on mutually agreed
terms.

These related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules but are exempted from complying with the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules.
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42. BABATR ARG 8

(A)

FRAFEEHERBIALTHNEKRR
2 (1)

Bist

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(#)

RS ESIBENRRORHATEE -

#es - ik - BT RHAHEMBREED
REERHADOE=SZFRUNER
RERGEOBRBATESE -

BISERIZES HENRRETE -

N
AR

o O
oW 20

R NABEEREERB LR
2EERMBEREAVESHENIE
SEEROHENDEE -

BERFPHERNDNRLEDREESHEN
RFREETE ©
BRTHMENIOVREDHRELHHEN
ERTREERE ©
BEMETIZE T BECVRRITHMRES -

FEBIATRZINER EHRAE14A
SMRENRERZ AT ERERS ©
BRET LHRAUNKEBRE



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me M R R M EE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 42. Bl A T2 52 R iS88 (&)

(Continued)
(8) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (B) EEREAEEN THVIEER
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
By 5E AR¥FIT AEETT
Balances with companies under MPZEHLQT—IEE
the common control of BRI VSR
a director arising from: RE :
Deposits paid for the purchase of EEKIER NREM (i
machinery and/or equipment NG T 165,577 203,216
Purchase of machinery IREBHESR T (ii)
and/or equipment B 36,866 61,209
Sales of module, utilities and others  S5EESE « AFREEREM (i) 1,895 8,206

Balances with associates arising from: ERE /N T AVGEAIRE ¢

Purchase of goods, equipment, FEER  RE NFSE (ii)
utilities and rental services RAESRTS 1,567 14,515
Sales of module, services, HEER B - (i)
utilities and others NASBFEREM 784 -
Borrowings from an associate RE—EHERTNES (iv) 16,508 -
Note: BiyEE -
(i) The balances are included in the Group’s deposits paid for the (i) EREIANAEBES I WX BER
purchase of land, property, plant and equipment. RIBEATAVBNEE -
(ii) The balances are included in the Group’s trade payables and other (ii) ERSTARNEBNE S EN RIS EME
payables and accruals. URERESTER -
(iii) The balances are included in the Group's trade receivables and other (iii) BERSTAANEBN B ZEINRBNEMIE
receivables. WRIE o
(iv) The balances are included in the Group's borrowings. (iv) ERSIALNEBBR -
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RE B RRMEE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(Continued)

(C) COMMITMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries have entered into lease
agreements with a director and a company under the
common control of a director to lease properties for
operations, and sale and purchase agreements with a
company under the common control of a director to purchase
machinery and/or equipment for production. The capital
commitments of RMB183,211,000 (2021: RMB139,205,000)
have been included in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(D) COMPENSATION OF THE GROUP’S KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The remuneration of the Company’s directors and the senior
management was as follows:

42. BABATR ARG 8

(C) EHERAIATEVREEIE
AEBETWBRAIREBEMEIEKL
EREH-—PESR—BHEZ I
ESEHANATETTEERZE - WR
BEKSE, URBEEERER—
BHEAZ—NESEFHNQATFIIIE
S5E o AR#8183,211,0007T (20214 -
A R #139,205,00070 ) Y& A AIES
SRIFE U IR E4 -

D) FEBXBREEASEH

ARTDESRSRERBEVEHIOT

2022 2021
RMB’000

ARBFT

RMB’000
AR¥FTT

Short-term employee benefits s 28,863 33,105
Post-employment benefits RIAERH 283 269
Equity-settled share option expense PR R B ERS - 3,274

29,146 36,648
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A =+
IR MM T
43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 43. TRTRNLAAEESE
INSTRUMENTS
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS A) ETE%ER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEHER  SHETNTENRBDE
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows: LN
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
By EE AR¥TFIT ARETIT
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: EE AR B E -
Loan receivables EUREF 20 1,139,316 1,238,692
Trade and bills receivables BIFEINRIE R RIE 24 4,873,943 4,212,442
Financial assets included in STAEAEINRIBEY
other receivables ETRIEE 878,214 242,197
Financial assets included in other STAEMIERBEER
non-current assets TREE 1,590,603 80,214
Cash and bank deposits RERPITER 26 7,361,770 7,646,249
15,843,846 13,419,794
Financial assets at BASEESIABMEE
FVTOCI: Wz T HEE
Debt instruments at BADBESIAEMEE
FVTOCI WEBIERH TR 19 33,580 173,573
Equity instruments at BRANBESIARNEE
FVTOCI WA TR 19 2,242,882 1,468,390
2,276,462 1,641,963
Financial assets at BAIEESTA B
FVIPL: TREE -
Debt instruments at BADEESIABEN
FVTPL BWIE 19 148,037 134,530
Equity instruments at BRDEESt BN
FVTPL BATE 19 828,961 1,060,565
Funds at FVTPL BADBESIABRNES 19 14,882 16,480
Derivative financial instruments mEEHNITA 19 16,762 669
1,008,642 1,212,244

19,128,950 16,274,001
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43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(A)

(8)

214

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Financial liabilities TRBE

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

43. TRTRNARREGEW

(A)

KB HEN AR ZHERIE -

Note

Brat

=M TEERB ()

2022
RMB’000
AR¥FTT

2021
RMB'000
AREBTTT

Trade and bills payables BREIRERER 28 8,036,239 7,545,637
Financial liabilities included in STAEAMENRIBE R
other payables and accruals EEtERNTHEE 1,902,931 1,435,195
Borrowings BE 30 20,035,682 17,159,105
Convertible loans TREER 31 - 624,430
Other long-term payables HinE AR RIE 8,903 10,385
29,983,755 26,774,752
Financial liabilities at BAIEEST B LY
FVTPL: TEEE -
Other financial liabilities HihsreE 33 5,230 71,359
29,988,985 26,846,111
FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B) EZRMTAENQREE

The Group’s finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer.

Assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost:

The fair values of loan receivables, trade and bills receivables,
financial assets included in other receivables, cash and bank
deposits, trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, current portion of borrowings
and convertible loans approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited PEIIBEBIERBRAD
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e B R RMIEE

43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(8)

FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

The fair values of financial assets included in other non-
current assets, non-current portion of borrowings and other
long-term payables have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The difference between carrying amount and fair
value of the non-current portion of the borrowings as at 31
December 2022 were assessed to be insignificant because
most of them bear interest at floating interest rates. The
carrying amounts of the financial assets included in other
non-current assets and other long-term payables are not
materially different from their fair values due to the
immaterial amount.

Assets measured at fair value:

43. TRTRNARREGEW

(B)

Level 1

F—&
RMB’000
AR¥STT AR¥T7T AR¥FTT AR¥TT

EMTRNAREE @)

SIAEMIEARBEENERNEE B
ROIER B D REMERENRE
NADBEMEBBLMUER EE8R
B RFGEENTENRBIRESH
NRBRBERKRIBEAREMSIE -
[R2022F 128318 - BRIERBNEL
PNEDEEANDBEERNTER
WARE  BREMASDILZEA
KEE - SEARMIERBEENETR
EERAEMEREYRIBNEDESD
REBUAEL > WEANDEED
MBEAER -

BARBESIENEE

2022
Fair value hierarchy
NRBEERE
Level 2 Level 3
FETIR F=R
RMB’000 RMB’000

Total
RSt
RMB’000

Other financial assets HinEmMEE

Debt instruments at BRDEBESIAEM

FVTOCI >ENENEHTE - 33,580 - 33,580
Debt instruments at BRTEBESIABZN

FVTPL BBITAa - 3,500 144,537 148,037
Equity instruments at BANBESI AR

FVTOCI TENEORATER 1,038,151 296,871 907,860 2,242,882
Equity instruments at BRTDEBESIABRN

FVTPL BRARTE 631,230 - 197,731 828,961
Funds at FVTPL BABESINERNER - 14,882 - 14,882
Derivative financial FTEER

instruments TE 16,762 - - 16,762

1,686,143 348,833 1,250,128 3,285,104
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS R IRIRMIEE
43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 43. ERTENLARBESE @
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(8) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (B) EZRMTAENQEE(#E)
(Continued)

2021
Fair value hierarchy
NILEELE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
e B BE=MR o]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETT ARETIT ARETIT
Other financial assets HinEmMEE
Debt instruments at BREESIAEM
FVTOCI 2ENENERITIE - 173,573 - 173,573
Debt instruments at BRTDEESIABRN
FVTPL BEHTHE - 30,000 104,530 134,530
Equity instruments at BRTEESIAEM
FVTOCI ENHPIRATE 578,749 275,391 614,250 1,468,390
Equity instruments at BANBEStABRN
FVTPL BRATEH 909,790 - 150,775 1,060,565
Funds at FVTPL BABESIANBRNES - 16,480 - 16,480
Derivative financial TSR
instruments H= - - 669 669
1,488,539 495,444 870,224 2,854,207
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MO B RMEE
43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 43. EMTRENARGES S @)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(8) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B) EZRMTAENQEE#E)
(Continued)
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 FRE=—MANANDEESTELHW
during the year are as follows: T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTFTT ARETT
At 1 January 1818 870,224 359,591
Additions nE 393,577 422,346
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 39) BB A D (BEE39) 41,000 -
Unrealised (loss)/gain recognised in RIBEAHETRBY
profit or loss FER(B1B), Fm (4,21) 3,144
Unrealised gain recognised in REAME BN & A HEREY
other comprehensive income XKEIRMN= 8,783 126,925
Disposal loss included in profit or loss BamACHEBE - (206)
Disposal loss included in Hih 2 Elmm
other comprehensive income L HEBE = (31,965)
Disposal HeE (32,118) (6,979)
Exchange realignment PERFEE (27,127) (2,632)
At 31 December R128318 1,250,128 870,224
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e M BRI EE

43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

43. TRTRNARREGEW

(8) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (B) EZRMTAENQEE(#E)
(Continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value: BAREBESIENGE :

Level 1
ik
RMB’000
AR¥TFIT

HittemaE -

Other financial liabilities

2022
Fair value hierarchy
RRLEERE
Level 2 Level 3
£k FE=k 5t
RMB’‘000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TFT AR¥TT ARETT

= 5,230 5,230

Total

Level 1
E—iR
RMB’000

2021
Fair value hierarchy
NIBEBERE
Level 2 Level 3 Total
B E=R R5
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT AREBTT AREBTT

Other financial liabilities 71,359 71,359

TR BEREERTREBEANE
BStEMS > £ —REE KB
EL OB (20215 - ) - BWESE
ATEHE = (20215 : H) -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 (2021: Nil) and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities (2021: Nil).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e B R RMIEE

43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(8)

FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs

valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative

sensitivity analysis at the end of the reporting period:

Valuation technique

BERE

Equity instruments at FVTOCI Net asset value approach

BAREBESIAEMNZEBNG BEPEE
PRATR

Funds at FVTPL Net fund value approach
BANBESIANBENES ER3EE

Equity instruments at FVTPL Market approach
BANBESIABRN mE%

RATH

Debt instruments at FVTPL P/E Ratio Method
BANBESIABRN H&REGE

BBIR

43. TRTRNARREGEW

(B)

to the

EMTRNAREE @)

UTNRRBSHAEHIRGENE
ANTERAABBEREEHRE

DHITEIBEE

Significant
unobservable input
EXTNTHEZHALS R

Net asset values

BEFE

Net asset values of the funds,
determined with reference to
observable (quoted) prices of
underlying investment
portfolio

ERNEERE(KSE180
REESHIETREETR)

P/S Ratio of 0.59
MiE%E0.59

Conversion probability of 90%
90% BIRIAE

Annual Report 2022 TR

Sensitivity of
fair value to the input
ARBEHEAKEBNHRE

N/A
B

N/A
B

10% increase in ratio would result in
increase in fair value by
RMB3,651,000

2 EFH10% FEBADBIEEIA
ERi#53,651,000 7T

10% decrease in ratio would result in
decrease in fair value by
RMB3,707,000

TR 10% S BANBERDA
R#3,707,000 7T

10% increase in probability would result
in increase in fair value by
RMB870,000

WRE EFH10% I EA DB EEN
A 870,00075

10% decrease in probability would result
in decrease in fair value by
RMB870,000

AAKTE0% R EHARBERD
AEH#870,0007C
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RRMEE

43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 43. EMTRNARBEESE |
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(8) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (B) EZRMTAENQEE(#E)
(Continued)
Significant Sensitivity of
Valuation technique unobservable input fair value to the input
aERE BEARTHRZHALE ARBEHEASBORRE
Other financial liabilities Monte Carlo method and Discount rate of 12% 1% increase in discount rate would
HitzRek discounted cash flow model ~ 12% B535 % result in increase in fair value by
SRFRODERERRTAS RMB7,150,000
il BRE % SR A BEEINA
7,150,000 75

1% decrease in discount rate would

result in decrease in fair value by
RMB3,510,000

ERET R 1% EHADEBERDIA
R #3,510,0007T

Monte Carlo method Equity price fluctuation rate of 1% increase in equity price fluctuation
SRFROE 50% rate would result in no change in fair
50% RABSEE X value
BABREEE EFH1% A BEHA
NEEEE)

1% decrease in equity price fluctuation
rate would result in no change in fair

value
BARBREESETEK1%FAEEHA
REERS
The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts fR= B AEN BV ITE DB AEB T
of premiums and discounts determined by the Group that BEMB2REEERELECERERE
market participants would take into account when pricing the BRBRITEESSE -

investments.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me M R R M EE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44, TRIREEEBEFRREES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise borrowings
and cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity price risk. As the Group’s exposure to these risks is kept to a
minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The
Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

INTEREST RATE RISK

In respect of the floating interest rate instruments, the Group is
subject to the cash flow interest rate risk, while for the fixed interest
rate instruments, the Group is subject to fair value interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax by assuming the floating
rate borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year.

AEBNEZEN T EREERURRER
RGN - ST TENIZREORA
EENBEREET - ARENHEMBE
BEEELTOIOTMEERAE  AINE
ZIEWGRIA R EABEIGRIER & S B II AR
REAMENTRIE -

AEBTRMTEELENIZRBRA/ANEE
B INERRR - EERR  RBEZRERK
RAEBREAR - BRAEBATAENZFEA
RIEFRRIEKE - AEBWEEHETL
ETEREMTBMFHEIDCA - AEEW
BRBNETHEEMTIRMUMFESECH -
EFTEBRUWOATZSEAREERECR
SUEEZLT0 T ©

R @R

FENEXT ERENAEBRHERTASH
EREE > MEENEZTAERENAEEBH
DNILEEFERBE

TREMMRRIRB S AR REE6)T 3R
ZERREEDAREE - BEMTEHMEH
REAZOBERT - AEBRRITANHE
BUREHNEZENERE -

Increase/
(decrease)

Increase/
(decrease)

in basis in profit
points before tax

BER  FRREUEF
180, CGgsd) 1800 (i)

RMB’000

ARFTT

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F 1283 HILEE 50 (66,462)
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F 12831 8IEEE (50) 66,462
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE2021F 128318 IFE 50 (63,823)
Year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F 128318 IFE (50) 63,823
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e B RMIEE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44, TRIAMEIEBERRIE (8)
AND POLICIES (Ccontinued)
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK ISR B
The Group’s main businesses are located in mainland China and REBEREZZEFEIINRPBINM - A0
most of the transactions are conducted in Renminbi. Most of the DRDUNREEIETT - NEBREHEE
Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in Renminbi, except e ARKEHE S TREREBTE
for certain cash and bank deposits, trade and bills receivables and R BIENRBEREEFEFNERUSTTRE
borrowings denominated in HK dollar and US dollar. The Group TUsTHE - NEBNE R EEXRRETED -

has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the TRETIRREK - e EHMEB SRS
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the Renminbi TEOBR T - NEBRRATANE AR
against the relevant currencies, with all other variables held REMERMEENSIETIREEE (BREK
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair HEERERNAIBELB)OTE) BIEUK
value of monetary assets and loans). S
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in HK$/US$ in profit
rate before tax
BT ETT
Ex RRpUER
A (FER) 3807 (F4)
RMB’000
ARTFIT
2022
If the RMB weakens against the US$ BARBRETRE 5 1,084
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ HARERETHE (5) (1,084)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ BARERBITRE 5 46,257
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ BARBRBITHE (5) (46,257)
2021
If the RMB weakens against the US$ HARBRETRE 5 270
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ HARBRETHE (5) (270)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ HARERBTRE 5 (21,713)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ BARERBITHE (5) 21,713
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e B RMEE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44, TRARKBSIEEREREE @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations
under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
trade and bills receivables, contract assets, loan receivables, other
receivables, debt instruments at FVTOCI and cash and bank
deposits.

The concession operating right of the Group represents sewage
treatment service concession financial receivables in respect of
Build-operate-transfer ("BOT") arrangements. Since the parties to
BOT arrangements are local government authorities in the PRC and
Thailand, the Group considers the credit risk is low at the end of
the reporting period. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

In relation to the Group’s financial service business, the Group has
a credit team which is responsible for the evaluation of customers’
credit ratings, financial background and repayment abilities. The
Group only provides credit to customers with creditworthiness and
collateral is normally required. Except for the individual customers
with specific credit risk and whose balances have been impaired,
the risk of default in payment by these customers is considered not
significant.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk as the Group’s
major customers are from or are related to the real estate industry,
but the Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to purchasers with an appropriate financial strength and
appropriate percentage of down payments. It also has other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade and bills receivables
and contract assets to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

SRE
EERRBEERZHFELABITERER T
BEXZFEHE NEEMEXZUH BRI
R - REBTBEHRNEERREEE SR
RERRE  sNEE - BINER - HME
WRRR - ZAEES AR MBI EE
BITEURIRG RIRTHERERE -

ol

AEBNFHESHIEERRE BERK
R([2%E - BERBR ) ZHFVRFHINE
BIRFOVEZRIBIGRIE o IRIS K - &R
2% - BERBRZIIEIKTRRPER
REPOHBTHE - IAEERREERER
RIE - AEBUWENBEGHRITEETOER

o
oo °

BRAEBNERMRBEY - AEBHEE
EBEREENLZFNEER  UKE=R
REERET - AEBEQSERENS R
HEER—RBRHERRE - REREEER
REREEBHEBENBRIZFI - 25
P BTSRRI R AERK

BRAEBNERZFREFHEREEAT
BHEx AEBEETEEAREDE
oo EREBF BB RMEBEROHEEIERY
HENRIZNEES LB URNE
BIFHHE - MBRBHMEEBUERR
HURETSNOBAE - I - XEBE
HBRZRONEZBNRERRENGH
EENTNOEER - LERMAINOEE
FHENNBEEGE - AEEHNEERRR
EZBRZHFRZF  IESKAEER
FREPEIBR ©
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44, TRARKBSIEEREREE @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
CREDIT RISK (Continued)

For other receivables, an impairment analysis is performed by
management at the end of each reporting period by considering
historical settlement records, past experience and future economic
conditions. The directors of the Company believe that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of
other receivables.

The Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI comprised solely of quoted
bonds that are graded in the top investment category and
therefore, are considered to be low credit risk investments.

Bank deposits are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks which are all high-credit-quality
financial institutions.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of financial assets and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is
mainly based on the invoice date unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at the end of each reporting period. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the
exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e B R RMIEE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44, TRIREEIE BRI &)

AND POLICIES (continued)
CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

12-month
ECLs

1288
BHEEER

Stage 1
FBR
RMB‘000

ARETFR

EERER (&)
RERBRRFREERS B (&)

Lifetime ECLs
BEGENREERESR
Simplified
approach
BILHE
RMB’000
ARBFT

Total

st
RMB’000
AREFT

Stage 2
FRE
RMB‘000

AREFRT

Stage 3
F=ER
RMB’000

AREFT

Loan receivables FEIRER 861,273 278,043 - - 1,139,316
Confract assets? BNEBE* - - - 595,572 595,572
Trade and bills receivables ERRNTERZE! - - - 4,873,943 4,873,943

861,273 278,043 - 5,469,515 6,608,831

12-month

Simplified
Stage 2 approach Total
E—IEE E_[EE E=IEE Elaps Rt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETRT ARETT ARETT
Loan receivables FEUES 1,185,066 53,626 - - 1,238,692
Contract assets? SHEE* - - - 616,881 616,881
Trade and bills receivables* BRENRERZE - - - 4,212,442 4,212,442
1,185,066 53,626 - 4,829,323 6,068,015
# For contract assets and trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies # NAEBRABCHEEERENSHNEENE

the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in notes 23 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

SERRERZEMS  ERBERENERSD
BIRBERIFE U ISR EE 23 K2 24 -
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TR e M BRI EE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and available funding through various sources of finances to meet
its commitments.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
each of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

RMB’000
AR¥FTT

Within
1 year

44. SREAKEEEEREE @)

REBEEERE

REBREKONRERRESED
WEBNAREREARESES

USHFRITBIIRREE - AEBRSHS
HAREZRNEET B ROT

1to 2
years
1526
RMB’000
AR#EETITT

Over

2 years
2 E
RMB’000
AR¥EFT

Total

st
RMB’000
ARETIT

1R

Trade and bills payables BIRNTBEREE 8,036,239 - - 8,036,239

Financial liabilities included in STAEMENYRER
other payables and accruals [ESrEREMNas 1,902,931 - - 1,902,931
Borrowings B3 8,057,814 6,326,920 7,573,118 21,957,852
Lease liabilities HE8E 119,131 92,61 550,479 762,221
Other long-term payables HtvEBHENRIE - - 8,903 8,903
18,116,115 6,419,531 8,132,500 32,668,146

Within
1 year

110 2

years
1228
RMB’'000
ANREEFIT

Over

2 years
2D I
RMB’000
ARBTTT

1A
RMB’000

ARBFTT

Total
Rt
RMB’000

ARBFT

Trade and bills payables H2RVRBEREE 7,545,637 - - 7,545,637

Financial liabilities included in StAEMBEIREBER
other payables and accruals [EStEANTRBE 1,435,195 - - 1,435,195
Borrowings L 7,491,968 186,244 9,874,972 17,553,184
Convertible loans oJREER 668,272 - - 668,272
Lease liabilities HE8E 88,273 74,185 485,505 647,963
Other long-term payables HimEBENRIE - - 10,385 10,385
17,229,345 260,429 10,370,862 27,860,636
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44, TRIREEIE BRI &)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
EQUITY PRICE RISK

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from equity instruments at FVTPL and equity
instruments at FVTOCI (note 19) as at 31 December 2022. The
Group’s listed investments are listed on the PRC, Hong Kong and
the United Kingdom stock exchanges and are valued at quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5% change
in the fair values of the equity instruments, with all other variables
held constant and before any impact on tax, based on their
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the
purpose of this analysis, for the equity instruments at FVTOCI, the

RABEERR

BRBRERERAIBHKIRBAZSE
ERBMENORABSATEE THHNER
B2 o 522022128318 AEEBEERBEZ
AABESABZNRATERRANEE
STAHEMEENGEIRATAR (MaE19) 515
BRERE - AEBHLLHRERDPEH &
BRBEIFSRZZH LM WRRSHRE
PTERMESHE -

TRINEMEAME HREG A RETRR

FEACER N BRRSHRZRBEES
& RATIRRCANEBETEE) 5% BUR
B o iADITMS - WRADEESIAEM
2ENENRATENFERERHANE

impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

BRI E -

Carrying
amount Change in
of equity profit Change in
instruments before tax equity*
BARTERN ERERU
REE ot b )
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFITT AR¥FT AREFT
2022
Equity securities listed in the PRC ROPE R AE S 1,269,556 29,403 34,075
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong  1R&E8 FRAE S 356,660 - 17,833
Equity securities listed in the IRIEE FHRA
United Kingdom FEEs 43,165 2,158 -
Unlisted equity securities IE EHRAES
at fair value (BRABEEYIE) 1,402,462 9,887 60,237
2021
Equity securities listed in the PRC ROB EMRABS 978,643 37,601 11,331
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong  1R&E8 R AEH 352,133 - 17,607
Equity securities listed in the PRIEE FHRA
United Kingdom B35 157,763 7,888 -
Unlisted equity securities IFEDRAES
at fair value (AR EEIIE) 1,040,416 7,539 44,482
* Excluding retained profits * ABEIERBHT
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RE B RRMEE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. TRIREEIEBEFEREE &)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going concern and to
maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to optimise
the debt and equity balance, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or new debts or the redemption of existing debts. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity ratio, which
is net debt divided by capital. Net debt includes borrowings,
convertible loans and lease liabilities, less cash and bank deposits.
Capital represents the total equity.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the net debt to equity ratio at a
healthy level in order to support its businesses. The principal
strategies adopted by the Group include, without limitation,
reviewing future cash flow requirements and the ability to meet
debt repayment schedules when they fall due, maintaining a
reasonable level of available banking facilities and adjusting
investment plans and financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that
the Group has a reasonable level of capital to support its business.
The net debt to equity ratio, at the end of the reporting period, is as
follows:

EXEE
AEBEAEENERERERREAEE]
BLHBEEELESNEE  LRERSIZ
EAIESZHEES  IRBRRNEER
FERS -

AEERBEERN RS ERHERRMER
TFLHRZ - RELEBRERGEH A%E
THENIRRORR ORREROE
K BOFRAFEABORBES - F
A - EBEANBER - BERSUEZIHERE)

AEEUERFIREEGILREREALN 5%
HEREHFEHRLUER - EFFRELEE
R TRERERRESEERRERRTE
R ERDERDBE -

AEENRBRESER FREESLXE
BRERNY - DI EEETS - AEBRIRNE
EREBEBENRREBRRIREREFT K
RREBIRSETERBESBEND
RETRRTREESEKERARRES
ERRMESE(WFER) - LERAEBHS
SENEHEARSITEREF » RIS HIREY
EFRPRE BTN T ¢

2022 AVVAl

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®SFIT ABREFTT

Borrowings &7 20,035,682 17,159,105
Convertible loans oRBeE R - 624,430
Lease liabilities HESE 578,406 492,368
Less: Cash and bank deposits B IRERIBTER (7,361,770) (7,646,249)
Net debt E¥5248 13,252,318 10,629,654
Total equity R IR AR 22,589,795 21,806,763
Net debt to equity ratio EF PRI RS X 59% 49%
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e B R RMIEE

45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

45. FERERERMIE

(A) MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS A EEBFRERS
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right- ER - EEZHMS - AEEEARE
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB221,140,000 and EERAEEENIFRTZINDBIRA
RMB221,140,000 respectively, in respect of lease 221,140,000 75 & A R 221,140,000
arrangements (2021: RMB86,399,000 and RMB86,399,000). 70 (20214 = A R #86,399,0007C & A

R#886,399,0007T) °

(8) RECONCILIATIONS OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM (B) RMEGTHELENSEHIR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The tables below detail changes in the Group’s liabilities NERFNAEBNETESNELTHNE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and EEEH(AFERTRIIFRELH) - A

ENHMELCEBERREMNBESR
ARRAEBRESREMNBRADEA
REEGEREMNENEE -

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Non-cash changes

FR&EE
Amortisation
of borrowing Foreign
New arrangement exchange Other
1January Cash flow leases fee movement changes 31 December
BRZH
1818 R&neg ¥ BREH SNELZE Hithia 12A318
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETRT AREFTR AR¥EFR ARETRT ARETRT AREFT ARETR
Borrowings B7 17,159,105 1,823,859 - 37,21 1,015,447 - 20,035,682
Lease liabilifies £8E 492,368 (136,022) 221,140 - 16,81 (15,891) 578,406
Convertible loans TJRRER 624,430 (716,236) - - 31,859 59,947 -
Inferest payable EUNE 76,532 (675,386) - - - 612,303 13,449
Dividends payable fo BRNAATHEEA
owners of the Company R 3 - (649,336) - - - 649,336 -
Dividends payable fo ENFEHER
non-controlling interests B2 - (12,931) - - - 12,931 -
Payables for acquisition of  TEE3ERH
non-controlling inferests ~ EZEINE - (150,687 - - - 150,687 -
Total liabilities from BETHNEE
financing activities B 18,352,435 (516,739) 221,140 37,21 1,064117 1,469,313 20,627,537
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR e M BRI EE

45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

45. FEWMERERMTE (B

(B) RECONCILIATIONS OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM (B) MEGTHELNBEHIR(E
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)
Non-cash changes
FRERE
Amortisation
of borrowing Foreign
New  arrangement exchange Other
1January Cash flow leases movement changes 31 December
1818 Rehe HHE ) 128318
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 000 RMB'000
Borrowings B3 15,446,485 1,972,778 - 24,063 (425,733 141,512 17,159,105
Lease liabilifies HEBE 162,316 (75,339) 86,399 - (3,601) 322,593 492,368
Convertible loans ﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁ 627,362 (19,650) - - (18,153 34,87 624,430
Inferest payable BNFIE 26,033 (444,365) - - - 494,864 76,532
Dividends payable fo BNARTHEA
owners of the Company 8 - (1,278,424) - - - 1,278,424 -
Dividends payable fo N Bl
non-controlling interests B2 - (22,540) - - - 22,540 -
Total liabilities from REBHNER
financing activities ikl 16,262,196 132,460 86,399 24,063 (447,487) 2,294,804 18,352,435
(C) TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW FOR LEASES () HEREARLRL
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated BIEEREREAERNESIRTA
statement of cash flows is as follows: EiRgE -

2022
RMB’000

2021
RMB'000
ARBTTT

AR¥FTT

Within operating activities BEBEA 24,824 28,938
Within investing activities BETERN 44,149 148,828
Within financing activities METEIA 136,022 75,339

204,995 253,105

46. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the reporting period, a subsidiary of the Company (the
“Subsidiary”), acquired on the open market a total of 97,421,035
shares of Keda Industrial Group Co., Ltd. ("Keda”) (stock code:
600499), which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, at an
aggregate consideration of approximately RMB1,541,000,000. As
at the date of this report, the Subsidiary was interested in 5.00% of
the entire issued share capital of Keda.
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TR -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR e B R RMIEE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

47. TEMBATHEE
AADEBWBAIOHIEDT :

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
SEMmMIL/ 5
RE£ME

Issued

ordinary share/
registered
share capital
BRTLER/
HERA

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
Direct Indirect
N

E# S

Principal activity

TBRE

Liansu Group Company Limited Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 - 100% Investment holding and sale of
building materials and home
improvement products

BBEEBRAT BE 13,000,000 /87T RERRRHERNZEER

Guangdong Liansu Technology Industrial the PRC HK$2,800,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic

Co., lid. *e pipes and pipe fittings

ERBENZEXERAT e 2,800,000,000 87 HERHEBNEEREN

Heshan Lesso Industrial Development Co., Lid. *®  the PRC HK$269,930,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

BUMEEXSRERATY haE 269,930,000 /87T HERHBEBNEEREH

Lesso Technology Development (Wuhan) the PRC HK$111,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic

Co., Lid. *® pipes and pipe fittings
BERxgR(EE)BRATY tE 111,000,000 57 HERBEBNEEREN
Lesso Technology Development (Guiyang) the PRC HK$115,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic

Co., Lid. *® pipes and pipe fittings

BERZER (BB BRATY e 115,000,00057C HERHEBNEEREN

Nanjing Lesso Technology Industrial Co., Ltd. *®! the PRC US$26,750,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

BRMERKEXERATY haE 26,750,000557C HERHBEBNEEREH

Lesso Municipal Pipe [Hebeil Co., Lid. **! the PRC US$32,790,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

BBmREE (T BRAGY tE 32,790,000%7 HERBEBNEEREN

Henan Lesso Industrial Co., Ltd. *¢I the PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

TEMEEEERATY il AR 200,000,000 70 HERBEBREEREN

Hainan Lesso Technology Industrial Co., Lid. ¥ the PRC RMB150,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

EEMENREXERAT aalei AR#150,000,000 7T HERHBEBNEEREH

Yunnan Lesso Technology Development the PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic

Co., Ltd. ¥ pipes and pipe fittings

SEBENRERBRATY el AR 200,000,00070 HERBEBRNEEREN

Hunan Lesso Technology Industrial Co., Lid. *¢ the PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

BEMBRNREXERATY il AR1100,000,000 7T HERBEBREEREN
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. TEWBAINFIE (&)
(Continued)
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share/ equity attributable
registration registered to the Company
and business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activity
SRR/ EE R BERITEER/ FNTEIGERLE
RE£HE SRR HE HE  EEEH
Guangdong Shunde Lesso Management the PRC RMB682,000,000 - 100% Property investment
Co., lid. *d
BEREERNEERERATY el AR 682,000,0007T VES
Lesso Mall Development Long Island), Inc. © us US$104,000,000 - 100% Property investment
AUEHERE(RE)BRAT ESEl 104,000,00057T VES
Lesso Mall Development [Jurupa Valley) Limited @ US US$1,000 - 100% Property investment
EHBNEE (KBNS BRAT ESEl 1000557 VES
Guangdong Century Xinghui the PRC RMB189,654,000 - 100% Property development
Creative Park Technology
Co., Ltd.* @
ERURERIRENK alei ANE#189,654,000 7T VIESS Y=
BRAFGY
PT Samanea Tangerang Development © Indonesia IDR40,000,000,000 - 100% Property investment
PT Samanea Tangerang Development © HERAE 40,000,000,000E07B& NELE
fal Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the laws of the PRC ol IRIEDPEEEEMR B EBE R
bl Registered as an equity joint venture under the laws of the PRC ) REPEEERZMRA—EEEDRXE
Gl Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of the PRC @ REPEEEZFMA—EBRAT
o Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of US @ REEREEAMR—EBRAT
e Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of Indonesia ‘e' RIENECALAZAMA—EBERAT
The above table lists the Company’s subsidiaries which, in the EETR  LRAEIINARINELATY
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year REEBNEBEBREEAFENAERAEEE
or formed a substantial portion of the Group’s net assets. To give EFENSERED - ESBRIGFEIIE MM
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, BATINERN - BEBEERENEBIRNE -

result in particulars of excessive length.
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 48. KATMFEMRRK

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the RI|EH K - BEALN I BIRRETHNEN
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: W :

2022
RMB’000

AR¥TFTT

2021
RMB'000
AREBTFIT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RINERATNERE 5,010,706 5,002,996
Other financial assets HihsmEE 174,378 393,284
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 5,185,084 5,396,280
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Other receivables HfEIERIE 3,350,497 1,458,303
Amount due from subsidiaries N = NSIE/SE] 1,542,549 4,497,205
Other financial assets HingrIEE 33,580 -
Cash and bank deposits RERPETER 43,447 22,428
Total current assets RENEERR 4,970,073 5,977,936
CURRENT LIABILITIES REVBE
Other payables and accruals HiENMRIE RESTER 100,314 564,939
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEN BT RIB 137,556 -
Other financial liabilities Hitsmas = -
Borrowings &3 5,450,428 7,718,273
Total current liabilities REEERE 5,688,298 8,283,212
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBBEFER (718,225) (2,305,276)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EERERARBEE 4,466,859 3,091,004
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Borrowings Bx 779,998 -
Other financial liabilities HihEraE = 42,188
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERE 779,998 42,188
Net assets EEFR 3,686,861 3,048,816
EQUITY e
Share capital [iSZN 135,344 135,344
Reserves (note) Bl (MyEt) 3,551,517 2,913,472
Total equity e iRAR 3,686,861 3,048,816
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 48. KN\ TMBENRRET &)
COMPANY (Continued)

Note: BeE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ANTWEEBEWT
Shares
held for Exchange
Share share award Fair value fluctuation Retained
premium scheme reserve reserve profits Total
142 B
RIPER EEFRREG 2 AnBERE EXRDBRE REBEF st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AEEFTT ARETT ARBTIT ARETTT ARETT
At1January 2021 R2021F1818 1,905,618 (85,440) (44,785) 103,454 1,372,607 3,251,454
Total comprehensive income FRZENE
for the year bS] - - (130,249) 49,715 1,020,976 940,442
Dividends recognised as ERRBEEADEEN
distributions to owners RS - - - - (1,278,424) (1,278,424)

Transfer of fair value reserve HERNRBIEST AR
upon the disposal of equity 2ENENRATRE

instruments at FVTOCI ERNDBERE - - (170) - 170 -
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F 128318k

1January 2022 2022F1818 1,905,618 (85,440) (175,204) 153,169 1,115,329 2,913,472
Total comprehensive income  FA AL

for the year febe] - - (63,214) (180,967) 1,531,562 1,287,381
Dividends recognised as BRAFEBADIRN

distributions to owners B - - - - (649,336) (649,336)
At 31 December 2022 R2022F 128318 1,905,618 (85,440) (238,418) (27,798) 1,997,555 3,551,517

49. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 49. HERSHBEBRR
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and FOMIREKN2023F3F 208 EEE=
authorised for issue by the Board on 20 March 2023. HERBRETIZ -
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
ERIRENRBE

As at 31 December 2022
R2022F 128318

Details of the Group’s investment properties at the end of the reporting  IRIRE K - REBLEWENFEBL N ¢
period are as follows:

Site area/ Stage of
Location Type gross floor area Lease term completion

mEREE

ik %85l REEEE GELEER TAUPEER
sq. ft.
EHIR

79-99 St Hilliers Road, Australia 1B 266,874% Freehold Existing
Auburn, Cumberland, Sydney,

New South Wales

79-99 St Hilliers Road, B 1B 266,874 = B85
Auburn, Cumberland, Sydney,

New South Wales

5789, 5933, 5945, 5811, 5951 Canada CL 1,794,514 Freehold  Planning stage
Steeles Avenue East,

Toronto, Ontario

5789, 5933, 5945, 5811, 5951 MNEXR CL 1,794,514 AR e
Steeles Avenue East,

Toronto, Ontario

5631-5671 Steeles Avenue East, Canada CB 138,982* Freehold Existing
Toronto, Ontario
5631-5671 Steeles Avenue East, NEX CB 138,982* KIAZERE RE

Toronto, Ontario

South of Longzhou West Road, PRC CL 1,775,496 Leasehold Under
East of Dengdong Road, development
Longijiang town, Shunde District,

Foshan City, Guangdong

EREBUDIRBERRELE hE cL 1,775,496 EE G
NSRRI R ERBRARX D

West of Foshan-Kaiping highway, PRC CL 1,665,995 Leasehold Under
North of Longgao Road, development
Longjiang town, Shunde District,

Foshan City, Guangdong

EREBBUTIRBERETLE thEl cL 1,665,995 GEE S BEP
BRRSRUL - e B

637, 652, 662 Heshun Road, PRC IL 651,992 Leasehold Existing
Heshan Industrial Center,

Heshan City, Guangdong

BERBBUDBLIEN el IL 651,992 SR RB
FIEES 637, 652, 662 57
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
TEREVEHR

As at 31 December 2022
R2022F 128318

Site area/ Stage of

Location Type gross floor area Lease term completion
A EE,

k] %5l REeEEE HEH TP ER
sq. ft.
EHEIR

Tangerang New City Estate, Indonesia CX 1,060,073 Leasehold Under

Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Pasir Gadung, development

Kecamatan Cikupa, Kabupaten Tangerang,

Banten, Indonesia

Tangerang New City Estate, EEfEbs CX 1,060,073 HEkRE R
Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Pasir Gadung,

Kecamatan Cikupa, Kabupaten Tangerang,

Banten, Indonesia

Tangerang New City Estate, Indonesia IL 1,071,181 Leasehold  Planning stage
Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Sindang Jaya,

Kecamatan Sindang Jaya,

Kabupaten Tangerang, Banten, Indonesia

Tangerang New City Estate, EEfEMmE IL 1,071,181 HE1R e [l=E
Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Sindang Jaya,

Kecamatan Sindang Jaya,

Kabupaten Tangerang, Banten, Indonesia

Prey Rokar Village, Cambodia CX 5,519,034 Freehold Under
ChhakChheuNeang Commune, development
Ang Snuol District,

Kandal Province, Cambodia

Prey Rokar Village, RIFE CX 5,519,034 A BRD
ChhakChheuNeang Commune,

Ang Snuol District,

Kandal Province, Cambodia

Plot No 2, 4, 8, 9 Block 59 Myanmar CX 3,232,762 Leasehold Under
Zawtika Yeik Mon Housing, development
Dagon Seikkan Township, Yangon

Plot No 2, 4, 8, 9 Block 59 me CcX 3,232,762 RS R Exg=qun)

Zawtika Yeik Mon Housing,
Dagon Seikkan Township, Yangon
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
TEREVEBR

As at 31 December 2022
R2022F 128318

Site area/ Stage of

Location Type gross floor area Lease term completion
A EE,

ik %5l REEEE GELEER TAUPEER
sq. ft.
FEHEIR

Plot 6218674, Al Warsan First, Dubai United Arab CL 570,487 Freehold Under

Emirates development

Plot 6218674, Al Warsan First, Dubai [RIBE S CL 570,487 TAERE R

SRE
12071 Bellegrave Avenue, us CX 4,755,918 Freehold  Planning stage
Jurupa Valley, California
12071 Bellegrave Avenue, ESs| CcX 4,755,918 A ERE EE[li==t]

Jurupa Valley, California

1300 and 1504 Old Country Road, us CB 712,341% Freehold Existing
Westbury, Nassau County,

Long Island, New York

1300 and 1504 Old Country Road, =& CB 712,341 TKINERE RrE
Westbury, Nassau County,

Long Island, New York

Note: CL Commercial land SEI::)
BysE - CX  Complex land R

It Industrial land TR

CB  Commercial building BEEF

1B Industrial building TEF

# Represents gross floor area EREEBR
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GLOSSARY
s

“Board”

EEa

“BVI"
[ B ER RS

“China” or “PRC”
[PEd

“Code”
[<F&l ]

“Company” or “China Lesso”
(ARG 2 [PEkE ]

“Current Ratio”

PitlsEs

“EBITDA"
(R HTER &Rl )

Ecosave Land, LLC

Ecosave Land, LLC

“FVTOCI”
[ RS EESARMEENE ]

“FVTPL”
[T EEST AR

“Gearing Ratio”
[EEBEX

the board of directors of the Company
/N -=E=i=f

the British Virgin Islands
REBHRARES

the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this report, excluding Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan
PFEASHNE - IARSEMS - WABSEDS  BFIROE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

ERRINER 14 TEBIEREL TR

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
PEMBEETERERAT

the ratio of current assets to current liabilities

MENEERLIREI BB X

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation
HERANR - RI1E ~ ITE REERIERA

a California limited liability company and is a connected person of the Company,
49% effective shareholding interest (in aggregate) are ultimately and indirectly held
by various connected persons of the Company, comprising Mr. Wong Luen Hei and
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping (the controlling Shareholders), Mr. Zuo Manlun, Mr. Lai Zhigiang,
Mr. Kong Zhaocong, Mr. Chen Guonan, Dr. Lin Shaoquan, Mr. Huang Guirong, Mr.
Luo Jianfeng and Mr. Lin Dewei (each of them being an executive director of the
Company), as well as Ms. Zuo Xiaoying (a sister to both Ms. Zuo Xiaoping and Mr.
Zuo Manlun) and Mr. Or Cheuk Fung (each being a director of at least one
subsidiary of the Company)

—KIANBERMNEREFTRT - RARTINEFEAT - DARTZIZEEEA
T(DBIRARTNTESEMIBSLE RIS L T (FRRER) « ZDmmicsE
BGRTE ~ SLIKRFTE - BMEIRTE - MOEET - EERTYE - BRIES
ERMBREE  URSBRARIED —BENBAINESAKRLZ T (R
RN TREMBIRECHK) RIUSELE) ERREEREC 49% ER
B (551)

fair value through other comprehensive income
BATNEESIAEMEENG

fair value through profit or loss

BAREESIAEBG

the total debts divided by the sum of total debts and total equity
REBRERRUEH BN C ROV
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GLOSSARY
Eks

“Group”
[AE&EH]

“Guangdong Liansu Machinery”

SRS
"HKS"
85t

“Hong Kong” or “HK"
(&8

“Indonesia”

[ENEfeBez ]

“loT”
[ ¥ Rssie |

“Listing Rules”

[ EDRE])
“Model Code”
(2478l )

“New Fortune”
(FTEL]

“pE”

[PE]

“PP-R”
[PP-RJ

“PVC”
[PVC]

"Quick Ratio”
[RELE

“RMB”
AR

the Company and its subsidiaries
AANTGRAREAT

Guangdong Liansu Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*, a company indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of the Company
as defined under the Listing Rules

ERMBHKSRETIRAT - EMIETEERZTEHRTHAT  WRALRTEY
BEAT (EER LMRA)

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BBIEEER — BT

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBRFAITHE

Republic of Indonesia

EERHRRHIE

Internet of things
Y

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Az peEss RRl

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FORAER 10 ATE Y DT ANE R ETESRDEETA

New Fortune Star Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI
New Fortune Star Limited » —EIREBHERRFSLMAILC AT

polyethylene
RN

polypropylene random
HERHEERSE

polyvinyl chloride
BRENF

the ratio of current assets less inventories to current liabilities

MEBEEREEBRUMBS BB

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

PEOEEEE — AR
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GLOSSARY
Eaks

“SFO”
[ S HERA

“Sharel(s)”

Nisavall

“Shareholder(s)”
[ARER |

“Shunde Liansu Industrial”

(BRI EE S

”SqAﬂ'”
RSN

“Stock Exchange”
[RA2 P |

“tonnel(s)”

[ %]

s
ESEl

“US$”
ESH

“Xi Xi Development”

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong

BBARIE SN EFT5 R ERA

share(s) of a nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company

RATRAPEREEO0.05BTTEIRD

holder(s) of the Share(s) of the Company
AKRIRDBEN

Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co., Ltd.*

BUMIRREEHEEXEIRAT

square feet

SOSESIN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBMERIZMERAT

a unit measuring weight, equal to 1,000 kilograms
SESESMEN - MEFIR1,000 2T

the United States of America
ENERERE

US dollar, the lawful currency of US
EEEEER — =TT

Xi Xi Development Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI

[FOXEE] BREERBRNTY - —BREBHRERFSIMRIIZAT
“%" per cent

(%] B2

* The English or Chinese translations in this report, where indicated, denote for identification purposes only.

* RISV AP EE (F0518) (2458
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NaEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

Mr. Cheng Dickson

Ms. Lu Jiandong

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. Tao Zhigang (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Mr. Cheng Dickson

Ms. Lu Jiandong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Tao Zhigang (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Luen Hei

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Ms. Lu Jiandong

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Lu Jiandong (Chairlady] (with effect from 30 August 2022)

Mr. Wong Luen Hei

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel

52
WITES
BRI ()
MRS ((TBRE)
EESHE L
Bt
LS Pk s
FEERE L
WOZELT
B
BRIESE
AR RSTAE

BIUFNTES
FB=KE

[ Popcen

PO E 1T
B@W5FIE
BRRUT

ELERE

PERIE 1T (L)
FB=KE
EpBsR ot
BRRLT
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Zuo Manlun
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel

REGISTERED OFFICE

Third Floor, Century Yard
Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902
Grand Cayman, KY1-1103
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN CHINA

Liansu Industrial Estate
Longjiang Town

Shunde District

Foshan City

Guangdong Province 528318
China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1A, 10th Floor, Tower 2
South Seas Centre

75 Mody Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East
Kowloon, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

Listing:
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock code:
2128

SHARE INFORMATION
As at 31 December 2022:

Share issued 3,102,418,400 shares
Market capitalisation HK$25,285 million
Board lot size 1,000 shares

2022 DIVIDENDS

Proposed final dividend HK30 cents per share
Dividend payout ratio 33.0%
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Annual results announcement:
20 March 2023

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS:

—  for determining the entitlement to attend, speak and vote at annual
general meeting from 8 to 10 May 2023 (both dates inclusive)

—  for determining the entitlement to proposed final dividend from 17
to 19 May 2023 (both dates inclusive)

2023 annual general meeting:
10 May 2023

Payment of 2022 proposed final dividend+:
on or around 25 May 2023

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
Third Floor, Century Yard

Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman, KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS

iPR Ogilvy & Mather

40th Floor, United Asia Finance Centre
333 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2136 6185

Fax: (852) 3170 6606

Email: ir@lesso.com

+ Subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2023 annual general meeting to be
held on 10 May 2023.
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AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
Hong Kong

SOLICITOR

Baker & McKenzie

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Foshan Shunde Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

MUFG Bank, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong] Limited

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

WEBSITE

http://www.lesso.com
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Forward-looking statements

This report contains forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include,
without limitation, statements related to revenue and earnings. The words “believe”, “intend”,

uow

“expect”, “anticipate”, “forecast”, “estimate”, “predict”, “is confident”, “has confidence” and
similar expressions are also intended to represent forward-looking statements. These
forward-looking statements are not historical facts. Rather, the forward-looking statements
are based on the current beliefs, assumptions, expectations, estimates and projections of the
directors and management of China Lesso about the businesses, industries and markets in

which China Lesso operates.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject
to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond the Company’s control
and are difficult to predict. Consequently, actual results could differ materially from those
expressed, implied or forecasted in the forward-looking statements.

Reliance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements, which reflect only the
views of the directors and management of China Lesso as at the date of this report only. The
Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements to
reflect events or circumstances that arise after publication of this report.

RUIEEEDR

KREHERIEEDR - HSRIEEHEFEFRIBEBRAR
EABVEDS - M (4818 - [5t8)) - [JRET)  [BH) [RA
[&st) TR - TRE] - [RBEIN ] RIELFFRMEERRA
BEY - EEARUPEREEEREEBRERE 7%
ROEBEMTENDEMAERIFENERNES - R - #
£ GERBARERE MUFEREE -

ISR BEBRIIFM A RNEHRLRRIFLRE - MESEREA
R AEBERREMERNSHE  HPEUEREFARQ
DATRLIEM - BEDITER - Ut - BRBRUERIEEEN
B ERARANEREEAES ©

FpEERERRPEHEEERERERARSHRED
PRHER  EOAT—BAEKEISRIEZN - AR
HEEQFEBE] CRAEER  UMRRARSHOBMELED
BOER

# RNRSOPEWBEYIRE - BILZEIARE -



LESSO BxZE

Unit 1A, 10th Floor, Tower 2, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road
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